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Except as otherwise indicated or unless the context otherwise requires, all references in this Annual Report on Form 10-K to (i) “OUTFRONT Media,” “the
Company,” “we,” “our,” “us” and “our company” mean OUTFRONT Media Inc., a Maryland corporation, and unless the context requires otherwise, its
consolidated subsidiaries, and (ij) the “25 largest markets in the U.S.,” “approximately 150 markets in the U.S. and Canada” and “Nielsen Designated

Market Areas” are based, in whole or in part, on Nielsen Media Research’s 2024 Designated Market Area rankings.
CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

We have made statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-K that are forward-looking statements within the meaning of the federal securities laws,
including the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. You can identify forward-looking statements by the use of forward-looking terminology such
as “believes,” “expects,” “could,” “would,” “may,” “might,” “will,” “should,” “seeks,” “likely,” “intends,” “plans,” “projects,” “predicts,” “estimates,” “forecast” or
“anticipates” or the negative of these words and phrases or similar words or phrases that are predictions of or indicate future events or trends and that do
not relate solely to historical matters. You can also identify forward-looking statements by discussions of strategy, plans or intentions related to our capital
resources, portfolio performance and results of operations. Forward-looking statements involve numerous risks and uncertainties and you should not rely
on them as predictions of future events. Forward-looking statements depend on assumptions, data or methods that may be incorrect or imprecise and
may not be able to be realized. We do not guarantee that the transactions and events described will happen as described (or that they will happen at all).
The following factors, among others, could cause actual results and future events to differ materially from those set forth or contemplated in the forward-
looking statements:

" u "o " " " " " " "o "o

« Declines in advertising and general economic conditions;

¢ The severity and duration of pandemics, and the impact on our business, financial condition and results of operations;

*  Competition;

¢ Government regulation;

e Our ability to operate our digital display platform;

¢ Losses and costs resulting from recalls and product liability, warranty and intellectual property claims;

*  Our ability to obtain and renew key municipal contracts on favorable terms;

¢ Taxes, fees and registration requirements;

* Decreased government compensation for the removal of lawful billboards;

¢ Content-based restrictions on outdoor advertising;

e Seasonal variations;

¢ Acquisitions and other strategic transactions that we may pursue could have a negative effect on our results of operations;

« Dependence on our management team and other key employees;

« Diverse risks in our Canadian business, including risks related to the sale of our Canadian business;

* Experiencing a cybersecurity incident;

* Changes in regulations and consumer concerns regarding privacy, information security and data, or any failure or perceived failure to comply with
these regulations or our internal policies;

* Asset impairment charges for our long-lived assets and goodwill;

¢ Environmental, health and safety laws and regulations;

*  Expectations relating to environmental, social and governance considerations;

e Our substantial indebtedness;

* Restrictions in the agreements governing our indebtedness;

* Incurrence of additional debt;

* Interest rate risk exposure from our variable-rate indebtedness;

¢ Our ability to generate cash to service our indebtedness;

e Cash available for distributions;

¢ Hedging transactions;

*  The ability of our board of directors to cause us to issue additional shares of stock without common stockholder approval;

¢ Certain provisions of Maryland law may limit the ability of a third party to acquire control of us;

«  Our rights and the rights of our stockholders to take action against our directors and officers are limited,;

¢ Our failure to remain qualified to be taxed as a real estate investment trust (“REIT”);

*  REIT distribution requirements;

« Availability of external sources of capital;

* We may face other tax liabilities even if we remain qualified to be taxed as a REIT;

« Complying with REIT requirements may cause us to liquidate investments or forgo otherwise attractive investments or business opportunities;

*  Our ability to contribute certain contracts to a taxable REIT subsidiary (“TRS");

¢ Our planned use of TRSs may cause us to fail to remain qualified to be taxed as a REIT;



* REIT ownership limits;

* Complying with REIT requirements may limit our ability to hedge effectively;

*  Failure to meet the REIT income tests as a result of receiving non-qualifying income;

¢ The Internal Revenue Service (the “IRS”) may deem the gains from sales of our outdoor advertising assets to be subject to a 100% prohibited
transaction tax; and

¢ Establishing operating partnerships as part of our REIT structure.

While forward-looking statements reflect our good-faith beliefs, they are not guarantees of future performance. All forward-looking statements in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K apply as of the date of this report or as of the date they were made and, except as required by applicable law, we disclaim
any obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statement to reflect changes in underlying assumptions or factors, of new information, data
or methods, future events or other changes. For a further discussion of these and other factors that could impact our future results, performance or
transactions, see “Item 1A. Risk Factors” in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. You should understand that it is not possible to predict or identify all such
factors. Consequently, you should not consider any such list to be a complete set of all potential risks or uncertainties.
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PART |
Item 1. Business.
Overview

OUTFRONT Media is a real estate investment trust (“REIT”), which provides advertising space (“displays”) on out-of-home advertising structures and
sites in the United States (the “U.S.”) and Canada. We are one of the largest providers of advertising space on out-of-home advertising structures and
sites across the U.S. and Canada. Our inventory consists of billboard displays, which are primarily located on the most heavily traveled highways and
roadways in top Nielsen Designated Market Areas (“DMAS”), and transit advertising displays operated under exclusive multi-year contracts with
municipalities in large cities across the U.S. and Canada. In total, we have displays in all of the 25 largest markets in the U.S. and approximately 150
markets in the U.S. and Canada. Our top market, high profile location focused portfolio includes sites in and around both Grand Central Station and
Times Square in New York, various locations along Sunset Boulevard in Los Angeles, and the Bay Bridge in San Francisco. The breadth and depth of
our portfolio provides our customers with a range of options to address their marketing objectives, from national, brand-building campaigns to hyper-local
campaigns that drive customers to the advertiser's website or retail location “one mile down the road.”

In addition to providing location-based displays, we also focus on delivering mass and targeted audiences to our customers. Geopath, the out-of-home
advertising industry’s audience measurement system, enables us to build campaigns based on the size and demographic composition of audiences. As
part of our technology platform, we are developing solutions for enhanced demographic and location targeting, and engaging ways to connect with
consumers on-the-go.

We believe out-of-home continues to be an attractive form of advertising, as our displays are always viewable and cannot be turned off, skipped, blocked
or fast-forwarded. Further, out-of-home advertising can be an effective “stand-alone” medium, as well as an integral part of a campaign to reach
audiences using multiple forms of media, including television, radio, print, online, mobile and social media advertising platforms. We provide our
customers with a differentiated advertising solution at an attractive price point relative to other forms of advertising. In addition to leasing displays, we
provide other value-added services to our customers, such as pre-campaign category research, consumer insights, print production, creative services
and post-campaign tracking and analytics.

We generally (i) own the physical billboard structures on which we display advertising copy for our customers, (ii) hold the legal permits to display
advertising thereon and (iii) lease the underlying sites. These lease agreements have terms varying between one month and multiple years, and usually
provide renewal options. We estimate that approximately 75% of our billboard structures in the U.S. are “legal nonconforming” billboards, meaning they
were legally constructed under laws in effect at the time they were built and remain legal to operate, but could not be constructed under current laws.
These structures are often located in areas where it is difficult or not permitted to build additional billboards under current laws, which enhances the value
of our portfolio. We have a highly diversified portfolio of advertising sites. As of December 31, 2023, we had approximately 19,300 lease agreements with
approximately 18,100 different landlords in the U.S. A substantial proportion of these lease agreements allow us to abate rent and/or terminate the lease
agreement in certain circumstances, which may include where the structure is obstructed, where there is a change in traffic flow and/or where the
advertising value of the sign structure is otherwise impaired, providing us with flexibility in renegotiating the terms of our leases with landlords in those
circumstances.

We currently manage our operations through two operating segments—U.S. Billboard and Transit, which is included in our U.S. Media reportable
segment, and International. International does not meet the criteria to be a reportable segment and accordingly, is included in Other (see Item 8., Note
18. Segment Information to the Consolidated Financial Statements).

On October 22, 2023, we entered into an agreement to sell our outdoor advertising business in Canada. See “—Acquisition and Disposition Activity.”
History

Our corporate history can be traced back to companies that helped to pioneer the growth of out-of-home advertising in the U.S., such as Outdoor
Systems, Inc., 3M National, Gannett Outdoor and TDI Worldwide Inc. In 1996, a predecessor of CBS Corporation (“CBS”) acquired TDI Worldwide Inc.,
which specialized in transit advertising. Three years later, a predecessor of CBS acquired Outdoor Systems, Inc., which represented the consolidation of
the outdoor advertising assets of large national operators such as 3M National, Gannett Outdoor (and its Canadian assets held in the name Mediacom)
and many local operators in North America.



On April 2, 2014, the Company completed an initial public offering (the “IPO”) of its common stock under the name “CBS Outdoor Americas Inc.” On

July 16, 2014, CBS completed a registered offer to exchange 97,000,000 shares of our common stock that were owned by CBS for outstanding shares of
CBS Class B common stock (“the Exchange Offer”). In connection with the Exchange Offer, CBS disposed of all of its shares of our common stock and as
of July 16, 2014, we were separated from CBS (the “Separation”) and were no longer a subsidiary of CBS. On July 16, 2014, in connection with the
Separation, we ceased to be a member of the CBS consolidated tax group, and on July 17, 2014, we began operating as a REIT for U.S. federal income
tax purposes.

On October 1, 2014, we completed the acquisition of certain outdoor advertising businesses of Van Wagner Communications, LLC, for a total purchase
price of approximately $690.0 million in cash, plus working capital adjustments.

On November 20, 2014, the Company changed its legal name to “OUTFRONT Media Inc.” and its common stock began trading on the New York Stock
Exchange under the ticker symbol “OUT.”

Acquisition and Disposition Activity

We regularly evaluate potential acquisitions, ranging from small transactions to larger acquisitions.

On October 22, 2023, the Company, Outfront Canada HoldCo 2 LLC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and Outfront Canada Sub LLC, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (together, the “Selling Subsidiaries”), entered into a Share Purchase Agreement (the “Share Purchase
Agreement”) with Bell Media Inc. (the “Buyer”), relating to the sale of the Company’s outdoor advertising business in Canada (the “Canadian Business”).
Pursuant to the Share Purchase Agreement, the Selling Subsidiaries agreed to sell all of its (and its affiliates) equity interests in Outdoor Systems
Americas ULC and its subsidiaries (the “Transaction”), which hold all of the assets of the Canadian Business, to the Buyer, for C$410.0 million in cash,
payable on the date of the consummation of the Transaction (the “Closing”). The purchase price is subject to (i) adjustments at and following the Closing
for working capital, cash, indebtedness, capital expenditures and transaction expenses, and (ii) a holdback to be released at or following the Closing, in
whole or in part, if certain third-party contracts are renewed or extended on certain terms.

The consummation of the Transaction is expected to occur in the first half of 2024, subject to certain closing conditions, including, among others, (i) the
absence of any enacted or pending law, order, judgment or litigation by a governmental authority prohibiting the consummation of the Transaction, and
(ii) receipt of antitrust approval in Canada (the “Antitrust Approval”). The obligation of the Buyer to consummate the Transaction is also conditioned on the
absence of a material adverse effect on the Canadian Business following the date of the Share Purchase Agreement and the Selling Subsidiaries’
obligation to spend a target percentage of forecasted capital expenditures through the Closing. The obligation of each party to consummate the
Transaction is conditioned on each party’s representations and warranties being true and correct and each party having performed in all material
respects its obligations under the Share Purchase Agreement. In addition, the Share Purchase Agreement may be terminated under certain
circumstances, including (i) by mutual written agreement of the Buyer and the Selling Subsidiaries; (ii) by either the Buyer or the Selling Subsidiaries if
the Closing does not occur by July 22, 2024, with extensions by the Buyer or the Selling Subsidiaries under certain conditions until no later than October
22, 2024 (the “Outside Date”); or (iii) by either the Buyer or the Selling Subsidiaries if a failure by either the Buyer or the Seller Subsidiaries is the
principal cause of any closing condition not being satisfied. If the Antitrust Approval is not received by the Outside Date and the principal cause of such
failure is not a failure of the Selling Subsidiaries or its subsidiaries to perform any of their obligations under the Share Purchase Agreement, the Buyer
will pay a termination fee to the Selling Subsidiaries in the amount of C$20.0 million.

For additional information regarding our acquisition and disposition activity, see “Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations—Liquidity and Capital Resources” and “ltem 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.”



Tax Status

Our qualification to be taxed as a REIT is dependent on our ability to meet various complex requirements under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended (the “Code”), related to, among other things, the sources of our gross income, the composition and values of our assets and the diversity of
ownership of our shares. See “ltem 1A. Risk Factors—Risks Related to Our Corporate and REIT Structure.” As long as we remain qualified to be taxed as
a REIT, we generally will not be subject to U.S. federal income tax on REIT taxable income that we distribute to stockholders. To maintain REIT status,
we must meet a number of organizational and operational requirements, including a requirement that we annually distribute to our stockholders at least
90% of our REIT taxable income, determined without regard to the dividends-paid deduction and excluding any net capital gains. This distribution
requirement may be satisfied by making distributions to our common stockholders, our preferred stockholders (including holders of Series A Preferred
Stock, as defined and described in “ltem 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Liquidity and
Capital Resources—Equity—Series A Preferred Stock Issuance”) or a combination of our stockholders. To the extent that we satisfy this distribution
requirement and qualify for taxation as a REIT but distribute less than 100% of our REIT taxable income, determined with the above modifications, we will
be subject to U.S. federal income tax on our undistributed net taxable income. In addition, we will be subject to a nondeductible 4% excise tax if the
amount that we actually distribute to our stockholders in a calendar year is less than a minimum amount specified under U.S. federal tax laws.

We believe we are organized in conformity with the requirements for qualification and taxation as a REIT under the Code and that our manner of
operation will enable us to continue to meet those requirements. If we fail to qualify to be taxed as a REIT in any taxable year and do not qualify for
certain statutory relief provisions, we will be subject to U.S. federal income tax at regular corporate rates and will be precluded from re-electing REIT
status for the subsequent four taxable years. Despite our status as a REIT, we will be subject to certain U.S. federal, state and local taxes on our income
or property and the income of our TRSs will be subject to taxation at regular corporate rates.

Growth Strategy

Continue Increasing the Number of Digital Displays in our Portfolio. Increasing the number of digital displays in our prime audience locations is an
important element of our organic growth strategy, as digital displays have the potential to attract additional business from both new and existing
customers. We believe digital displays are attractive to our customers because they allow for the development of richer and more visually engaging
messages, provide our customers with the flexibility both to target audiences by time of day and to quickly launch new advertising campaigns, and
eliminate or greatly reduce print production and installation costs. In addition, digital displays enable us to run multiple advertisements on each display.
Digital billboard displays generate approximately four to five times more revenue per display on average than comparable traditional static billboard
displays. Digital billboard displays also incur, on average, approximately two to four times more costs, including higher variable costs associated with the
increase in revenue than comparable traditional static billboard displays. As a result, digital billboard displays generate higher profits and cash flows than
comparable traditional static billboard displays.

We have deployed state-of-the-art digital transit displays in connection with several transit franchises we operate and we expect to continue these
deployments over the coming years, but at a slower pace than our historical deployments. We believe revenues generated on our network of digital
transit displays will be higher than revenues generated on a comparable portfolio of our static transit displays.

We have incurred, and we intend to incur, significant equipment deployment costs and capital expenditures in the coming years to continue increasing the
number of digital displays in our portfolio. However, we expect that our annual equipment deployment cost spending with respect to the New York
Metropolitan Transportation Authority (the “MTA”) transit franchise will decline after our expected material completion of our initial deployment in 2024.
See “—Renovation, Improvement and Development” and “Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations.”

Drive Enhanced Revenue Management. We focus heavily on inventory management and advertising rate to improve average revenue per display (yield)
over time across our portfolio of advertising structures and sites. By carefully managing our pricing on a market-by-market and display-by-display basis,
we aim to improve profitability. We believe that closely monitoring pricing and improving pricing discipline will provide strong potential revenue
enhancement. We also explore alternative uses of our billboard locations as they arise to drive site profitability, including wireless attachment placement
opportunities on our leased and owned assets.

Consider Selected Acquisition Opportunities. As part of our growth strategy, we frequently evaluate strategic opportunities to acquire new businesses and
assets. Consistent with this strategy, we regularly evaluate potential acquisitions, ranging from



small transactions to larger acquisitions. See “—Acquisition and Disposition Activity.” There can be no assurances that any transactions currently being
evaluated will be consummated or, if consummated, that such transactions would prove beneficial to us. Further, our national footprint in the U.S.
provides us with an attractive platform on which to add additional advertising structures and sites. Our scale gives us advantages in driving additional
revenues and reducing operating costs from acquired billboards. We believe that there is significant opportunity for additional industry consolidation, and
we will evaluate opportunities to acquire additional out-of-home advertising businesses and structures and sites on a case-by-case basis.

Continued Adoption & Refinement of Audience Measurement Systems; Ultilization of Data/Analytics. We believe the refinement of the out-of-home
advertising industry’s audience measurement system, Geopath, and alternative measurement systems, including our proprietary smartSCOUT system,
will enhance the value of the out-of-home medium by providing customers with improved audience measurement and the ability to target by demographic
characteristics. New refinements and new providers, as well as the inclusion of transit metrics, will make measurement options more robust. As part of
our technology platform, we are developing solutions for enhanced demographic and location targeting. We have also added attribution solutions for
advertisers looking to measure specific key performance indicators. By providing a consistent and standardized audience measurement metric and
overlaying increasingly available and reliable third-party data and attribution, we are able to help advertisers target increasingly mobile audiences with
effective media plans in the out-of-home environment for both static and digital displays. Further, we believe the use of programmatic and direct sale
advertising platform technologies in the out-of-home advertising industry will increase, which will present a revenue growth opportunity for us.
Programmatic and direct sale advertising platforms allow out-of-home advertising companies to lease displays to customers at competitive rates through
an online bidding process or through a direct sale process, and we continue to seek strategic opportunities to increase our participation in these
platforms.

Our Portfolio of Outdoor Advertising Structures and Sites

Diversification by Customer

For the year ended December 31, 2023, no individual customer represented more than 3% of U.S. Media segment revenues. Therefore, we do not
consider detailed information about any individual customer to be meaningful.



Diversification by Industry

The following table sets forth information regarding the diversification of U.S. Media segment revenues earned among different industries for 2023, 2022
and 2021. For 2023, as a result of our diverse base of customers in the U.S., no single industry contributed more than 20% of our U.S. Media segment

revenues.

We have updated the presentation of our industry reporting and certain reclassifications of prior year data have been made to conform to the current

period’s presentation.

Industry

Percentage of Total U.S. Media Segment Revenues for the

Year Ended December 31,

2023

2022

2021

Entertainment

Retail

Health/Medical

Legal Services/Lawyers
Technology

Miscellaneous Service Providers
Restaurants

Automotive

Consumer Packaged Goods
Education

Travel

Financial

Alcohol
Government/Political
Utilities

Real Estate

Non-Profit

Insurance

Other(®

Total

20 %
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(@) No single industry in “Other” individually represents more than 2% of total revenues.



Diversification by Geography

Our advertising structures and sites are geographically diversified across 34 states, Washington D.C. and Canada. The following table sets forth
information regarding the geographic diversification of our advertising structures and sites, which are listed in order of contributions to total revenue.

Percentage of Total Revenues for the Year
Ended
December 31, 2023

Number of Displays as of December 31, 20232

Transit and Billboard Transit and Percentage of

Location (Metropolitan Area) Billboard Other Total Displays Other Displays Total Displays Total Displays
New York, NY 10 % 52 % 18 % 563 266,022 266,585 53 %
Los Angeles, CA 15 9 14 4,340 34,913 39,253 8
Miami, FL 6 6 6 917 20,363 21,280 4
State of New Jersey 5 <1 4 3,491 — 3,491 <1
San Francisco, CA 3 3 3 1,054 18,105 19,159 4
Houston, TX 4 1 3 1,075 188 1,263 <1
Tampa, FL 3 — 3 1,323 — 1,323 <1
Detroit, M| 3 <1 3 1,782 4,501 6,283 1
Atlanta, GA 3 3 1,849 779 2,628 <1
Boston, MA 2 3 263 38,711 38,974 8
Dallas, TX 3 2 707 508 1,215 <1
Phoenix, AZ 2 1 2 1,348 1,326 2,674 <1
Orlando, FL 2 <1 2 1,187 16 1,203 <1
Washington D.C. 1 10 2 19 47,163 47,182 9
Chicago, IL 1 <1 1 1,196 — 1,196 <1
All other United States ® 32 26 19,677 18,581 38,258 8
Other — <1 — — — —

Total United States 95 96 95 40,791 451,176 491,967 98
Canada 5 4 S 4,609 4,531 9,140 2
Total 100 % 100 % 100 % 45,400 455,707 501,107 100 %
Total revenues (in millions) $ 1,444.9 $ 3757 $ 1,820.6

(a) Alldisplays, including those reserved for transit agency use.

(b) No single location (metropolitan area) in “All other United States” individually represents more than 2% of total revenues.

The New York and Los Angeles metropolitan areas contributed 52% and 11%, respectively, of total transit and other revenues in 2022 and 49% and

12%, respectively, of total transit and other revenues in 2021. Los Angeles contributed 16% of total billboard revenues in 2022 and contributed 15% of

total billboard revenues in 2021. New York contributed 10% of total billboard revenues in 2022 and contributed 8% of total billboard revenues in 2021.
For additional information regarding revenues for our billboard displays and transit and other displays by segment, see “ltem 7. Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and “Iltem 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.”
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Renovation, Improvement and Development

The following table sets forth information regarding our digital displays.

Digital Revenues (in millions)

for the Year Ended Number of Digital Displays® as of
Digital Digital Digital Transit
Digital Transit and Total Digital Billboard and Other Total Digital

Location Billboard Other Revenues Displays Displays Displays
December 31, 2023:

United States $ 4095 $ 1437 $ 553.2 1,874 21,593 23,467

Canada 32.2 2.9 35.1 317 101 418

Total $ 4417 % 1466 $ 588.3 2,191 21,694 23,885
December 31, 2022:

United States $ 3685 $ 1371 % 505.6 1,702 15,998 17,700

Canada 32.3 2.0 34.3 268 78 346

Total $ 4008 $ 139.1 $ 539.9 1,970 16,076 18,046
December 31, 2021:

United States $ 2805 $ 803 $ 360.8 1,401 12,610 14,011

Canada 27.6 1.0 28.6 237 120 357

Total $ 3081 $ 813 $ 389.4 1,638 12,730 14,368

(a) Digital display amounts include 4,980 displays reserved for transit agency use in 2023, 4,374 in 2022 and 3,795 in 2021. Our number of digital displays is impacted by

acquisitions, dispositions, management agreements, the net effect of new and lost billboards, and the net effect of won and lost franchises in the period.

Most of our non-maintenance capital expenditures are directed towards new revenue-generating projects, such as the conversion of traditional static
billboard displays to digital, the building of new digital displays and the enhancement of our billboard structures to enable us to charge premium rates. We
have deployed state-of-the-art digital transit displays in connection with several transit franchises we operate and we expect to continue these
deployments over the coming years. We intend to incur significant equipment deployment costs and capital expenditures in coming years to continue
increasing the number of digital displays in our portfolio. See “—Growth Strategy.”

We built or converted 84 digital billboard displays in the U.S. and 45 in Canada in 2023, compared to 110 digital billboard displays in the U.S. and nine in
Canada in 2022, and 77 digital billboard displays in the U.S. and 10 in Canada in 2021. Additionally, we entered into marketing arrangements to sell
advertising on 46 third-party digital billboard displays in the U.S. and two in Canada in 2023, compared to 85 third-party digital billboard displays in the
U.S. in 2022, and 35 third-party billboard displays in the U.S. and four in Canada in 2021.

We built, converted or replaced 5,624 digital transit and other displays in the U.S. and 23 in Canada in 2023, and 3,410 digital transit and other displays
in the U.S. in 2022. Our total number of digital displays is impacted by acquisitions, dispositions, management agreements and the net effect of new and
lost billboards and the net effect of won and lost franchises.

As of December 31, 2023, our average initial investment required for a digital billboard display is approximately $250,000.

We routinely invest capital in the maintenance and repair of our billboard and transit structures. This includes safety initiatives and replaced displays, as
well as new billboard components such as panels, sections, catwalks, lighting and ladders. Our maintenance capital expenditures were $30.2 million in
2023, $25.5 million in 2022 and $25.3 million in 2021. Maintenance capital expenditures also include spending on software and technology, and office

facilities renovations.

In the opinion of management, our outdoor advertising sites and structures are adequately covered by insurance.
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Contract Expirations

We derive revenues primarily from providing advertising space to customers on our advertising structures and sites. Our contracts with customers
generally cover periods ranging from four weeks to one year and are generally billed every four weeks. Since contract terms are short-term in nature,
revenues by year of contract expiration are not considered meaningful.

Our transit businesses require us to periodically obtain and renew contracts with municipalities and other governmental entities. All of these contracts
have fixed terms, are typically terminable for convenience at the option of the governmental entity (other than with respect to the MTA), and generally
provide for payments to the governmental entity based on a percentage of the revenues generated under the contract and/or a guaranteed minimum
annual payment, and some may require us to incur capital expenditures. When these contracts expire, we generally must participate in highly competitive
bidding processes in order to obtain or renew contracts. For further information about municipal transit contracts, see “Item 7. Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.”

For information about the property lease contracts relating to our advertising structures and sites, see “ltem 2. Properties.”
Competition

The outdoor advertising industry is fragmented, consisting of several companies operating on a national basis, including our company, Lamar, Clear
Channel Outdoor, JCDecaux and Intersection, as well as hundreds of smaller regional and local companies operating a limited number of displays in a
single or a few local geographic markets. We compete with these companies for both customers and structure and display locations. We also compete
with other media, including online, mobile and social media advertising platforms and traditional advertising platforms (such as television, radio, print and
direct mail marketers). In addition, we compete with a wide variety of out-of-home media, including advertising in shopping centers, airports, movie
theaters, supermarkets and taxis. Advertisers compare relative costs of available media, including average cost per thousand impressions or “CPMs”,
particularly when delivering a message to customers with distinct demographic characteristics. In competing with other media, the outdoor advertising
industry relies on its ability to reach specific markets, geographic areas and/or demographics and its relative cost efficiency.

Seasonality

Our revenues and profits may fluctuate due to seasonal advertising patterns and influences on advertising markets. Typically, our revenues and profits
are highest in the fourth quarter, during the holiday shopping season, and lowest in the first quarter, as advertisers adjust on spending following the
holiday shopping season. Our revenues and profits may also fluctuate due to external events beyond our control.

Human Capital

We believe we can continue to enhance stockholder value through our purpose-driven business practices that consider the long-term interests of all our
stakeholders, including our employees. We aim to create a workplace where employees feel engaged, rewarded and empowered. Culture plays an
important role in the way we conduct business and attract talent and, as such, we actively promote a culture of collaboration, creativity, inclusivity and
ownership throughout the employee experience.

Our People

As of December 31, 2023, we had a total of 2,375 employees, of which 285 are located in Canada. As of December 31, 2023, 884 employees were sales
and sales-related personnel in the U.S. and 84 were Canadian sales and sales-related personnel. As of December 31, 2023, 2,362, or 99%, of our
employees were full-time employees and 13, or 1%, were part-time employees. Some of these employees are represented by labor unions and are
subject to collective bargaining agreements.

Hiring, developing and retaining employees is important to our business. As our business grows, we place a priority on helping our employees build both
their skills and careers. We provide regular and ongoing employee development and training, through among other things, our annual performance
review process, and employee trainings in sales strategy, technology, safety, compliance, management and leadership skills. We also recognize the
efforts of our employees with a variety of equity, cash and non-cash awards, such as our annual OUTShine! awards, our OUTpace awards and our
President’s Club trips.

We continually monitor our employee turnover rates. In 2023, we experienced lower total employee turnover of 13% compared to 14% in 2022 and 15%
in 2021. Voluntary turnover decreased in 2023 compared to 2022 and decreased in 2022 compared to
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2021. We believe that our culture, competitive compensation and development opportunities have contributed to the low turnover at the Company.

Diversity, Equity and Inclusion

We are committed to promoting a diverse and inclusive working environment. We believe that in order to effectively connect diverse audiences across
markets, we need a workforce that reflects the diversity of the communities we represent and in which we operate. One of our basic principles is treating
everyone with dignity and respect, and we believe it is our responsibility to respect all cultures, backgrounds, ethnicities, genders and sexual orientations.
Our diversity, equity and inclusion program is led by an advisory council and the Company’s co-Chief Diversity Officers as well as our Chief Human
Resources Officer, and is charged with providing programs that focus on the value of diversity, equity and inclusion to the Company’s culture, including
employee resource groups, diversity and inclusion training and events, presentations by keynote speakers, and internship programs, all of which support
inclusion and belonging for all employees, including members of underrepresented communities.

Compensation, Benefits, Health and Safety

We provide an attractive compensation and benefits package to attract and retain key talent and support our employees’ health, well-being and overall
development, including competitive salaries and wages, healthcare and insurance benefits, a 401(k) program, paid time off including for parental leave
and volunteer activities, education assistance, and a broad-based equity program to foster a sense of ownership among the majority of our full-time
employees.

We take the health and safety of our employees very seriously. That is why we have adopted a preventive culture and follow and enforce a strict set of
safety guidelines and training processes under the supervision of our Vice President of Operations Effectiveness and Safety. Our comprehensive training
program is another essential aspect to promoting the safety of our employees. We require all our field operations team members to participate in an
extensive training process and we reinforce and strictly manage these trainings throughout the year. As of December 31, 2023, all of our company-owned
vehicles have been installed with telematic monitoring systems. This allows the Company to proactively monitor our employees to ensure they are
following the best practices in defensive driving, which in turn, should create a safer environment for our employees and the people in the markets we
serve, along with mitigating our insurance costs.

Regulation

The outdoor advertising industry is subject to governmental regulation and enforcement at the federal, state and local levels in the U.S. and Canada.
These regulations have a significant impact on the outdoor advertising industry and our business. The descriptions that follow are summaries and should
be read in conjunction with the texts of the regulations described herein, which are subject to change. The descriptions do not purport to describe all
present and proposed regulations affecting our businesses.

In the U.S., the federal Highway Beautification Act of 1965 (the “HBA”) establishes a framework for the regulation of outdoor advertising on primary and
interstate highways built with federal financial assistance. As a condition to federal highway assistance, the HBA requires states to restrict billboards on
such highways to commercial and industrial areas, and imposes certain size, spacing and other requirements associated with the installation and
operation of billboards. The HBA also requires the development of state standards, promotes the expeditious removal of illegal signs and requires just
compensation for takings, on affected roadways. These state restrictions and standards, or their local and municipal counterparts, as described below,
may be modified, replaced or invalidated over time in response to third party legal challenges or otherwise, which could affect prevailing competitive
conditions in our markets in a variety of ways and/or have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. See “Item 1A.
Risk Factors—Risks Related to Our Business and Operations—Government regulation of outdoor advertising, including any changes to such regulation,
may restrict our outdoor advertising operations and our ability to increase the number of advertising displays in our portfolio.”

Municipal and county governments generally also have sign controls as part of their zoning laws and building codes, and many have adopted standards
more restrictive than the federal requirements. Some state and local government regulations prohibit construction of new billboards and some allow new
construction only to replace existing structures. Other laws and regulations throughout the U.S. and Canada limit or prohibit the ability to modify, relocate,
rebuild, replace, repair, maintain and upgrade advertising structures, particularly those structures that are “legal nonconforming” (i.e., that conformed with
applicable regulations when built but which no longer conform to current regulations), and impose restrictions on the construction, repair, maintenance,
lighting, operation, upgrading, height, size, spacing and location of outdoor structures generally and/or on the surrounding land and vegetation, as well as
on the use of new technologies such as digital signs. In addition, from time to time,
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third parties or local governments commence proceedings in which they assert that we own or operate structures that are not properly permitted or
otherwise in strict compliance with applicable law.

Governmental regulation of advertising displays also limits our installation of additional advertising displays, restricts advertising displays to
governmentally controlled sites or permits the installation of advertising displays in a manner that could benefit our competitors disproportionately, any of
which could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Although state and local government authorities from time to time use the power of eminent domain to remove billboards, U.S. law requires payment of
compensation if a state or political subdivision compels the removal of a lawful billboard along a primary or interstate highway that was built with federal
financial assistance. Additionally, many states require similar compensation (or relocation) with regard to compelled removals of lawful billboards in other
locations, although the methodology used to determine such compensation varies by jurisdiction. Some local governments in the U.S. and Canada have
attempted to force the removal of billboards after a period of years under a concept called amortization. Under this concept the governmental body
asserts that just compensation has been earned by continued operation of the billboard over a period of time. In Canada, billboards may be expropriated
for public purposes with compensation (or relocation) determined on a case-by-case basis. Thus far, we have generally been able to obtain satisfactory
compensation for our billboards purchased or removed as a result of governmental action, although there is no assurance that this will continue to be the
case in the future.

A number of federal, state and local governments in the U.S. and Canada have implemented, or introduced legislation to impose, taxes (including taxes
on revenues from outdoor advertising or for the right to use outdoor advertising assets), fees and registration requirements in an effort to decrease or
restrict the number of outdoor advertising structures and sites or raise revenues, or both. Several jurisdictions have already imposed taxes based on a
percentage of our outdoor advertising revenue in those jurisdictions. In addition, some jurisdictions have taxed our personal property and leasehold
interests in outdoor advertising locations using various other valuation methodologies. We expect the U.S. and Canada to continue to try to impose such
laws as a way of increasing their revenue and restricting outdoor advertising.

Further, certain laws and regulations may affect prevailing competitive conditions in our markets in a variety of ways, including reducing our expansion
opportunities, or increasing or reducing competitive pressure on us from other members of the outdoor advertising industry and/or other parties who wish
to engage in outdoor advertising. No assurance can be given that existing or future laws or regulations, and the enforcement thereof, will not materially
and adversely affect the outdoor advertising industry. See “ltem 1A. Risk Factors—Risks Related to Our Business and Operations—Taxes, fees and
registration requirements may reduce our profits or expansion opportunities.” However, we contest laws and regulations that we believe unlawfully restrict
our constitutional or other legal rights and may adversely impact the growth of our outdoor advertising business.

Restrictions on outdoor advertising of certain products, services and content are or may be imposed by federal, state and local laws and regulations, as
well as contracts with municipalities and transit franchise partners. For example, certain classes and types of tobacco products have been effectively
banned from outdoor advertising in all of the jurisdictions in which we currently do business.

As the owner or operator of various real properties and facilities, we must comply with various federal, state and local environmental, health and safety
laws and regulations in the U.S. and Canada. We and our properties are subject to such laws and regulations related to the use, storage, disposal,
emission and release of hazardous and nonhazardous substances and employee health and safety. Historically, with the exception of safety upgrades,
we have not incurred significant expenditures to comply with these laws.

We intend to expand the deployment of digital billboards that display digital advertising copy from various advertisers that change up to several times per
minute. We have encountered some existing regulations in the U.S. and Canada that restrict or prohibit these types of digital displays. Furthermore, as
digital advertising displays are introduced into the market on a large scale, existing regulations that currently do not apply to digital advertising displays by
their terms could be revised to impose specific restrictions on digital advertising displays due to alleged concerns over, among other things, aesthetics or
driver safety.

We are subject to numerous federal, state, local and foreign laws, rules and regulations as well as industry standards and regulations regarding privacy,
information security, data and consumer protection (including with respect to personally identifiable information), among other things. Many of these laws
and industry standards and regulations are still evolving and changes in the nature of the data that we collect, purchase and utilize, and the ways that
data is permitted to be collected, stored, used and/or shared (including with respect to artificial intelligence, machine learning and automated processing)
may negatively impact the way that we are able to conduct business, particularly our digital display platform. Additionally, no cybersecurity
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measures are impenetrable, and if a cybersecurity incident occurs, we could lose competitively sensitive proprietary business information, disclose
personally identifiable information, and/or suffer significant disruptions to our business operations, particularly our digital advertising displays, which could
result in, among other things, regulatory investigations, legal proceedings and/or remedial actions relating to our cybersecurity measures. See “ltem 1A.
Risk Factors—Risks Related to Our Business and Operations—Changes in regulations and consumer concerns regarding privacy, information security
and data, or any failure or perceived failure to comply with these regulations or our internal policies, could negatively impact our business” and “ltem 1A.
Risk Factors—Risks Related to Our Business and Operations—If we experience a cybersecurity incident, we may suffer reputational harm and significant
legal and financial exposure.”

Policies with Respect to Certain Activities

The following is a discussion of certain of our investment, financing and other policies. We intend to conduct our business in a manner such that we are
not treated as an “investment company” under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended. In addition, we intend to conduct our business in a
manner that is consistent with maintaining our qualification to be taxed as a REIT. These policies may be amended or revised from time to time at the
discretion of our board of directors without a vote of our stockholders.

Investment Policies

Investment in Real Estate or Interests in Real Estate . Our investment objective is to maximize after-tax cash flow. We intend to achieve this objective by
developing our existing advertising structures and sites, including through the digital modernization of such advertising structures and sites, and by
building and acquiring new advertising structures and sites. We currently intend to invest in advertising structures and sites located primarily in major
metropolitan areas. Future development or investment activities will not be limited to any specific percentage of our assets or to any geographic area or
type of advertising structure or site. While we may diversify in terms of location, size and market, we do not have any limit on the amount or percentage of
our assets that may be invested in any one property or any one geographic area. In addition, we may purchase or lease properties for long-term
investment, improve the properties we presently own or other acquired properties, or lease such properties, in whole or in part, when circumstances
warrant.

We may enter into multi-year contracts with municipalities and transit operators for the right to display advertising copy on the interior and exterior of rail
and subway cars, buses, benches, trams, trains, transit shelters, street kiosks and transit platforms. In addition, we may participate with third parties in
property ownership through joint ventures or other types of co-ownership.

Investments in acquired advertising structures and sites, directly or in connection with joint ventures, may be subject to existing mortgage financing and
other indebtedness or to new indebtedness that may be incurred in connection with acquiring or refinancing these properties. We do not currently have
any restrictions on the number or amount of mortgages that may be placed on any one advertising site or structure. Debt service on such financing or
indebtedness will have a priority over any distributions with respect to our common stock.

Investments in Securities of or Interests in Persons Primarily Engaged in Real Estate Activities and Other Issuers. We have and may in the future invest
in securities or interests of other issuers, including REITs and entities engaged in real estate activities, directly or in connection with joint ventures or in
connection with other strategic transactions. We have not and do not currently anticipate investing in securities of other issuers for the purpose of
exercising control over such entities, acquiring any investments primarily for sale in the ordinary course of business, or holding any investments with a
view to making short-term gains from their sale, but we may engage in these activities in the future. Since we must comply with various requirements
under the Code in order to maintain our qualification to be taxed as a REIT, our ability to engage in certain investments and acquisitions may be limited.
See “ltem 1A. Risk Factors—Risks Related to Our Corporate and REIT Structure.”

Investments in Other Securities. We may in the future invest in additional securities such as non-corporate bonds. We have no present intention to make
any such investments, except for investments in cash equivalents in the ordinary course of business. Future investment activities in additional securities
will not be limited to any specific percentage of our assets or to any specific type of securities or industry group.

Acquisitions and Dispositions. From time to time in the ordinary course of business, we have both acquired and disposed of advertising structures and

sites in order to optimize our portfolio, and we intend to continue to do so in the future. See “—Acquisition and Disposition Activity” and “—Growth
Strategy.”
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Investments in Real Estate Mortgages. We have not invested in, nor do we have any present intention to invest in, real estate mortgages, although we
are not prohibited from doing so.

Financing and Leverage Policy

We may, when appropriate, employ leverage and use debt as a means to finance growth in our business, refinance existing debt, to provide additional
funds to distribute to stockholders, and/or for corporate purposes. The Company, along with Outfront Media Capital LLC (“Finance LLC") and Outfront
Media Capital Corporation (“Finance Corp.” and together with Finance LLC, the “Borrowers”) and other guarantor subsidiaries party thereto, are parties to
a credit agreement, dated as of January 31, 2014 (as amended, restated, amended and restated, supplemented or otherwise modified, the “Credit
Agreement”), pursuant to which the Borrowers may borrow funds under a $500.0 million revolving credit facility, which matures in 2028 (the “Revolving
Credit Facility”) and have incurred outstanding indebtedness of $600.0 million under a term loan due in 2026 (the “Term Loan,” together with the
Revolving Credit Facility, the “Senior Credit Facilities”). Since 2014, the Borrowers have also been parties to agreements governing our standalone letter
of credit facilities. As of December 31, 2023, we had issued letters of credit totaling approximately $75.6 million under our aggregate $81.0 million
standalone letter of credit facilities. Additionally, since 2014, the Borrowers have issued senior notes in several private placement transactions and
redeemed certain of these senior notes. As of December 31, 2023, of the senior notes issued by the Borrowers, $650.0 million aggregate principal
amount of 5.000% Senior Unsecured Notes due 2027 (the “2027 Notes”), $500.0 million aggregate principal amount of 4.250% Senior Unsecured Notes
due 2029 (the “2029 Notes”), $500.0 million aggregate principal amount of 4.625% Senior Unsecured Notes due 2030 (the “2030 Notes”) and $450.0
million aggregate principal amount of 7.375% Senior Secured Notes due 2031 (the “2031 Notes” and collectively with the 2027 Notes, the 2029 Notes
and the 2030 Notes, the “Notes”) remain outstanding. In addition, as of December 31, 2023, we have a $150.0 million revolving accounts receivable
securitization facility (the “AR Facility”), which terminates in 2025, unless further extended. We have, and from time to time we may, draw funds from the
Revolving Credit Facility and/or the AR Facility or other credit facilities that we may establish for specific or general corporate purposes, subject to
borrowing capacities available under these facilities. For more information, see “Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations—Liquidity and Capital Resources.”

The Company’s Charter (our “charter”) and the Company’s Amended and Restated Bylaws (our “bylaws”) do not limit the amount or percentage of
indebtedness that we may incur, nor have we adopted any policies addressing this. The Credit Agreement, the agreements governing the AR Facility and
the indentures governing the Notes contain, and any future debt agreements may contain, covenants that place restrictions on us and our subsidiaries.
Our board of directors may limit our debt incurrence to be more restrictive than our debt covenants allow and from time to time may modify these
restrictions in light of then-current economic conditions, relative costs of debt and equity capital, market values of our properties, general conditions in the
market for debt and equity securities, fluctuations in the market price of our common stock, growth and acquisition opportunities and other factors. If
these restrictions are relaxed, we could become more highly leveraged, resulting in an increased risk of default on our obligations and a related increase
in debt service requirements. See “ltem 1A. Risk Factors.”

Lending Policies

We do not intend to engage in significant lending activities, although we do not have a policy limiting our ability to make loans to third parties. We may
consider offering purchase money financing in connection with the sale of properties. Other than loans to joint ventures in which we participate and loans
to joint venture partners, which we have made, and may continue to make, we have not made any loans to third parties.

Company Securities Policies

In the future, we may issue debt securities (including senior securities), offer common stock, preferred stock, convertible securities or options to purchase
common stock in exchange for property, and/or repurchase or otherwise reacquire our common stock or other securities in the open market or otherwise.
Except in connection with the Notes, Class A equity interests of a subsidiary of the Company that controls its Canadian business in connection with the
acquisition of outdoor advertising assets in Canada, the ATM Program and the Series A Preferred Stock (each as defined and described in “Item 7.
Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Liquidity and Capital Resources”) and stock-based employee
and consultant compensation, in the past four years, we have not offered or issued debt securities, common stock, preferred stock, convertible securities,
options to purchase common stock or any other securities in exchange for property or any other purpose. Our charter authorizes us to issue additional
authorized but unissued shares of common or preferred stock. In addition, our charter permits a majority of our entire board of directors to, without
common stockholder approval, amend our charter to increase or decrease the aggregate number of shares of stock or the number of shares of stock of
any class or series that we have authority to issue. We have not engaged in trading, underwriting or agency distribution or sale of securities of other
issuers and do not intend to do so.
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We make available to our stockholders our Annual Report on Form 10-K, including our audited financial statements, and other required periodic reports
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC"). See “—Auvailable Information.”

Conflict of Interest Policies

Policies Applicable to All Directors and Officers. The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct that applies to all executive officers, employees and
directors of the Company. In addition, the Company has adopted a Supplemental Code of Ethics applicable to our principal executive officer, principal
financial officer and principal accounting officer and controller or persons performing similar functions. The Code of Conduct and Supplemental Code of
Ethics are designed to promote honest and ethical conduct, including the ethical handling of actual or apparent conflicts of interest between our
employees, officers and directors and us. However, there can be no assurance that these policies or provisions of law will always be successful in
eliminating the influence of such conflicts.

Interested Director and Officer Transactions. Pursuant to the Maryland General Corporation Law (the “MGCL"), a contract or other transaction between
us and any of our directors or between us and any other corporation or other entity in which any of our directors is a director or has a material financial
interest is not void or voidable solely on the grounds of such common directorship or interest, the presence of such director at the meeting of the board of
directors or committee of the board of directors at which the contract or transaction is authorized, approved or ratified or the counting of the director’s
vote in favor thereof, provided that: (1) the fact of the common directorship or interest is disclosed or known to our board of directors or a committee of
our board, and our board or committee authorizes, approves or ratifies the transaction or contract by the affirmative vote of a majority of disinterested
directors, even if the disinterested directors constitute less than a quorum; (2) the fact of the common directorship or interest is disclosed or known to our
stockholders entitled to vote thereon, and the transaction or contract is authorized, approved or ratified by a majority of the votes cast by the stockholders
entitled to vote other than the votes of shares owned of record or beneficially owned by the interested director or corporation, firm or other entity; or (3)
the transaction or contract is fair and reasonable to us.

Available Information

Our website address is www.outfront.com. We are subject to the informational requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the
“Exchange Act"), and file or furnish reports, proxy statements, and other information with the SEC, including Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly
Reports on Form 10-Q and Current Reports on Form 8-K and amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the
Exchange Act. Such reports and other information filed by the Company with the SEC are available free of charge in the Investor Relations section of our
website as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file such material with, or furnish it to, the SEC. The SEC maintains an Internet site that
contains reports, proxy and information statements and other information regarding issuers that file electronically with the SEC at www.sec.gov. The
contents of the websites referred to above are not incorporated into this filing.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors.

You should carefully consider the following risks, together with all of the other information in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, including “Item 7.
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and our consolidated financial statements and the notes
thereto in “Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data,” before investing in the Company. The occurrence of any of the following risks might
cause you to lose all or a part of your investment. Certain statements in the following risk factors constitute forward-looking statements. See “Cautionary
Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Statements.”

Risks Related to Our Business and Operations

Our business is sensitive to a decline in advertising expenditures, general economic conditions and other external events beyond our control.

We derive our revenues from providing advertising space to customers on out-of-home advertising structures and sites. A decline in the economic
prospects of advertisers, the economy in general or the economy of any individual geographic market or industry, particularly a market or industry in
which we conduct substantial business and derive a significant portion of our revenues, such as the New York and Los Angeles metropolitan areas, and
the entertainment, retail and health/medical industries, could alter current or prospective advertisers’ spending priorities. See “Item 1. Business—Our
Portfolio of Outdoor Advertising Structures and Sites.” In addition, disasters, acts of terrorism, disease outbreaks and pandemics (such as the COVID-19
pandemic), hostilities, wars, political uncertainty, extraordinary weather events (such as hurricanes), power outages, technological changes and shifts in
market demographics and transportation patterns (including reductions in foot traffic, roadway traffic, commuting, transit ridership and overall target
audiences due to remote work, safety concerns or otherwise) caused by the foregoing or otherwise, could interrupt our ability to build, deploy, and/or
display advertising on, advertising structures and sites, and/or lead to a reduction in economic certainty and advertising expenditures. Any reduction in
advertising expenditures could adversely affect our business, financial condition or results of operations. Further, advertising expenditure patterns may be
impacted by any of these factors; for example, advertisers’ expenditures may be made with less advance notice and may become difficult to forecast
from period to period. We are also experiencing the economic effects of the current heightened levels of inflation on our income and expenses,
particularly with respect to our posting, maintenance and other expenses, some of our corporate expenses, and our interest expense. Though we cannot
reasonably estimate the full impact of the current heightened levels of inflation on our business, financial condition and results of operations at this time, a
portion of these increases may be partially offset by increases in advertising rates on our displays and cost efficiencies. See “ltem 7. Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.”

Pandemics could materially adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

As we experienced throughout the COVID-19 pandemic, pandemics, and the related preventative measures taken to help curb infectious spread,
including shutdowns and slowdowns of, and restrictions on, businesses, public gatherings, social interactions and travel (including reductions in foot
traffic, roadway traffic, commuting, transit ridership and overall target audiences) may (i) delay our ability to build and deploy certain advertising structures
and sites, including digital displays; (ii) reduce or curtail our customers’ advertising expenditures and overall demand for our services through purchase
cancellations or otherwise; (iii) increase the volatility of our customers’ advertising expenditure patterns from period-to-period through short-notice
purchases, purchase deferrals or otherwise; and (iv) extend delays in the collection of certain earned advertising revenues from our customers, all of
which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

In addition, pandemics could impact the global economy and our business if we (i) experience a complete or partial shutdown of our ability to operate
safely and securely, (ii) lose major customers and/or key personnel, (iii) experience significant disruptions (including inflationary price increases) with
respect to our manufacturers, suppliers and related logistics that may prevent us from fulfilling our contractual obligations to our counterparties, (iv) fail to
satisfy our contractual obligations and/or need to seek relief from our contractual obligations that we may be unable to receive from our counterparties, (v)
fail to realize the benefits of any cost savings initiatives such as suspending, deferring and/or reducing capital expenditures and other expenses, (Vi)
experience impairment charges, (vii) experience a cybersecurity incident, and (viii) have difficulties accessing the capital markets and/or obtaining or
incurring debt financing on reasonable pricing or other terms or at all, any of which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition and results of operations. See “Our business is sensitive to a decline in advertising expenditures, general economic conditions and other
external events beyond our control,” “—Operating our digital display platform may be more difficult, costly or time consuming than expected and the
anticipated benefits may not be fully realized,” and “—The terms of the agreements governing our indebtedness restrict our current and future operations,
particularly our ability to incur debt that we may need to fund initiatives in response to changes in our business, the industries in which we operate, the
economy and governmental regulations.”
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The extent to which any pandemic will impact our business will depend on future developments, including the severity and duration of such pandemic
and the measures taken in response to such pandemic, which are highly uncertain and cannot be predicted. Accordingly, the Company cannot
reasonably estimate the full impact of any other pandemic that may occur on our business, financial condition and results of operations at this time, which
may be material.

We operate in a highly competitive industry.

The outdoor advertising industry is fragmented, consisting of a few companies operating on a national basis, such as our company, Lamar, Clear
Channel Outdoor, JCDecaux and Intersection, as well as hundreds of smaller regional and local companies operating a limited number of displays in a
single or a few local geographic markets. We compete with these companies for both customers and display locations. If our competitors offer advertising
displays at rates below the rates we charge our customers, we could lose potential customers and could be pressured to reduce our rates below those
currently charged to retain customers, which could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. A majority of our
display locations are leased, and a significant portion of those leases are month-to-month or have a short remaining term. If our competitors offer to lease
display locations at rental rates higher than the rental rates we offer, we could lose display locations and could be pressured to increase rental rates
above those we currently pay to site landlords, which could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. In
addition, installation of advertising displays, especially digital advertising displays, by us or our competitors at a pace that exceeds the ability of the
market to derive new revenues from those displays could also have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

We also compete with other media, including online, mobile and social media advertising platforms and traditional platforms (such as television, radio,
print and direct mail marketers). In addition, we compete with a wide variety of out-of-home media, including advertising in shopping centers, airports,
movie theaters, supermarkets and taxis. Advertisers compare relative costs of available media, including the average cost per thousand impressions or
“CPM,” particularly when delivering a message to customers with distinct demographic characteristics. In competing with other media, the outdoor
advertising industry relies on its relative cost efficiency and its ability to reach specific markets, geographic areas and/or demographics. If we are unable
to compete on these terms, we could lose potential customers and could be pressured to reduce rates below those we currently charge to retain
customers, which could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Further, as digital advertising technology continues to develop, our competitors may be able to offer products that are, or that are seen to be, substantially
similar to or better than ours. This may force us to compete in different ways and incur additional costs, become subject to additional governmental
regulations, and/or expend resources in order to remain competitive. If our competitors are more successful than we are in developing digital advertising
products or in attracting and retaining customers, our business, financial condition and results of operations could be adversely affected.

Government regulation of outdoor advertising, including any changes to such regulation, may restrict our outdoor advertising operations and
our ability to increase the number of advertising displays in our portfolio.

The outdoor advertising industry is subject to governmental regulation and enforcement at the federal, state and local levels in the U.S. and Canada.
These regulations have a significant impact on the outdoor advertising industry and our business. See “Part |, Item 1. Business—Regulation.” If there are
changes in laws and regulations affecting outdoor advertising at any level of government (including by modification, replacement or invalidation in
response to third party legal challenges, or otherwise), if there are changes in the enforcement of regulations or if there are allegations of noncompliance
with laws or regulations that we are unable to resolve, our structures and sites could be subject to removal or modification and/or prevailing competitive
conditions in our markets could be affected in a variety of ways, which could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of
operations. Further, if we are unable to obtain acceptable arrangements or compensation in circumstances in which our structures and sites are subject
to removal or modification, it could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. In addition, governmental
regulation and enforcement of advertising displays, especially digital advertising displays, may limit our ability to install new advertising displays, restrict
advertising displays to governmentally controlled sites or permit the installation of advertising displays in a manner that could benefit our competitors
disproportionately, any of which could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. Further, as digital advertising
displays are introduced into the market on a large scale, new or revised regulations could impose specific restrictions on the installation or use of digital
advertising displays.
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Operating our digital display platform may be more difficult, costly or time consuming than expected and the anticipated benefits may not be
fully realized.

The success of the digital display platform we provide to our customers and partners (including the MTA) through deployment and maintenance of digital
advertising displays, enhancements to our digital advertising displays, and the use of programmatic and direct sale advertising platform technologies, and
the realization of any anticipated benefits, will depend, in part, on our ability to execute and demonstrate the value-added capabilities of our digital display
platform to our customers and partners, and our ability to deliver these products in a timely manner in satisfaction of our contractual obligations. If we fail
to satisfy our contractual obligations and any such failures cannot be resolved, and/or the digital display platform that we provide to our customers and
partners do not meet their expectations or are found to be defective, or if we are unable to realize the anticipated benefits of these products due to
reduced market demand for these products or digital advertising generally (including as a result of reduced transit ridership due to remote work, safety
concerns or otherwise), then we may incur financial liability, which could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of
operation.

Operating our digital display platform for our transit franchise partners in satisfaction of our contractual obligations requires us to incur significant costs,
which we may not be able to recover from our customer sales or transit franchise partners. See “ltem 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Liquidity and Capital Resources.” Any costs currently anticipated may significantly increase if we incur
cost overruns due to (i) technical difficulties; (ii) the increased costs of data, digital displays, materials and labor; (iii) suspensions or delays in installation
and/or construction caused by us, our subcontractors, our transit franchise partners or due to external events beyond anyone’s control or otherwise; (iv)
insurance, bonding and litigation expenses; or (v) other factors beyond our control, which could have an adverse effect on our business, financial
condition and results of operations, including cash flow timing and negative publicity. We may utilize third-party financing to fund these costs, which could
subject the Company to additional costs, liabilities and risks. See —“Despite our substantial indebtedness level, we and our subsidiaries may be able to
incur substantially more indebtedness, including secured indebtedness. This could further exacerbate the risks to our financial condition described
above.” In addition, if we are not able to recover these costs from our customer sales or transit franchise partners, we could suffer impairment charges.
For example, in 2023, we suffered impairment charges in connection with our agreements with our transit franchise partners, primarily our agreement
with the MTA . See “—We could suffer losses due to impairment in the carrying value of our long-lived assets and goodwill.”

Further, we rely on third parties to manufacture, transport and install digital displays, and provide programmatic and direct sale advertising platform
technologies for our display inventory, and if we are not able to engage third parties on reasonable pricing or other terms due to insufficient capacity or
plant closures of a particular manufacturer, market-wide supply shortages, labor shortages, logistics disruptions, software issues, inflationary price
increases or otherwise, or if the third parties that we do engage fail to meet their obligations to us, whether due to external events beyond anyone’s
control or otherwise, we may be unable to operate our digital display platform in an effective manner or at all, and may fail to satisfy our contractual
obligations, which could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

We may incur material losses and costs as a result of recalls and product liability, warranty and intellectual property claims that may be
brought against us.

If any of our digital displays become subject to a recall, our customers may hold us responsible for some or all of the repair or replacement costs of these
digital displays under our contractual obligations, which could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations,
including negative publicity. In addition, we may be exposed to product liability and warranty claims in the event that our digital displays actually or
allegedly fail to perform as expected, or the use of our digital displays results, or is alleged to result, in death, bodily injury, and/or property damage, which
could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Further, we face the risk of claims that we have infringed third parties’ intellectual property rights with respect to our digital display platform, digital
displays and/or any other new products we develop, which could be expensive and time consuming to defend, could require us to alter our digital display
platform, digital displays and/or any new products, prevent us from selling advertising on and/or using our digital display platform, digital displays and/or
any new products, and/or could require us to pay license, royalty or other fees to third parties in order to continue using our digital display platform, digital
displays and/or any new products.
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The success of our transit advertising business is dependent on obtaining and renewing key municipal contracts on favorable terms.

Our transit advertising business requires us to obtain and renew contracts with municipalities and other governmental entities. All of these contracts have
fixed terms, are typically terminable for convenience at the option of the governmental entity (other than with respect to the MTA), and generally provide
for payments to the governmental entity based on a percentage of the revenues generated under the contract and/or a guaranteed minimum annual
payment, and some may require us to incur capital expenditures. When these contracts expire, we generally must participate in highly competitive
bidding processes in order to obtain a new contract. Our inability to successfully obtain or renew these contracts on favorable economic terms or at all
could have an adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations. See “ltem 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations.” In addition, the loss of a key municipal contract in one location could adversely affect our ability to compete in other
locations by reducing our scale and ability to offer customers multi-regional and national advertising campaigns. These factors could have an adverse
effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Taxes, fees and registration requirements may reduce our profits or expansion opportunities.

A number of federal, state and local governments in the U.S. and Canada have implemented or initiated taxes (including taxes on revenue from outdoor
advertising or for the right to use outdoor advertising assets), fees and registration requirements in an effort to decrease or restrict the number of outdoor
advertising structures and sites or raise revenue, or both. For example, a tax was imposed on the outdoor advertising industry in Toronto. These laws
may affect prevailing competitive conditions in our markets in a variety of ways, including reducing our expansion opportunities, or increasing or reducing
competitive pressure on us from other members of the outdoor advertising industry. See—"“We operate in a highly competitive industry.” These efforts
may continue, and, if we are unable to compete and/or pass on the cost of these items to our customers, the increased imposition of these measures
could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Government compensation for the removal of lawful billboards could decrease.

Although federal, state and local government authorities from time to time use the power of eminent domain to remove billboards, U.S. law requires
payment of compensation if a government authority compels the removal of a lawful billboard along a primary or interstate highway that was built with
federal financial assistance. Additionally, many states require similar compensation (or relocation) with regard to compelled removals of lawful billboards
in other locations, although the methodology used to determine such compensation varies by jurisdiction. Some local governments in the U.S. and
Canada have attempted to force the removal of billboards after a period of years under a concept called amortization. Under this concept, the
governmental body asserts that just compensation has been earned by continued operation of the billboard over a period of time. Thus far, we have
generally been able to obtain satisfactory compensation for our billboards purchased or removed as a result of governmental action, although there is no
assurance that this will continue to be the case in the future, and, if it does not continue to be the case, there could be an adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and results of operations.

Content-based restrictions on outdoor advertising may further restrict the categories of customers that can advertise using our structures
and sites.

Restrictions on outdoor advertising of certain products, services or other content are or may be imposed by federal, state and local laws and regulations,
as well as contracts with municipalities and transit franchise partners. For example, certain classes and types of tobacco products have been effectively
banned from outdoor advertising in all of the jurisdictions in which we currently do business. In addition, state and local governments in some cases limit
outdoor advertising of alcohol, which represented 3% of our U.S. Media segment revenues in 2023, 3% in 2022 and 4% in 2021. Further, certain
municipalities and transit franchise partners limit issue-based outdoor advertising. Content-based restrictions could cause a reduction in our revenues
from leasing advertising space on outdoor advertising displays that display such advertisements and a simultaneous increase in the available space on
the existing inventory of displays in the outdoor advertising industry, which could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results
of operations.

Our operating results are subject to seasonal variations and other factors.
Our business has experienced and is expected to continue to experience seasonality due to, among other things, seasonal advertising patterns and
seasonal influences on advertising markets. Typically, our revenues and profits are highest in the fourth quarter, during the holiday shopping season, and

lowest in the first quarter, as advertisers adjust their spending following the holiday shopping season. The effects of such seasonality make it difficult to
estimate future operating results based on the
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previous results of any specific quarter, which may make it difficult to plan capital expenditures and expansion, could affect operating results and could
have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Acquisitions and other strategic transactions that we may pursue could have a negative effect on our results of operations.

We frequently evaluate strategic opportunities both within and outside our existing lines of business. We expect from time to time to pursue additional
acquisitions of businesses and/or assets and other strategic transactions, including technology investments and/or the disposition of certain businesses
and/or assets. These acquisitions or transactions could be material, and involve numerous risks, including:

e acquisitions or other strategic transactions may prove unprofitable and/or fail to generate anticipated cash flows or gains;

* integrating acquired businesses and/or assets may be more difficult, costly or time consuming than expected and the anticipated benefits and
costs savings of such acquisitions or transactions may not be fully realized, for example:

> we may need to recruit additional senior management, as we cannot be assured that senior management of acquired businesses and/or
assets will continue to work for us, and we cannot be certain that our recruiting efforts will succeed;

- unforeseen difficulties could divert significant time, attention and effort from management that could otherwise be directed at developing
existing business;

> we may encounter difficulties expanding corporate infrastructure to facilitate the integration of our operations and systems with those of
acquired businesses and/or assets, which may cause us to lose the benefits of any expansion; and/or

> we may lose billboard leases, franchises or advertisers in connection with such acquisitions or transactions, which could disrupt our ongoing
businesses;

e we may not be aware of all of the risks associated with any acquired businesses and/or assets and certain of our assumptions with respect to
these acquired businesses and/or assets may prove to be inaccurate, which could result in unexpected litigation or regulatory exposure,
unfavorable accounting treatment, unexpected increases in taxes due, a loss of anticipated tax benefits or other adverse effects on our business,
operating results or financial condition;

* we may not be able to obtain financing necessary to fund potential acquisitions or strategic transactions;

« we may face increased competition for acquisitions of businesses and assets from other advertising companies, some of which may have greater
financial resources than we do, which may result in higher prices for those businesses and assets;

¢ we may enter into markets and geographic areas where we have limited or no experience; and

* because we must comply with various requirements under the Code in order to maintain our qualification to be taxed as a REIT, including
restrictions on the types of assets we may hold, the sources of our income and accumulation of earnings and profits, our ability to engage in
certain acquisitions or strategic transactions, such as acquisitions of C corporations, may be limited. See “—Risks Related to Our Corporate and
REIT Structure—Complying with REIT requirements may cause us to liquidate investments or forgo otherwise attractive opportunities.”

Further, acquisitions and dispositions by us may require antitrust review by U.S. federal antitrust agencies and may require review by foreign antitrust
agencies under the antitrust laws of foreign jurisdictions. We can give no assurances that the U.S. Department of Justice, the U.S. Federal Trade
Commission or foreign antitrust agencies will not seek to bar or limit us from acquiring or disposing of additional advertising businesses in any market.

We are dependent on our management team, and the loss of senior executive officers or other key employees could have an adverse effect on
our business, financial condition and results of operations.

We believe our future success depends on the continued service and skills of our existing management team and other key employees with experience
and business relationships within their respective roles, including landlord and customer relationships. The loss of one or more of these key personnel
could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations because of their skills, knowledge of the market, years of
industry experience and the difficulty of finding qualified replacement personnel. If any of these personnel were to leave and compete with us, it could
have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.
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We face diverse risks in our Canadian business, including risks related to the sale of our Canadian business, which could adversely affect our
business, financial condition and results of operations.

Our Canadian business contributed approximately $92.1 million to total revenues in 2023, approximately $91.9 million to total revenues in 2022 and
approximately $78.3 million to total revenues in 2021. Inherent risks in our Canadian business activities could decrease our Canadian sales and have an
adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. These risks include potentially unfavorable Canadian economic conditions,
political conditions or national priorities, Canadian government regulation and changes in such regulation, violations of applicable anti-corruption laws or
regulations, potential expropriation of assets by the Canadian government, the failure to bridge cultural differences and limited or prohibited access to our
Canadian operations and the support they provide. We may also have difficulty repatriating profits or be adversely affected by exchange rate fluctuations
in our Canadian business.

On October 22, 2023, we entered into the Share Purchase Agreement relating to the sale of the Canadian Business in the Transaction. See “Part I, Item
1. Business—Acquisition and Disposition Activity.” Consummating the Transaction may be more difficult, costly, or time consuming for us and our
management than expected and the anticipated benefits of the Transaction may not be fully realized. In addition, the Transaction parties may be unable
to satisfy closing conditions, including necessary regulatory approval for the Transaction (or obtaining regulatory approval for the Transaction subject to
conditions that are not anticipated), which could delay or cause the parties to abandon or terminate the Transaction. See “—Acquisitions and other
strategic transactions that we may pursue could have a negative effect on our results of operations.”

If we experience a cybersecurity incident, we may suffer reputational harm and significant legal and financial exposure.

Although we have implemented physical and logical cybersecurity measures and processes, along with crisis management procedures, designed to
protect against the loss, misuse and alteration of our websites, digital assets and proprietary business information as well as consumer, business partner
and advertiser personally identifiable information, no cybersecurity measures are impenetrable and we have experienced and remain subject to attempts
to access our networks and assets by unauthorized parties. See “Item 1C. Cybersecurity.” Further, because techniques used to obtain unauthorized
access and degrade or disable systems change frequently and often are not recognized until launched against a target, we may be unable to anticipate
these techniques or implement adequate preventative measures. A cybersecurity incident could occur due to the acts or omissions of third parties
(including third parties with which we do business), employee error, malfeasance, fraud, system errors or vulnerabilities, or otherwise. An increase in the
number of our employees and third parties with which we do business working remotely may increase the risk of a cybersecurity incident, which has
required us to modify our physical and logical cybersecurity measures. If a cybersecurity incident occurs, we could lose competitively sensitive proprietary
business information, disclose personally identifiable information, and/or suffer significant disruptions to our business operations, particularly our digital
advertising displays. In addition, the public perception of the effectiveness of our cybersecurity measures, products and/or services could be harmed as
well as our overall reputation, which could put us at a competitive disadvantage. Accordingly, if we or third parties with which we do business were to
suffer a cybersecurity incident, we could suffer significant legal and financial exposure in connection with our failure to satisfy certain contractual
obligations, a loss of business partners and advertisers, regulatory investigations, legal proceedings and/or remedial actions relating to our cybersecurity
measures, which could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operation. Although we possess cybersecurity
insurance, any financial liabilities arising from a cybersecurity incident may not be sufficiently covered by our insurance.

Changes in regulations and consumer concerns regarding privacy, information security and data, or any failure or perceived failure to comply
with these regulations or our internal policies, could negatively impact our business.

We collect, purchase and utilize demographic and other information from and about consumers, business partners, advertisers and website users. We
are subject to numerous federal, state, local and foreign laws, rules and regulations as well as industry standards and regulations regarding privacy,
information security, data and consumer protection (including with respect to personally identifiable information), among other things. Many of these laws
and industry standards and regulations are still evolving and changes in the nature of the data that we collect, purchase and utilize, and the ways that
data is permitted to be collected, stored, used and/or shared (including with respect to artificial intelligence, machine learning and automated processing)
may negatively impact the way that we are able to conduct business, particularly our digital display platform. In addition, changes in consumer
expectations and demands regarding privacy, information security and data may result in further restrictions on the nature of the data that we collect,
purchase and utilize, and the ways we derive economic value from this data, which may limit our ability to offer targeted advertising opportunities to our
business partners and advertisers. Although we monitor regulatory changes and have implemented internal policies and procedures designed to comply
with all applicable laws, rules, industry standards and regulations, any failure or perceived failure by us to comply with applicable regulatory requirements
or our internal policies related to privacy, information security, data and/or consumer protection could result in a
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loss of confidence, a loss of goodwill, damage to our brand, loss of business partners and advertisers, substantial remediation and compliance costs,
adverse regulatory proceedings and/or civil litigation, which could negatively impact our business.

We could suffer losses due to impairment in the carrying value of our long-lived assets and goodwill.

A significant portion of our assets are long-lived assets and goodwill. We test our long-lived assets for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
carrying amount of the asset may not be recoverable. If business conditions or other factors cause our results of operations and/or cash flows to decline,
we may be required to record a non-cash asset impairment charge. We test goodwill for impairment during the fourth quarter of each year and between
annual tests if events or circumstances require an interim impairment assessment. A downward revision in the estimated fair value of a reporting unit
could result in a non-cash goodwill impairment charge. For example, as a result of the impairment analysis performed during the second quarter of 2023,
we determined that the carrying value of our U.S. Transit and Other reporting unit exceeded its fair value and we recorded an impairment charge of $47.6
million. During the second quarter of 2023, we also performed an analysis of the carrying value of our long-lived asset groups within our U.S. Transit and
Other reporting unit utilizing undiscounted cash flows compared to the carrying value of the asset groups and determined that they were not fully
recoverable. We then compared the fair value of the assets (calculated using a cash flow model) to the carrying value and we recorded an impairment
charge of $463.5 million, primarily representing a $443.1 million impairment charge related to our MTA asset group. As a result of our continued
expectation of negative aggregate cash flows related to our MTA asset group, we recorded additional impairment charges of $12.1 million in the third
quarter of 2023, representing additional MTA equipment deployment cost spending during the third quarter of 2023, and $11.2 million in the fourth quarter
of 2023, $11.0 million of which represents additional MTA equipment deployment cost spending during the fourth quarter of 2023. Any such impairment
charges could have a material adverse effect on our reported net income, operating income and our stock price. See “Item 7. Management's Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Critical Accounting Policies.”

Environmental, health and safety laws and regulations may limit or restrict some of our operations.

As the owner or operator of various real properties and facilities, we must comply with various federal, state and local environmental, health and safety
laws and regulations in the U.S. and Canada. We and our properties are subject to such laws and regulations related to the use, storage, disposal,
emission, release and remediation of hazardous and nonhazardous substances and employee health and safety. Historically, with the exception of safety
upgrades, we have not incurred significant expenditures to comply with these laws. However, additional laws that may be passed in the future, or a
finding of a violation of or liability under existing laws, could require us to make significant expenditures and otherwise limit or restrict some of our
operations, which could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Expectations relating to environmental, social and governance considerations expose us to potential liabilities, reputational harm and other
unforeseen adverse effects on our business.

Many governments, regulators, investors, employees, customers and other stakeholders are increasingly focused on environmental, social and
governance considerations relating to businesses, including climate change and greenhouse gas emissions, human capital and diversity, equity and
inclusion. We make statements about our environmental, social and governance goals and initiatives through information provided on our website, press
statements and other communications, including our proxy statement. Responding to these environmental, social and governance considerations and
implementation of these goals and initiatives involves risks and uncertainties and requires ongoing investments. The success of our goals and initiatives
may be impacted by factors that are outside our control. In addition, some stakeholders may disagree with our goals and initiatives and the focus and
views of stakeholders may change and evolve over time and vary by the jurisdictions in which we operate. Any failure, or perceived failure, by us to
achieve our goals, further our initiatives, adhere to our public statements, comply with federal, state, local or international environmental, social and
governance laws and regulations, or meet evolving and varied stakeholder expectations and views could have an adverse effect on our business,
financial condition, results of operations and stock price.

Risks Related to Our Indebtedness

We have substantial indebtedness that could adversely affect our financial condition.

As of December 31, 2023, we had total indebtedness of approximately $2.8 billion (consisting of the Term Loan, the Notes and the AR Facility with
outstanding aggregate principal balances of $600.0 million, $2.1 billion and $65.0 million, respectively), undrawn commitments under the Revolving
Credit Facility of $500.0 million, excluding $6.5 million of letters of credit issued against the Revolving Credit Facility, and $85.0 million borrowing capacity

remaining under the AR Facility. See “ltem 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Liquidity and
Capital Resources.”
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Our level of debt could have important consequences, including:

« making it more difficult for us to satisfy our obligations with respect to the Notes and our other debt;

* requiring us to dedicate a substantial portion of our cash flow from operations to payments on indebtedness, thereby reducing the availability of
cash flow to fund acquisitions, working capital, capital expenditures, and strategic business development efforts and other corporate purposes;

e increasing our vulnerability to and limiting our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in the business, the industries in which we
operate, the economy and governmental regulations;

« limiting our ability to make strategic acquisitions or causing us to make non-strategic divestitures;

* exposing us to the risk of rising interest rates as borrowings under the Senior Credit Facilities and the AR Facility are subject to variable rates of
interest;

¢ placing us at a competitive disadvantage compared to our competitors that have less debt; and

« limiting our ability to borrow additional funds.

The terms of the agreements governing our indebtedness restrict our current and future operations, particularly our ability to incur debt that
we may need to fund initiatives in response to changes in our business, the industries in which we operate, the economy and governmental
regulations.

The Credit Agreement and the indentures governing the Notes contain a number of restrictive covenants that impose significant operating and financial
restrictions on us and our subsidiaries and limit our ability to engage in actions that may be in our long-term best interests, including restrictions on our
and our subsidiaries’ ability to:

* incur additional indebtedness;

¢ pay dividends on, repurchase or make distributions in respect of our capital stock (other than dividends or distributions necessary for us to
maintain our REIT status, subject to certain conditions);

¢ make investments or acquisitions;

« sell, transfer or otherwise convey certain assets;

¢ change our accounting methods;

« create liens;

* enter into agreements restricting the ability to pay dividends or make other intercompany transfers;

« consolidate, merge, sell or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all of our or our subsidiaries’ assets;
* enter into transactions with affiliates;

e prepay certain kinds of indebtedness;

* issue or sell stock of our subsidiaries; and

¢ change the nature of our business.

The agreements governing the AR Facility also contain affirmative and negative covenants with respect to the SPVs (as defined below) holding our
accounts receivables.

In addition, the Credit Agreement (and under certain circumstances, the agreements governing the AR Facility) has a financial covenant that requires us
to maintain a Consolidated Net Secured Leverage Ratio (as described in “Item 7. Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations—Liquidity and Capital Resources”). Our ability to meet this financial covenant may be affected by events beyond our control.

As a result of all of these restrictions, we may be:

e limited in how we conduct our business;
¢ unable to raise additional debt or equity financing to operate during general economic or business downturns; or

* unable to compete effectively or to take advantage of new business opportunities.
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These restrictions could hinder our ability to grow in accordance with our strategy or inhibit our ability to adhere to our intended distribution policy and,
accordingly, may cause us to incur additional U.S. federal income tax liability beyond current expectations.

A breach of the covenants under the Credit Agreement or the indentures governing the Notes, as well as a breach of the covenants under the
agreements governing the AR Facility, including the inability to repay any amounts due and payable, could result in an event of default or termination
event under the applicable agreement. Such a default or termination event would allow the lenders under the Senior Credit Facilities, the Purchasers (as
defined below) under the AR Facility and the holders of the Notes to accelerate the repayment of such debt and may result in the acceleration of the
repayment of any other debt to which a cross-acceleration or cross-default provision applies. In the event our creditors accelerate the repayment of our
borrowings, we and our subsidiaries may not have sufficient assets to repay that indebtedness. An event of default or termination event under the Credit
Agreement, the indenture and related agreements governing the 2031 Notes, and the agreements governing the AR Facility would also permit the
applicable lenders, holders of the 2031 Notes, Purchasers and any other secured creditors to proceed against the collateral that secures such
indebtedness, and, with respect to the Credit Agreement and AR Facility, terminate all other commitments to extend additional credit to us. Any of these
events could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Despite our substantial indebtedness level, we and our subsidiaries may be able to incur substantially more indebtedness, including secured
indebtedness. This could further exacerbate the risks to our financial condition described above.

We and our subsidiaries may incur significant additional indebtedness in the future, including secured indebtedness. Although the Credit Agreement, the
indentures governing the Notes and the agreements governing the AR Facility contain restrictions on the incurrence of additional indebtedness and
additional liens, these restrictions will be subject to a number of qualifications and exceptions, and the additional indebtedness, including secured
indebtedness, incurred in compliance with these restrictions could be substantial. If we incur any additional indebtedness that ranks equally with the
Senior Credit Facilities, the AR Facility and/or the Notes, subject to collateral arrangements, the holders of that debt will be entitled to share ratably with
existing holders of our debt in any proceeds distributed in connection with any insolvency, liquidation, reorganization, dissolution or other winding up of
our business. This may have the effect of reducing the amount of proceeds paid to existing shareholders. These restrictions also will not prevent us from
incurring obligations that do not constitute indebtedness. If new debt is added to our current debt levels, the related risks that we now face would
increase.

Our variable rate indebtedness subjects us to interest rate risk, which could cause our debt service obligations to increase significantly.

Borrowings under the Senior Credit Facilities and the AR Facility are at variable rates of interest and expose us to interest rate risk. If interest rates
increase, as we are experiencing with the current heightened levels of inflation, our debt service obligations on the variable rate indebtedness will
increase even though the amount borrowed remains the same, and our net income and cash flows will correspondingly decrease. At our level of
indebtedness, as of December 31, 2023, each 1/4% change in interest rates on our variable rate Term Loan and AR Facility would have resulted in a
$1.5 million and $0.2 million, respectively, change in annual estimated interest expense. Our aggregate annual estimated interest expense will increase if
we make any borrowings under our Revolving Credit Facility. We have, and may in the future, enter into interest rate swaps that involve the exchange of
floating for fixed rate interest payments in order to reduce future interest rate volatility. However, we may not elect to maintain such interest rate swaps
with respect to any of our variable rate indebtedness, and any swaps we enter into may not fully mitigate our interest rate risk.

To service our indebtedness, we require a significant amount of cash and our ability to generate cash depends on many factors beyond our
control.

Our ability to make cash payments on and to refinance our indebtedness, including the Notes, and to fund planned capital expenditures will depend on
our ability to generate significant operating cash flow in the future. Our ability to generate such cash flow is subject to general economic, financial,
competitive, legislative, regulatory and other factors that are beyond our control. In addition, our ability to generate cash flow may be affected by our REIT
compliance obligations and any consequences of failing to remain qualified as a REIT. See “—Risks Related to Our Corporate and REIT Structure.”

Our business may not generate cash flow from operations in an amount sufficient to enable us to pay our indebtedness, including the Notes, or to fund
our other liquidity needs. If we cannot service our indebtedness, we may have to take actions such as refinancing or restructuring our indebtedness,
selling assets or reducing or delaying capital expenditures, strategic acquisitions and investments. Such actions, if necessary, may not be effected on
commercially reasonable terms or at all. Our ability to refinance or restructure our debt will depend on the condition of the capital markets and our
financial condition at the
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applicable time. Any refinancing of our debt could be at higher interest rates and may require us to comply with more onerous covenants, which could
further restrict our business operations. Further, the Credit Agreement, the indentures governing the Notes and the agreements governing the AR
Facility restrict our ability to undertake, or use the proceeds from, such measures.

Our cash available for distribution to stockholders may not be sufficient to make distributions at expected levels, and we may need to borrow
in order to make such distributions or may not be able to make such distributions in full.

Distributions that we may make will be authorized and determined by our board of directors in its sole discretion (subject to the terms governing the
Series A Preferred Stock) out of funds legally available. The availability, amount, timing and frequency of distributions will be at the sole discretion of our
board of directors (subject to the terms governing the Series A Preferred Stock), and will be declared based upon various factors, including, but not
limited to: our results of operations, our financial condition and our operating cash inflows and outflows, including capital expenditures and acquisitions;
future taxable income; our REIT distribution requirements (which may be satisfied by making distributions to our common stockholders, our preferred
stockholders (including holders of Series A Preferred Stock) or a combination of our stockholders); distribution requirements under the terms of the Series
A Preferred Stock; limitations contained in our debt instruments (such as restrictions on distributions in excess of the minimum amount required to
maintain our status as a REIT and on the ability of our subsidiaries to distribute cash to the Company); debt service requirements; limitations on our ability
to use cash generated in the TRSs to fund distributions; and applicable law. We may need to increase our borrowings in order to fund our intended
distributions. See “ltem 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities—Dividend
Policy,” “ltem 7. Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Liquidity and Capital Resources,” “—Risks
Related to Our Corporate and REIT Structure—Our board of directors has the power to cause us to issue additional shares of stock without common
stockholder approval,” and “—Despite our substantial indebtedness level, we and our subsidiaries may be able to incur substantially more indebtedness,
including secured indebtedness. This could further exacerbate the risks to our financial condition described above.”

Hedging transactions could have a negative effect on our results of operations.

We have, and may in the future, enter into hedging transactions, including without limitation, with respect to interest rate exposure and foreign currency
exchange rates and on one or more of our assets or liabilities. The use of hedging transactions involves certain risks, including: (1) the possibility that the
market will move in a manner or direction that would have resulted in a gain for us had a hedging transaction not been utilized, in which case our
performance would have been better had we not engaged in the hedging transaction; (2) the risk of an imperfect correlation between the risk sought to
be hedged and the hedging transaction used; (3) the potential illiquidity for the hedging instrument used, which may make it difficult for us to close out or
unwind a hedging transaction; (4) the possibility that our counterparty fails to honor its obligations; and (5) the possibility that we may have to post
collateral to enter into hedging transactions, which we may lose if we are unable to honor our obligations. In addition, as a REIT, we have limitations on
our income sources, and the hedging strategies available to us will be more limited than those available to companies that are not REITs. See “—Risks
Related to Our Corporate and REIT Structure—Complying with REIT requirements may limit our ability to hedge effectively and may cause us to incur tax
liabilities.”

Risks Related to Our Corporate and REIT Structure
Our board of directors has the power to cause us to issue additional shares of stock without common stockholder approval.

Our charter authorizes us to issue additional authorized but unissued shares of common or preferred stock. In addition, our charter permits a majority of
our entire board of directors to, without common stockholder approval, amend our charter to increase or decrease the aggregate number of shares of
stock or the number of shares of stock of any class or series that we have authority to issue. Our charter also permits our board of directors to classify or
reclassify any unissued shares of common or preferred stock and set the preferences, rights and other terms of the classified or reclassified shares. As a
result, our board of directors will be able to establish a series of shares of common or preferred stock that could delay or prevent a transaction or a
change in control that might involve a premium price for outstanding shares of stock or otherwise be in the best interests of our stockholders.

On April 20, 2020, we issued and sold an aggregate of 400,000 shares of Series A Preferred Stock (as defined and described in “ltem 7. Management’'s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Liquidity and Capital Resources—Equity—Series A Preferred Stock
Issuance”). Holders of the Series A Preferred Stock are entitled to a cumulative dividend accruing at the initial rate of 7.0% per year, payable quarterly in
arrears. The Series A Preferred Stock ranks senior to our common stock with respect to dividend rights and rights on the distribution of assets on any
voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up of our affairs. The Series A Preferred Stock is convertible at the option of any holder at
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any time into shares of our common stock at an initial conversion price of $16.00 per share and an initial conversion rate of 62.50 shares of our common
stock per share of Series A Preferred Stock, subject to certain anti-dilution adjustments. On March 1, 2022, 275,000 shares of Series A Preferred Stock
were converted into approximately 17.4 million shares of the Company’s common stock. As of December 31, 2023, the maximum number of shares of
common stock that could be required to be issued on conversion of the outstanding shares of Series A Preferred Stock was approximately 7.8 million
shares. In general, holders of shares of Series A Preferred Stock have the right to vote on matters submitted to a vote of the holders of common stock
(voting together as one class) on an as-converted basis. In addition, certain actions require the approval of the holders of the outstanding Series A
Preferred Stock. Further, our REIT distribution requirement may be satisfied by making distributions to our common stockholders, our preferred
stockholders (including holders of Series A Preferred Stock) or a combination of our stockholders. See “—REIT distribution requirements could adversely
affect our ability to execute our business plan.” Circumstances may occur in which the interests of holders of the Series A Preferred Stock could conflict
with the interests of our other common stockholders.

Certain provisions of Maryland law may limit the ability of a third party to acquire control of us.

Certain provisions of the MGCL may have the effect of delaying or preventing a transaction or a change in control of us that might involve a premium
price for shares of our stock or otherwise be in the best interests of our stockholders, including:

* “business combination” provisions that, subject to certain exceptions, prohibit certain business combinations between a Maryland corporation
and an “interested stockholder” (defined generally as any person who beneficially owns, directly or indirectly, 10% or more of the voting power of
a corporation’s outstanding voting stock or an affiliate or associate of a corporation who, at any time during the two-year period immediately prior
to the date in question, was the beneficial owner of 10% or more of the voting power of the then-outstanding stock of the corporation) or an
affiliate of such an interested stockholder for five years after the most recent date on which the stockholder becomes an interested stockholder,
and thereafter imposes two super-majority stockholder voting requirements on these combinations; and

«  “control share” provisions that provide that, subject to certain exceptions, holders of “control shares” of a Maryland corporation (defined as voting
shares of stock that, if aggregated with all other shares of stock owned or controlled by the acquirer, would entitle the acquirer to exercise voting
power in the election of directors within one of three increasing ranges) acquired in a “control share acquisition” (defined as the direct or indirect
acquisition of issued and outstanding “control shares,” subject to certain exceptions) have no voting rights except to the extent approved by its
stockholders by the affirmative vote of at least two-thirds of all of the votes entitled to be cast on the matter, excluding all interested shares.

Additionally, under Title 3, Subtitle 8 of the MGCL, our board of directors is permitted, without stockholder approval and regardless of what is provided in
our charter or bylaws, to implement certain takeover defenses.

Our board of directors has by resolution exempted from the provisions of the Maryland Business Combination Act, as described above, all business
combinations between us and any other person, provided that such business combination is first approved by our board of directors (including a majority
of our directors who are not affiliates or associates of such person). In addition, our bylaws contain a provision opting out of the Maryland Control Share
Acquisition Act, as described above. Moreover, our charter provides that vacancies on our board may be filled only by a majority of the remaining
directors, and that any directors elected by the board to fill vacancies will serve for the remainder of the full term of the directorship in which the vacancy
occurred and until a successor is elected and qualifies. Our bylaws provide that our board of directors has the exclusive power to adopt, alter or repeal
any provision of our bylaws and to make new bylaws. There can be no assurance that these exemptions or provisions will not be amended or eliminated
at any time in the future.

Our rights and the rights of our stockholders to take action against our directors and officers are limited.

Our charter contains a provision that eliminates the liability of our directors and officers to the maximum extent permitted by Maryland law. In addition, our
charter authorizes us, and our bylaws obligate us, to the maximum extent permitted by Maryland law in effect from time to time, to indemnify and, without
requiring a preliminary determination of the ultimate entittement to indemnification, pay or reimburse reasonable expenses in advance of final disposition
of a proceeding to:

« any present or former director or officer who is made or threatened to be made a party to, or witness in, a proceeding by reason of his or her
service in that capacity; and

« any individual who, while a director or officer of our company and at our request, serves or has served as a director, officer, trustee or manager
of another corporation, REIT, limited liability company, partnership, joint venture, trust,
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employee benefit plan or any other enterprise and who is made or threatened to be made a party to, or witness in, the proceeding by reason of
his or her service in that capacity.

Our charter and bylaws also permit us to indemnify and advance expenses to any person who served a predecessor of ours in any of the capacities
described above and to any employee of our company or a predecessor of our company.

The indemnification and payment or reimbursement of expenses provided by the indemnification provisions of our charter and bylaws shall not be
deemed exclusive of or limit in any way other rights to which any person seeking indemnification, or payment or reimbursement of expenses may be or
may become entitled under any statute, bylaw, resolution, insurance, agreement, vote of stockholders or disinterested directors or otherwise.

In addition, we have entered into separate indemnification agreements with each of our directors. Each indemnification agreement provides, among other
things, for indemnification as provided in the agreement and otherwise to the fullest extent permitted by law and our charter and bylaws against
judgments, fines, penalties, amounts paid in settlement and reasonable expenses, including attorneys’ fees. The indemnification agreements provide for
the advancement or payment of expenses to the indemnitee and for reimbursement to us if it is found that such indemnitee is not entitled to such
advancement.

Accordingly, in the event that any of our directors or officers are exculpated from, or indemnified against, liability but whose actions impede our
performance, we and our stockholders’ ability to recover damages from that director or officer will be limited.

If we fail to remain qualified as a REIT, we will be subject to U.S. federal income tax as a regular corporation and could face a substantial tax
liability, which would reduce the amount of cash available for distribution to our stockholders.

Qualification to be taxed as a REIT involves the application of highly technical and complex Code provisions for which only limited judicial and
administrative authorities exist. Even a technical or inadvertent failure to comply with these provisions could jeopardize our REIT qualification. Our ability
to remain qualified to be taxed as a REIT will depend on our satisfaction of certain asset, income, organizational, distribution, stockholder ownership and
other requirements on a continuing basis. In addition, our ability to satisfy the requirements to remain qualified to be taxed as a REIT may depend in part
on the actions of third parties over which we have no control or only limited influence.

In addition, the rules dealing with U.S. federal income taxation are continually under review by persons involved in the legislative process and by the IRS
and the U.S. Department of the Treasury (the “Treasury”). Although the IRS has issued a private letter ruling with respect to certain issues relevant to our
ability to qualify to be taxed as a REIT, no assurance can be given that the IRS will not challenge our qualification to be taxed as a REIT in the future.
Changes to the tax laws or interpretations thereof, or the IRS’s position with respect to our private letter ruling, with or without retroactive application,
could materially and negatively affect our ability to qualify to be taxed as a REIT.

If we were to fail to remain qualified to be taxed as a REIT in any taxable year, we would be subject to U.S. federal income tax on our taxable income at
regular corporate rates, and dividends paid to our stockholders would not be deductible by us in computing our taxable income. Any resulting corporate
tax liability could be substantial and would reduce the amount of cash available for distribution to holders of our common stock, which in turn could have
an adverse impact on the value of our common stock and may require us to incur indebtedness or liquidate certain investments in order to pay such tax
liability. Unless we were entitled to relief under certain Code provisions, we would also be disqualified from re-electing to be taxed as a REIT for the four
taxable years following the year in which we failed to qualify to be taxed as a REIT.

REIT distribution requirements could adversely affect our ability to execute our business plan.

To maintain REIT status, we must meet a number of organizational and operational requirements, including a requirement that we annually distribute to
our stockholders at least 90% of our REIT taxable income, determined without regard to the dividends-paid deduction and excluding any net capital
gains. This distribution requirement may be satisfied by making distributions to our common stockholders, our preferred stockholders (including holders of
Series A Preferred Stock) or a combination of our stockholders. To the extent that we satisfy this distribution requirement and qualify for taxation as a
REIT but distribute less than 100% of our REIT taxable income, determined without regard to the dividends-paid deduction and including any net capital
gains, we will be subject to U.S. federal income tax on our undistributed net taxable income. In addition, we will be subject to a nondeductible 4% excise
tax if the amount that we actually distribute to our stockholders in a calendar year is less than a minimum amount specified under U.S. federal tax laws.
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From time to time, we may generate taxable income greater than our cash flow as a result of differences in timing between the recognition of taxable
income and the actual receipt of cash or the effect of nondeductible capital expenditures, the creation of reserves or required debt or amortization
payments. If we do not have other funds available in these situations, we could be required to borrow funds on unfavorable terms, sell assets at
disadvantageous prices or distribute amounts that would otherwise be invested in future acquisitions to make distributions sufficient to enable us to pay
out enough of our taxable income to satisfy the REIT distribution requirement and to avoid corporate income tax and the 4% excise tax in a particular
year. These alternatives could increase our costs or reduce our equity. Thus, compliance with the REIT requirements may impact our ability to grow,
which could adversely affect the value of our common stock.

To fund our growth strategy and refinance our indebtedness, we may depend on external sources of capital, which may not be available to us
on commercially reasonable terms or at all.

As a result of the REIT organizational and operational requirements described above, we may not be able to fund future capital needs, including any
necessary acquisition financing, solely from operating cash flows. Consequently, we expect to rely on third-party capital market sources for debt or equity
financing to fund our business strategy. In addition, we will likely need third-party capital market sources to refinance our indebtedness at or prior to
maturity. Turbulence in the U.S. or international financial markets and economies could adversely impact our ability to replace or renew maturing
liabilities on a timely basis or access the capital markets to meet liquidity and capital expenditure requirements and may result in adverse effects on our
business, financial condition and results of operations. As such, we may not be able to obtain financing on favorable terms or at all. Our access to third-
party sources of capital also depends, in part, on:

« the market's perception of our growth potential;
* our then-current levels of indebtedness;
¢ our historical and expected future earnings, cash flows and cash distributions; and

« the market price per share of our common stock.

In addition, our ability to access additional capital may be limited by the terms of our outstanding indebtedness, which may restrict our incurrence of
additional debt. See “—Risks Related to Our Indebtedness—Despite our substantial indebtedness level, we and our subsidiaries may be able to incur
substantially more indebtedness, including secured indebtedness. This could further exacerbate the risks to our financial condition described above.” If
we cannot obtain capital when needed, we may not be able to acquire or develop properties when strategic opportunities arise or refinance our debt,
which could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Even if we remain qualified to be taxed as a REIT, we may face other tax liabilities that reduce our cash flow.

Even if we remain qualified for taxation as a REIT, we may be subject to certain U.S. federal, state and local taxes on our income and assets, including
taxes on any undistributed income and state or local income, property and transfer taxes. For example, in order to meet the REIT qualification
requirements, we may hold some of our assets or conduct certain of our activities through one or more TRSs or other subsidiary corporations that will be
subject to foreign, federal, state and local corporate-level income taxes as regular C corporations. In addition, we may incur a 100% excise tax on
transactions with a TRS if the transactions are not conducted on an arm’s-length basis. Any of these taxes would decrease cash available for distribution
to holders of our common stock.

Complying with REIT requirements may cause us to liquidate investments or forgo otherwise attractive investments or business
opportunities.

To remain qualified to be taxed as a REIT for U.S. federal income tax purposes, we must ensure that, at the end of each calendar quarter, at least 75% of
the value of our assets consists of cash, cash items, government securities and “real estate assets” (as defined in the Code), including certain mortgage
loans and securities. The remainder of our investments (other than government securities, qualified real estate assets and securities issued by a TRS)
generally cannot include more than 10% of the outstanding voting securities of any one issuer or more than 10% of the total value of the outstanding
securities of any one issuer. In addition, in general, no more than 5% of the value of our total assets (other than government securities, qualified real
estate assets and securities issued by a TRS) can consist of the securities of any one issuer, and no more than 20% of the value of our total assets can
be represented by securities of one or more TRSs. If we fail to comply with these requirements at the end of any calendar quarter, we must correct the
failure within 30 days after the end of the calendar quarter or qualify for certain statutory relief provisions to avoid losing our REIT qualification and
suffering adverse tax consequences. As a result, we may
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be required to liquidate or forgo otherwise attractive investments or business opportunities. These actions could have the effect of reducing our income
and amounts available for distribution to holders of our common stock.

In addition to the assets tests set forth above, to remain qualified to be taxed as a REIT for U.S. federal income tax purposes, we must continually satisfy
tests concerning, among other things, the sources of our income, the amounts we distribute to our stockholders and the ownership of our stock. We may
be unable to pursue investments or business opportunities (including but not limited to certain product offerings to our customers) that would be otherwise
advantageous to us in order to satisfy the source-of-income or asset-diversification requirements for qualifying to be taxed as a REIT. Accordingly,
compliance with the REIT requirements may hinder our ability to make certain attractive investments, pursue certain business opportunities and/or
otherwise adversely affect the manner in which we operate our business.

Complying with REIT requirements may depend on our ability to contribute certain contracts to a taxable REIT subsidiary.

Our ability to satisfy certain REIT requirements may depend on us contributing certain contracts (or portions of certain contracts) to a TRS with respect to
outdoor advertising assets that do not qualify as real property for purposes of the REIT asset tests. Moreover, our ability to satisfy the REIT requirements
may depend on us properly allocating between us and our TRS the revenue or cost, as applicable, associated with the portion of any such contract
contributed to the TRS. There can be no assurance that the IRS will not determine that such contribution was not a true contribution between us and our
TRS or that we did not properly allocate the applicable revenues or costs. Were the IRS successful in such a challenge, it could adversely impact our
ability to qualify to be taxed as a REIT or our effective tax rate and tax liability.

Our planned use of taxable REIT subsidiaries may cause us to fail to remain qualified to be taxed as a REIT.

The net income of our TRSs is not required to be distributed to us, and income that is not distributed to us generally will not be subject to the REIT income
distribution requirement. However, there may be limitations on our ability to accumulate earnings in our TRSs and the accumulation or reinvestment of
significant earnings in our TRSs could result in adverse tax treatment. In particular, if the accumulation of cash in our TRSs causes the fair market value
of our securities in our TRSs and certain other non-qualifying assets to exceed 20% of the fair market value of our assets, we would fail to remain
qualified to be taxed as a REIT for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

The ownership limitations that apply to REITs, as prescribed by the Code and by our charter, may inhibit market activity in the shares of our
common stock and restrict our business combination opportunities.

In order for us to qualify to be taxed as a REIT, not more than 50% in value of the outstanding shares of our stock may be owned, beneficially or
constructively, by five or fewer individuals, as defined in the Code to include certain entities, at any time during the last half of each taxable year after the
first year for which we elect to qualify to be taxed as a REIT. Additionally, at least 100 persons must beneficially own our stock during at least 335 days of
a taxable year (other than the first taxable year for which we elect to be taxed as a REIT). Subject to certain exceptions, our charter authorizes our board
of directors to take such actions as are necessary and desirable to preserve our qualification to be taxed as a REIT. Our charter also provides that, unless
exempted by the board of directors, no person may own more than 9.8% in value or in number, whichever is more restrictive, of the outstanding shares of
our common stock or 9.8% in value of the aggregate outstanding shares of all classes and series of our stock. A person that did not acquire more than
9.8% of our outstanding stock may nonetheless become subject to our charter restrictions in certain circumstances, including if repurchases by us cause
a person’s holdings to exceed such limitations. The constructive ownership rules are complex and may cause shares of stock owned directly or
constructively by a group of related individuals to be constructively owned by one individual or entity. These ownership limits could delay or prevent a
transaction or a change in control of our company that might involve a premium price for shares of our stock or otherwise be in the best interests of our
stockholders.

Complying with REIT requirements may limit our ability to hedge effectively and may cause us to incur tax liabilities.

The REIT provisions of the Code substantially limit our ability to hedge our assets and liabilities. Any income from a hedging transaction that we enter into
primarily to manage risk of interest rate changes or to manage risk of currency fluctuations with respect to borrowings made or to be made or to acquire or
carry real estate assets does not constitute “gross income” for purposes of the 75% or 95% gross income tests that apply to REITs, provided that certain
identification requirements are met. To the extent that we enter into other types of hedging transactions or fail to properly identify such a transaction as a
hedge, the income is likely to be treated as non-qualifying income for purposes of both of the gross income tests. As a result of these rules, we may be
required to limit our use of advantageous hedging techniques or implement those hedges through a TRS. This could increase the cost of our hedging
activities because our TRS may be subject to tax on gains or expose us to greater risks associated with changes in interest rates that we would otherwise
choose to bear. In addition, losses in our TRS will generally
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not provide any tax benefit, except that such losses could theoretically be carried back or forward against past or future taxable income in the TRS.

If we fail to meet the REIT income tests as a result of receiving non-qualifying rental income, we would be required to pay a penalty tax in
order to retain our REIT status.

Certain income we receive could be treated as non-qualifying income for purposes of the REIT requirements. Even if we have reasonable cause for a
failure to meet the REIT income tests as a result of receiving non-qualifying income, we would nonetheless be required to pay a penalty tax in order to
retain our REIT status.

The IRS may deem the gains from sales of our outdoor advertising assets to be subject to a 100% prohibited transaction tax.

From time to time, we may sell outdoor advertising assets. The IRS may deem one or more sales of our outdoor advertising assets to be “prohibited
transactions” (generally, sales or other dispositions of property that is held as inventory or primarily for sale to customers in the ordinary course of a trade
or business). If the IRS takes the position that we have engaged in a “prohibited transaction,” the gain we recognize from such sale would be subject to a
100% tax. We do not intend to hold outdoor advertising assets as inventory or for sale in the ordinary course of business; however, whether property is
held as inventory or “primarily for sale to customers in the ordinary course of a trade or business” depends on the particular facts and circumstances and
there is no assurance that our position will not be challenged by the IRS especially if we make frequent sales or sales of outdoor advertising assets in
which we have short holding periods.

We may establish operating partnerships as part of our REIT structure, which could result in conflicts of interests between our stockholders
and holders of our operating partnership units and could limit our liquidity or flexibility.

As part of our REIT structure, we have previously established a “DownREIT” operating partnership, and we may in the future establish an “UPREIT”
and/or additional “DownREIT” operating partnerships, whereby we acquire certain assets by issuing units in an operating partnership (or a subsidiary) in
exchange for an asset owner contributing such assets to the partnership (or subsidiary). If we enter into such transactions, in order to induce the
contributors of such assets to accept units in our operating partnerships, rather than cash, in exchange for their assets, it may be necessary for us to
provide them additional incentives. For instance, the operating partnership’s limited partnership or limited liability company agreement may provide that
any unitholder of the operating partnership may be entitled to receive cash or equity distributions on its units, as well as exchange units for cash equal to
the value of an equivalent number of shares of our common stock or, at our option, for shares of our common stock on a one-for-one basis. We may also
enter into additional contractual arrangements with asset contributors under which we would agree to repurchase a contributor’s units for shares of our
common stock or cash, at the option of the contributor, at set times.

In connection with these transactions, persons holding operating partnership units (or similar securities) may have the right to vote on certain
amendments to the partnership agreements of such operating partnerships, as well as on certain other matters. Unitholders with these voting rights may
be able to exercise them in a manner that conflicts with the interests of our stockholders. As the sole member of the general partner of the operating
partnerships or as the managing member, we would have fiduciary duties to the unitholders of the operating partnerships that may conflict with duties that
our officers and directors owe to the Company.

In addition, if a holder of operating partnership units (or similar securities) received cash distributions on its units and/or required us to repurchase the
units for cash, it would limit our liquidity and thus our ability to use cash to make other investments, distributions to stockholders, debt service payments,
or satisfy other obligations. Moreover, if we were required to repurchase units for cash at a time when we did not have sufficient cash to fund the
repurchase, we might be required to sell one or more assets to raise funds to satisfy this obligation. Furthermore, we might agree that if distributions the
holder of operating partnership units (or similar securities) received did not provide them with a defined return, then upon redemption of the units, we
would pay the holder an additional amount necessary to achieve that return. Such a provision could further negatively impact our liquidity and flexibility.
Finally, in order to allow a contributor of assets to defer taxable gain on the contribution of assets to our operating partnerships, we might agree not to sell
a contributed asset for a defined period of time or until the contributor exchanged its operating partnership units (or similar securities) for cash or shares.
Such an agreement would prevent us from selling those properties, even if market conditions made such a sale favorable to us.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.

None.
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Item 1C. Cybersecurity.

The Company maintains a comprehensive information security and cybersecurity program (the “Cybersecurity Program”) guided by established best
practice and tailored to the Company’s business needs. The Cybersecurity Program is an extension of the Company’s enterprise risk management
program that seeks to identify and manage risks throughout the Company by having its Chief Financial Officer meet with members of each of the
Company’s various departments annually to solicit feedback regarding risks affecting the Company, which is then reported to the audit committee of our
board of directors.

Under the Cybersecurity Program, systems and networks under Company control are monitored for anomalies using various security tools that identify
potential cybersecurity threats and alert the Company'’s internal cybersecurity team to suspicious activity. If a potential cybersecurity incident is identified,
it is investigated by the Company’s internal cybersecurity team (including the Company’s Chief Information Security Officer (the “CISQO")) to assess
whether a cybersecurity incident has occurred, its severity and the risk involved, in accordance with internal processes and procedures and the
Company'’s incident response plan. The CISO is responsible for management of these cybersecurity processes, and reports to the Company’s Chief
Information Officer (the “CIO”). The CISO and CIO will receive input from, and coordinate with, the Company’s Chief Privacy Officer (the “CPO"), as
necessary. If a cybersecurity incident is discovered, it must be reported by the CIO and the CISO to the Company’s senior management, including the
Company’s Chief Financial Officer and the Company’s General Counsel for further assessment regarding scope, mitigation, remediation and disclosure
obligations, as applicable. The audit committee of our board of directors oversees the Company’s information security and cybersecurity risks,
compliance and protections, and receives quarterly cybersecurity updates from the CISO and CIO (with input from the CPO, as appropriate) and results
of the Company’s incident response plan testing at least annually.

The Cybersecurity Program team members, including the CISO and the CIO, have extensive work experience in cybersecurity, information technology
engineering and the media and advertising industries, with some members holding degrees in cybersecurity and professional certifications in
cybersecurity. The Cybersecurity Program team members are subject to ongoing employee trainings in cybersecurity procedures.

We perform regular third-party assessments of the Cybersecurity Program, and retain specialized third-party forensics experts for escalation of certain
cybersecurity incidents. In addition, we have processes, including formal security reviews and suspicious activity monitoring, to assess cybersecurity risks
associated with our use of third-party service providers.

To date, we have not identified any cybersecurity threats, including as a result of any previous cybersecurity incidents, that have materially affected or are
reasonably likely to materially affect the Company, including our business strategy, results of operations or financial condition. For additional information
about our cybersecurity risks, see “ltem 1A. Risk Factors—If we experience a cybersecurity incident, we may suffer reputational harm and significant legal
and financial exposure.”

Item 2. Properties.

Our principal executive offices, which we lease, are located at 90 Park Avenue, 9th Floor, New York, NY 10016. We and our subsidiaries also own and
lease office and warehouse space throughout the U.S. and Canada. We consider our properties adequate for our present needs, and adequately
covered by insurance.

In the U.S. and Canada, we primarily lease our outdoor advertising sites, but, in a few cases, we own or hold permanent easements on our outdoor
advertising sites. These lease agreements have terms varying between one month and multiple years, with an average term of 8 years, and usually
provide renewal options. Our lease agreements generally allow us to use the land for the construction, repair and relocation of outdoor advertising
structures, including all rights necessary to access and maintain the site. Approximately 71% of our outdoor advertising site leases will expire or be
subject to renewal in the next 5 years, 20% will expire or be subject to renewal in 6 to 10 years and 9% will expire or be subject to renewal in more than
10 years. There is no significant concentration of outdoor advertising sites under any one lease or with any one landlord. An important part of our
business activity is to manage our lease portfolio and negotiate suitable lease renewals and extensions. For further information regarding our outdoor
advertising sites and structures, see “Item 1. Business—Our Portfolio of Outdoor Advertising Structures and Sites” and “Item 1. Business—Renovation,
Improvement and Development.”
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Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

On an ongoing basis, we are engaged in lawsuits and governmental proceedings and respond to various investigations, inquiries, notices and claims
from national, state and local governmental and other authorities (collectively, “litigation”). Litigation is inherently uncertain and always difficult to predict.
Although it is not possible to predict with certainty the eventual outcome of any litigation, in our opinion, none of our current litigation is expected to have a
material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial position or cash flows.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures.

None.
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PART Il
Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities.
Market Information

Shares of our common stock began trading on the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”) on March 28, 2014, under the ticker symbol “CBSO.” On
November 20, 2014, in connection with our rebranding, shares of our common stock began trading on the NYSE under the ticker symbol “OUT.” Prior to
March 28, 2014, there was no public market for our common stock.

Holders
As of February 21, 2024, we had 149 holders of record of our common stock.
Dividend Policy

To maintain REIT status, we must annually distribute to our stockholders at least 90% of our REIT taxable income, determined without regard to the
dividends-paid deduction and excluding any net capital gains. This distribution requirement may be satisfied by making distributions to our common
stockholders, our preferred stockholders (including holders of Series A Preferred Stock) or a combination of our stockholders. To the extent that we
satisfy this distribution requirement and qualify for taxation as a REIT but distribute less than 100% of our REIT taxable income, determined with the
above modifications, we will be subject to U.S. federal income tax on our undistributed net taxable income. In addition, we will be subject to a
nondeductible 4% excise tax if the amount that we actually distribute to our stockholders in a calendar year is less than a minimum amount specified
under U.S. federal tax laws. See “Item 1. Business—Tax Status.”

Distributions that we may make will be authorized and determined by our board of directors in its sole discretion (subject to the terms governing the
Series A Preferred Stock) out of funds legally available. The availability, amount, timing and frequency of distributions will be at the sole discretion of our
board of directors (subject to the terms governing the Series A Preferred Stock), and will be declared based upon various factors, including, but not
limited to: our results of operations, our financial condition and our operating cash inflows and outflows, including capital expenditures and acquisitions;
future taxable income; our REIT distribution requirements (which may be satisfied by making distributions to our common stockholders, our preferred
stockholders (including holders of Series A Preferred Stock) or a combination of our stockholders); distribution requirements under the terms of the Series
A Preferred Stock; limitations contained in our debt instruments (such as restrictions on distributions in excess of the minimum amount required to
maintain our status as a REIT and on the ability of our subsidiaries to distribute cash to the Company); debt service requirements; limitations on our ability
to use cash generated in the TRSs to fund distributions; and applicable law. See “Item 1A. Risk Factors,” “Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Liquidity and Capital Resources” and “ltem 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.” We
may need to increase our borrowings in order to fund our intended distributions. We expect that our distributions may exceed our net income, due, in part,
to noncash expenses included in net income (loss).

We anticipate that our distributions generally will be taxable as ordinary income to our stockholders, although we may designate a portion of the
distributions as qualified dividend income or capital gain dividends or a portion of the distributions may constitute a return of capital or be taxable as
capital gain. We furnish annually to each of our stockholders a statement setting forth distributions paid during the preceding year and their
characterization as ordinary income dividends, return of capital, qualified dividends, income or capital gain dividends or non-dividend distributions.
Approximately 84.3% of the dividends we distributed in 2023 should be considered ordinary income by our stockholders for tax purposes, approximately
6.9% should be considered a capital gain, and approximately 8.8% should be considered a return of capital. The capital gain distribution is subject to
certain recapture provisions for both individual and corporate shareholders.

Performance Graph

The information in this section, including the performance graph, shall not be deemed “soliciting material” or to be “filed” with the SEC for purposes of
Section 18 of the Exchange Act, or otherwise subject to the liabilities under that Section, and shall not be deemed to be incorporated by reference into
any filing of the Company under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Exchange Act.

The following graph compares the cumulative total stockholder return on OUTFRONT Media Inc.’s common stock to the cumulative total return of Lamar

Advertising Company, Clear Channel Outdoor Holdings, Inc., the Standard & Poor’s 500
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Stock Index (“S&P 500"), the S&P 500 Media Industry Index, and the FTSE National Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts (“NAREIT”) All Equity
REITs Index.

The performance graph assumes $100 invested on December 31, 2018, in OUTFRONT Media Inc.’'s common stock, Lamar Advertising Company’s
common stock, Clear Channel Outdoor Holdings, Inc.’s common stock, the S&P 500, the S&P 500 Media Industry Index, and the FTSE NAREIT All
Equity REITs Index, including the reinvestment of dividends, through the calendar year ended December 31, 2023.

Performance Graph
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—@— OUTFRONT Media Inc. ——f—— Lamar Advertising Company
Clear Channel Outdoor Holdings, Inc. —Jl— S&P 500
—W— S&P 500 Media Industry Index —@— FTSE NAREIT All Equity REITs Index
Dec. 31, 2018 Dec. 31, 2019 Dec. 31, 2020 Dec. 31, 2021 Dec. 31, 2022 Dec. 31, 2023
OUTFRONT Media Inc. $ 100.00 $ 156.78 $ 116.08 $ 160.44 $ 105.24 $ 96.83
Lamar Advertising Company 100.00 135.29 130.64 197.66 162.13 192.28
Clear Channel Outdoor Holdings, Inc. 100.00 55.11 31.79 63.78 20.23 35.07
S&P 500 100.00 131.49 155.68 200.37 164.08 207.21
S&P 500 Media Industry Index @ 100.00 134.98 155.65 156.18 109.34 131.76
FTSE NAREIT All Equity REITs Index 100.00 128.66 122.07 172.49 129.45 144.16

(a) As of December 31, 2023, the S&P 500 Media Industry Index consists of the following companies: Charter Communications, Inc.; Comcast Corporation; Fox Corporation;

Interpublic Group of Companies Inc.; News Corporation; Omnicom Group Inc; and Paramount Global.

Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities

None.

Item 6. [Reserved]
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

The following Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (“MD&A”) should be read in conjunction with our
historical consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto in “Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.” This MD&A contains
forward-looking statements that involve numerous risks and uncertainties. The forward-looking statements are subject to a number of important factors,
including, but not limited to, those factors discussed in “Item 1A. Risk Factors” and the “Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Statements”
section of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, that could cause our actual results to differ materially from the results described herein or implied by such
forward-looking statements. Management's discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations for the year ended December 31,
2022, as compared to the year ended December 31, 2021, is included in “ltem 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations” of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2022, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
(the “SEC") on February 23, 2023.

Overview

OUTFRONT Media is a real estate investment trust (“REIT”), which provides advertising space (“displays”) on out-of-home advertising structures and
sites in the United States (the “U.S.”) and Canada. We currently manage our operations through two operating segments—U.S. Billboard and Transit,
which is included in our U.S. Media reportable segment, and International. International does not meet the criteria to be a reportable segment and
accordingly, is included in Other (see Item 8., Note 18. Segment Information to the Consolidated Financial Statements).

Business

We are one of the largest providers of advertising space on out-of-home advertising structures and sites across the U.S. and Canada. Our inventory
consists of billboard displays, which are primarily located on the most heavily traveled highways and roadways in top Nielsen Designated Market Areas
(“DMAs"), and transit advertising displays operated under exclusive multi-year contracts with municipalities in large cities across the U.S. and Canada. In
total, we have displays in all of the 25 largest markets in the U.S. and approximately 150 markets in the U.S. and Canada. Our top market, high profile
location focused portfolio includes sites in and around both Grand Central Station and Times Square in New York, various locations along Sunset
Boulevard in Los Angeles, and the Bay Bridge in San Francisco. The breadth and depth of our portfolio provides our customers with a range of options to
address their marketing objectives, from national, brand-building campaigns to hyper-local campaigns that drive customers to the advertiser's website or
retail location “one mile down the road.”

In addition to providing location-based displays, we also focus on delivering mass and targeted audiences to our customers. Geopath, the out-of-home
advertising industry’s audience measurement system, enables us to build campaigns based on the size and demographic composition of audiences. As
part of our technology platform, we are developing solutions for enhanced demographic and location targeting, and engaging ways to connect with
consumers on-the-go.

We believe out-of-home continues to be an attractive form of advertising, as our displays are always viewable and cannot be turned off, skipped, blocked
or fast-forwarded. Further, out-of-home advertising can be an effective “stand-alone” medium, as well as an integral part of a campaign to reach
audiences using multiple forms of media, including television, radio, print, online, mobile and social media advertising platforms. We provide our
customers with a differentiated advertising solution at an attractive price point relative to other forms of advertising. In addition to leasing displays, we
provide other value-added services to our customers, such as pre-campaign category research, consumer insights, print production, creative services
and post-campaign tracking and analytics.

On October 22, 2023, the Company, Outfront Canada HoldCo 2 LLC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and Outfront Canada Sub LLC, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (together, the “Selling Subsidiaries”), entered into a Share Purchase Agreement (the “Share Purchase
Agreement”) with Bell Media Inc. (the “Buyer”), relating to the sale of the Company’s outdoor advertising business in Canada (the “Canadian Business”).
Pursuant to the Share Purchase Agreement, the Selling Subsidiaries agreed to sell all of its (and its affiliates) equity interests in Outdoor Systems
Americas ULC and its subsidiaries (the “Transaction”), which hold all of the assets of the Canadian Business, to the Buyer, for C$410.0 million in cash,
payable on the date of the consummation of the Transaction (the “Closing”). The purchase price is subject to (i) adjustments at and following the Closing
for working capital, cash, indebtedness, capital expenditures and transaction expenses, and (ii) a holdback to be released at or following the Closing, in
whole or in part, if certain third-party contracts are renewed or extended on certain terms. The consummation of the Transaction is expected to occur in
the first half of 2024, subject to certain closing conditions, including, among others, (i) the absence of any enacted or pending law, order, judgment or
litigation by a governmental authority prohibiting the consummation of the Transaction, and (ii) receipt of antitrust approval in Canada (the
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“Antitrust Approval”). (See Item 8., Note 12. Acquisitions and Dispositions: Disposition: Canadian Business to the Consolidated Financial Statements.)
Economic Environment

Our revenues and operating results are sensitive to fluctuations in advertising expenditures, general economic conditions and other external events
beyond our control, such as supply chain disruptions, heightened levels of inflation, pandemics like the COVID-19 pandemic, industry shutdowns or
slowdowns (including due to labor strikes), and shifts in market demographics and transportation patterns (including reductions in foot traffic, roadway
traffic, commuting, transit ridership and overall target audiences due to remote work, safety concerns or otherwise), as described in this MD&A. These
sensitivities may adversely impact our revenues and operating results on a consolidated basis and/or may have a disproportionate adverse impact on
one or more of our operating segments, especially our U.S. Transit operating segment.

We rely on third parties to manufacture and transport our digital displays. As a result of the current market-wide supply shortages and logistics
disruptions, we have experienced delays and price increases with respect to certain of our digital displays, which may continue throughout 2024, and
could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Due to the current heightened levels of inflation and commodity prices in the U.S. and abroad, which has resulted in rising interest rates, we have
experienced increases with respect to some of our posting, maintenance and other expenses, some of our corporate expenses, and our interest expense,
which could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. Our billboard property lease expenses and transit
franchise expenses have been less impacted by the current heightened levels of inflation due to the long-term nature of most of our operating leases and
transit franchise agreements. However, our transit franchise agreements that contain inflationary price adjustments may cause increases in our transit
franchise expenses in the near-term. Though the Company cannot reasonably estimate the full impact of the current heightened levels of inflation on our
business, financial condition and results of operations at this time, a portion of these increases may be partially offset by increases in advertising rates on
our displays and cost efficiencies.

Business Environment

The outdoor advertising industry is fragmented, consisting of several companies operating on a national basis, as well as hundreds of smaller regional
and local companies operating a limited number of displays in a single or a few local geographic markets. We compete with these companies for both
customers and structure and display locations. We also compete with other media, including online, mobile and social media advertising platforms and
traditional advertising platforms (such as television, radio, print and direct mail marketers). In addition, we compete with a wide variety of out-of-home
media, including advertising in shopping centers, airports, movie theaters, supermarkets and taxis.

Increasing the number of digital displays in our prime audience locations is an important element of our organic growth strategy, as digital displays have
the potential to attract additional business from both new and existing customers. We believe digital displays are attractive to our customers because
they allow for the development of richer and more visually engaging messages, provide our customers with the flexibility both to target audiences by time
of day and to quickly launch new advertising campaigns, and eliminate or greatly reduce print production and installation costs. In addition, digital
displays enable us to run multiple advertisements on each display. Digital billboard displays generate approximately four to five times more revenue per
display on average than comparable traditional static billboard displays. Digital billboard displays also incur, on average, approximately two to four times
more costs, including higher variable costs associated with the increase in revenue than comparable traditional static billboard displays. As a result,
digital billboard displays generate higher profits and cash flows than comparable traditional static billboard displays.

We have deployed state-of-the-art digital transit displays in connection with several transit franchises we operate and we expect to continue these
deployments over the coming years, but at a slower pace than our historical deployments. We believe revenues generated on our network of digital
transit displays will be higher than revenues generated on a comparable portfolio of our static transit displays.

We have incurred, and we intend to incur, significant equipment deployment costs and capital expenditures in the coming years to continue increasing the

number of digital displays in our portfolio. However, we expect our annual equipment deployment cost spending with respect to the New York
Metropolitan Transportation Authority (the “MTA”") transit franchise will decline after our expected material completion of our initial deployment in 2024.
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We built or converted 84 new digital billboard displays in the U.S. and 45 in Canada in 2023. Additionally, in 2023, we entered into marketing
arrangements to sell advertising on 46 third-party digital billboard displays in the U.S. and two in Canada. In 2023, we built, converted or replaced 5,624
digital transit and other displays in the U.S. and 23 in Canada. The following table sets forth information regarding our digital displays.

Digital Revenues (in millions) Number of Digital Displays
for the Year Ended December 31, 2023 as of December 31, 20232
Digital Digital Transit

Digital Transit and Total Digital  Digital Billboard and Other Total Digital
Location Billboard Other Revenues Displays Displays Displays
United States $ 4095 $ 1437 $ 553.2 1,874 21,593 23,467
Canada 32.2 2.9 35.1 317 101 418
Total $ 4417 $ 146.6 $ 588.3 2,191 21,694 23,885

(a) Digital display amounts include 4,980 displays reserved for transit agency use. Our number of digital displays is impacted by acquisitions, dispositions, management
agreements, the net effect of new and lost billboards, and the net effect of won and lost franchises in the period.

Our revenues and profits may fluctuate due to seasonal advertising patterns and influences on advertising markets. Typically, our revenues and profits
are highest in the fourth quarter, during the holiday shopping season, and lowest in the first quarter, as advertisers adjust their spending following the
holiday shopping season. As described above, our revenues and profits may also fluctuate due to external events beyond our control.

We have a diversified base of customers across various industries. During 2023, our largest categories of advertisers were entertainment, retail and
health/medical, which represented 20%, 11%, and 9% of our total U.S. Media segment revenues, respectively. During 2022, our largest categories of
advertisers were entertainment, retail and health/medical, which represented 20%, 11% and 9% of our total U.S. Media segment revenues,
respectively.

Our large-scale portfolio allows our customers to reach a national audience and also provides the flexibility to tailor campaigns to specific regions or
markets. In 2023, we generated approximately 42% of our U.S. Media segment revenues from national advertising campaigns, compared to

approximately 44% in 2022.

Our transit businesses require us to periodically obtain and renew contracts with municipalities and other governmental entities. When these contracts
expire, we generally must participate in highly competitive bidding processes in order to obtain or renew contracts.

40



Key Performance Indicators
Our management reviews our performance by focusing on the indicators described below.
Several of our key performance indicators are not prepared in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in the United States of America

(“GAAP”). We believe these non-GAAP performance indicators are meaningful supplemental measures of our operating performance and should not be
considered in isolation of, or as a substitute for, their most directly comparable GAAP financial measures.

Year Ended December 31,

(in millions, except percentages) 2023 2022 % Change
Revenues $ 1,820.6 $ 1,772.1 3%
Organic revenues@®) 1,805.4 1,757.9 3
Operating income (loss) (258.4) 287.7 *
Adjusted OIBDA® 451.0 472.4 (5)
Adjusted OIBDA® margin 25 % 27 %

Net income (loss) attributable to OUTFRONT Media Inc. (430.4) 147.9 *
Funds from operations (“FFO”)®) attributable to OUTFRONT Media Inc. 130.0 325.2 (60)
Adjusted FFO (“AFFO”)® attributable to OUTFRONT Media Inc. 270.6 311.3 (13)

*  Calculation is not meaningful.

(a) Organic revenues exclude revenues associated with a significant acquisition and the impact of foreign currency exchange rates (“non-organic revenues”). We provide organic
revenues to understand the underlying growth rate of revenue excluding the impact of non-organic revenue items. Our management believes organic revenues are useful to
users of our financial data because it enables them to better understand the level of growth of our business period to period. Since organic revenues are not calculated in
accordance with GAAP, it should not be considered in isolation of, or as a substitute for, revenues as an indicator of operating performance. Organic revenues, as we calculate
it, may not be comparable to similarly titted measures employed by other companies.

(b) See the “Reconciliation of Non-GAAP Financial Measures” and “Revenues” sections of this MD&A for reconciliations of Operating income (loss) to Operating income (loss)
before Depreciation, Amortization, Net gain (loss) on dispositions, Stock-based compensation and Impairment charges (“Adjusted OIBDA”") Net income (loss) attributable to
OUTFRONT Media Inc. to FFO attributable to OUTFRONT Media Inc. and AFFO attributable to OUTFRONT Media Inc., andRevenues to organic revenues.

Analysis of Results of Operations

Revenues

We derive Revenues primarily from providing advertising space to customers on our advertising structures and sites. Our contracts with customers
generally cover periods ranging from four weeks to one year. Revenues from billboard displays are recognized as rental income on a straight-line basis

over the contract term. Transit and other revenues are recognized over the contract period. (See Item 8., Note 11. Revenues to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.)
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Year Ended December 31,

(in millions, except percentages) 2023 2022 % Change
Revenues:
Billboard $ 14449 $ 1,384.7 4 %
Transit and other 375.7 387.4 3)
Total revenues 1,820.6 1,772.1 3

Organic revenues®:

Billboard $ 1,429.7 $ 1,371.0 4
Transit and other 375.7 386.9 3)
Total organic revenues(® 1,805.4 1,757.9 3
Non-organic revenues:
Billboard 15.2 13.7 11
Transit and other — 0.5 *
Total non-organic revenues 15.2 14.2 7
Total revenues $ 1,8206 $ 1,772.1 3

*  Calculation is not meaningful.
(a) Organic revenues exclude revenues associated with a significant acquisition and the impact of foreign currency exchange rates (“non-organic revenues”).

Total revenues increased $48.5 million, or 3%, and organic revenues increased $47.5 million, or 3%, in 2023 compared to 2022.

In 2023 and 2022, non-organic revenues reflect the impact of a significant acquisition. In 2022, non-organic revenues also reflect the impact of foreign
currency exchange rates.

Total billboard revenues increased $60.2 million, or 4%, in 2023 compared to 2022, primarily due to an increase in average revenue per display (yield),
driven by the impact of programmatic and direct sale advertising platforms on digital billboard revenues, the impact of new and lost billboards in the
period, including acquisitions, and higher proceeds from condemnations.

Organic billboard revenues increased $58.7 million, or 4%, in 2023 compared to 2022, primarily due to an increase in average revenue per display
(yield), driven by the impact of programmatic and direct sale advertising platforms on digital billboard revenues, the impact of new and lost billboards in
the period, including insignificant acquisitions, and higher proceeds from condemnations.

Total transit and other revenues decreased $11.7 million, or 3%, in 2023 compared to 2022, primarily due to a decrease in average revenue per display
(yield), driven by weaker market conditions in national advertising, which primarily impacted advertising sales on certain above-ground advertising
displays, partially offset by the impact of a new transit franchise contract.

Organic transit and other revenues in 2023 decreased $11.2 million, or 3%, compared to 2022, primarily due to a decrease in average revenue per
display (yield), driven by weaker market conditions in national advertising, which primarily impacted advertising sales on certain above-ground advertising
displays, partially offset by the impact of a new transit franchise contract.

Transit ridership remains materially below pre-COVID-19 pandemic levels in our largest transit markets and while we expect ridership to gradually grow

over time, we do not expect ridership to reach pre-COVID-19 pandemic levels during the remaining terms of our current transit agreements. While
ridership has increased during 2023 as compared to 2022, the increase in ridership has not led to an increase in overall demand for transit displays.
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Expenses

Year Ended December 31,

(in millions, except percentages) 2023 2022 % Change

Expenses:
Operating $ 968.3 $ 911.4 6 %
Selling, general and administrative 429.7 422.1 2
Net (gain) loss on dispositions (14.2) 0.2 *
Impairment charges 534.7 — *
Depreciation 79.3 77.4 2
Amortization 81.2 73.3 11

Total expenses $ 2,079.0 $ 1,484.4 40

*  Calculation is not meaningful.

Operating Expenses
Our operating expenses are composed of the following:

Billboard property lease expenses. These expenses reflect the cost of leasing the real property on which our billboards are mounted. These lease
agreements have terms varying between one month and multiple years, and usually provide renewal options. Rental expenses are comprised of a fixed
rental amount and under certain agreements, also include contingent rent, which varies based on the revenues we generate from the leased site. The
fixed portion of property leases are generally paid in advance for periods ranging from one to twelve months and expensed evenly over the contract term.
Contingent rent is generally paid in arrears and is expensed as incurred when the related revenues are recognized.

Transit franchise expenses . These expenses reflect costs charged by municipalities and transit operators under transit advertising contracts. All of these
contracts have fixed terms, are typically terminable for convenience at the option of the governmental entity (other than with respect to the MTA), and
generally provide for payments to the governmental entity based on a percentage of the revenues generated under the contract and/or a guaranteed
minimum annual payment. The costs that are determined based on a percentage of revenues are expensed as incurred when the related revenues are
recognized, and any guaranteed minimum annual payment is expensed over the contract term.

Posting, maintenance and other site-related expenses . These expenses primarily reflect costs associated with posting and rotation, materials, repairs and
maintenance, utilities and property taxes.

Year Ended December 31,

(in millions, except percentages) 2023 2022 % Change

Operating expenses:

Billboard property lease $ 5049 $ 454.7 11 %

Transit franchise 240.3 235.3 2

Posting, maintenance and other 223.1 221.4 1
Total operating expenses $ 968.3 $ 911.4 6

Billboard property lease expenses represented 35% of billboard revenues in 2023 and 33% in 2022. The increase in billboard property lease expenses
as a percentage of billboard revenues in 2023 compared to 2022 is primarily due to an increase in variable billboard property lease expenses (see Item
8., Note 5. Leases to the Consolidated Financial Statements), which are primarily attributable to billboard revenue increases in large markets and high
profile locations, an out-of-period adjustment of $5.2 million recorded in 2023, related to variable billboard property lease expenses (see Iltem 8., Note 1.
Description of Business and Basis of Presentation to the Consolidated Financial Statements), and the impact of new locations, including through
acquisitions.

Transit franchise expenses represented 71% of transit display revenues in 2023 and 67% in 2022. The increase in transit franchise expenses, as a
percentage of revenues, is primarily driven by higher guaranteed minimum annual payments to the MTA. We expect transit franchise expenses, as a
percentage of transit display revenues, to decline in 2024 compared to 2023, but remain above pre-COVID-19 pandemic levels, as a result of our
expectation that revenues generated under the MTA Agreement (as defined below) in 2024 will grow at a compound annual growth rate above the
inflation-adjusted guaranteed minimum annual payments to the MTA.
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Billboard property lease and transit franchise expenses increased by $55.2 million in 2023 compared to 2022, primarily due to higher variable billboard
property lease expenses, including an out-of-period adjustment of $5.2 million recorded in 2023, related to variable billboard property lease expenses
(see Item 8., Note 1. Description of Business and Basis of Presentation to the Consolidated Financial Statements), the impact of new locations, including
through acquisitions, and higher guaranteed minimum annual payments to the MTA.

Posting, maintenance and other expenses, as a percentage of revenues, were 12% in each of 2023 and 2022. Posting, maintenance and other expenses
increased $1.7 million, or 1%, in 2023 compared to 2022, primarily due to higher compensation-related expenses and higher maintenance and utilities
cost, driven by inflationary cost increases in 2023, partially offset by lower posting and rotation costs.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses (“SG&A”)

SG&A expenses represented 24% of Revenues in 2023 and 24% in 2022. SG&A expenses increased $7.6 million, or 2%, in 2023 compared to 2022,
primarily due to the impact of market fluctuations on an unfunded equity-linked retirement plan offered by the Company to certain employees, higher
professional fees, rent related to new offices, higher insurance costs and a higher provision for doubtful accounts, partially offset by lower compensation-
related expenses. We continue to evaluate methods to lower SG&A expense growth.

Net (Gain) Loss on Dispositions

Net gain on dispositions was $14.2 million in 2023 compared to a Net loss on dispositions of $0.2 million in 2022. The Net gain on dispositions in 2023
was primarily related to the sale of three parcels of land and the related structures in Los Angeles, California, (see Item 8., Note 12. Acquisitions and
Dispositions: Dispositions: Los Angeles Office and Operations Center to the Consolidated Financial Statements) and in St. Louis, Missouri.

Impairment Charges
In 2023, we recorded impairment charges of $534.7 million.

As a result of the impairment analysis performed during the second quarter of 2023, we determined that the carrying value of our U.S. Transit and Other
reporting unit exceeded its fair value and we recorded an impairment charge of $47.6 million in the Consolidated Statements of Operations, representing
the entire goodwill balance associated with the reporting unit. (See the “Critical Accounting Policies” section of this MD&A.)

During the second quarter of 2023, we also performed an analysis of the carrying value of our long-lived asset groups within our U.S. Transit and Other
reporting unit as a result of the triggering event noted above utilizing undiscounted cash flows compared to the carrying value of the asset groups and
determined that they were not fully recoverable. We then compared the fair value of the assets (calculated using a cash flow model) to the carrying value
and we recorded an impairment charge of $463.5 million in the second quarter of 2023, primarily representing a $443.1 million impairment charge related
to our MTA asset group. As a result of our continued expectation of negative aggregate cash flows related to our MTA asset group, we recorded
additional impairment charges of $12.1 million in the third quarter of 2023 and $11.0 million in the fourth quarter of 2023, representing additional MTA
equipment deployment cost spending during the quarters. (See Item 8., Note 4. Long-Lived Assets to the Consolidated Financial Statements.)

In addition, in the second quarter of 2023, we recorded an impairment charge of $0.3 million related to an other-than-temporary decline in fair value of a
cost-method investment.

Depreciation

Depreciation increased $1.9 million, or 2%, in 2023 compared to 2022, primarily due to capital expenditures and acquisitions in 2022, partially offset by an
increase in fully-depreciated assets.

Amortization
Amortization increased $7.9 million, or 11%, in 2023 compared to 2022, due primarily to higher amortization of leasehold interest intangibles recorded

related to asset acquisitions, partially offset by lower amortization related to franchise agreements associated with the MTA.
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Interest Expense
Interest expense, net, was $158.4 million (including $6.7 million of deferred financing costs) in 2023 and $131.8 million (including $6.5 million of deferred
financing costs) in 2022. The increase in Interest expense, net, in 2023 compared to 2022, was primarily due to higher interest rates and a higher

average debt balance.

Loss on Extinquishment of Debt

In 2023, we recorded a loss on extinguishment of debt of $8.1 million relating to the redemption of all of our outstanding 6.250% Senior Unsecured Notes
due 2025 (the “2025 Notes”) in the fourth quarter of 2023.

Benefit (Provision) for Income Taxes

Provision for income taxes decreased $5.4 million, or 57%, in 2023 compared to 2022, due primarily to a valuation allowance against our U.S. taxable
REIT subsidiary (“TRS”) accumulated deferred tax assets in 2022. The effective income tax rate was 0.9% for 2023 and 6.0% for 2022.

Net Income (Loss)

Net loss before allocation to non-controlling interests was $429.7 million in 2023 compared to Net income before allocation to non-controlling interests of
$149.1 million in 2022, driven by lower operating income, due primarily to impairment charges, and higher interest expense.

Reconciliation of Non-GAAP Financial Measures
Adjusted OIBDA

We calculate Adjusted OIBDA as operating income (loss) before depreciation, amortization, net (gain) loss on dispositions, stock-based compensation
and impairment charges. We calculate Adjusted OIBDA margin by dividing Adjusted OIBDA by total revenues. Adjusted OIBDA and Adjusted OIBDA
margin are among the primary measures we use for managing our business, evaluating our operating performance and planning and forecasting future
periods, as each is an important indicator of our operational strength and business performance. Our management believes users of our financial data are
best served if the information that is made available to them allows them to align their analysis and evaluation of our operating results along the same
lines that our management uses in managing, planning and executing our business strategy. Our management also believes that the presentations of
Adjusted OIBDA and Adjusted OIBDA margin, as supplemental measures, are useful in evaluating our business because eliminating certain non-
comparable items highlight operational trends in our business that may not otherwise be apparent when relying solely on GAAP financial measures. It is
management’s opinion that these supplemental measures provide users of our financial data with an important perspective on our operating performance
and also make it easier for users of our financial data to compare our results with other companies that have different financing and capital structures or
tax rates.

FFO and AFFO

When used herein, references to “FFO” and “AFFO” mean “FFO attributable to OUTFRONT Media Inc.” and “AFFO attributable to OUTFRONT Media
Inc.,” respectively. We calculate FFO in accordance with the definition established by the National Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts
(“NAREIT"). FFO reflects net income (loss) attributable to OUTFRONT Media Inc. adjusted to exclude gains and losses from the sale of real estate
assets, impairment charges, depreciation and amortization of real estate assets, amortization of direct lease acquisition costs and the same adjustments
for our equity-based investments and non-controlling interests, as well as the related income tax effect of adjustments, as applicable. We calculate AFFO
as FFO adjusted to include cash paid for direct lease acquisition costs as such costs are generally amortized over a period ranging from four weeks to
one year and therefore are incurred on a regular basis. AFFO also includes cash paid for maintenance capital expenditures since these are routine uses
of cash that are necessary for our operations. In addition, AFFO excludes losses on extinguishment of debt, as well as certain non-cash items, including
non-real estate depreciation and amortization, impairment charges on non-real estate assets, stock-based compensation expense, accretion expense,
the non-cash effect of straight-line rent, amortization of deferred financing costs and the same adjustments for our non-controlling interests, along with
the non-cash portion of income taxes, and the related income tax effect of adjustments, as applicable. We use FFO and AFFO measures for managing
our business and for planning and forecasting future periods, and each is an important indicator of our operational strength and business performance,
especially compared to other REITs. Our management believes
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users of our financial data are best served if the information that is made available to them allows them to align their analysis and evaluation of our
operating results along the same lines that our management uses in managing, planning and executing our business strategy. Our management also
believes that the presentations of FFO and AFFO, as supplemental measures, are useful in evaluating our business because adjusting results to reflect
items that have more bearing on the operating performance of REITs highlight trends in our business that may not otherwise be apparent when relying
solely on GAAP financial measures. It is management's opinion that these supplemental measures provide users of our financial data with an important
perspective on our operating performance and also make it easier to compare our results to other companies in our industry, as well as to REITs.

Since Adjusted OIBDA, Adjusted OIBDA margin, FFO and AFFO are not measures calculated in accordance with GAAP, they should not be considered
in isolation of, or as a substitute for, operating income (loss), net income (loss) attributable to OUTFRONT Media Inc., and revenues, the most directly
comparable GAAP financial measures, as indicators of operating performance. These measures, as we calculate them, may not be comparable to
similarly titled measures employed by other companies. In addition, these measures do not necessarily represent funds available for discretionary use
and are not necessarily a measure of our ability to fund our cash needs.
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The following table reconciles Operating income (loss) to Adjusted OIBDA, and Net income (loss) attributable to OUTFRONT Media Inc. to FFO

attributable to OUTFRONT Media Inc. and AFFO attributable to OUTFRONT Media Inc.

Year Ended December 31,

(in millions) 2023 2022
Total revenues 1,8206  $ 1,772.1
Operating income (loss) (2584) $ 287.7
Net (gain) loss on dispositions (14.2) 0.2
Impairment charges 534.7 —
Depreciation 79.3 77.4
Amortization 81.2 73.3
Stock-based compensation 28.4 33.8
Adjusted OIBDA 4510 $ 472.4
Adjusted OIBDA margin 25 % 27 %
Net (loss) income attributable to OUTFRONT Media Inc. (4304) % 147.9
Depreciation of billboard advertising structures 60.2 56.1
Amortization of real estate-related intangible assets 71.1 62.8
Amortization of direct lease acquisition costs @ 55.4 58.5
Net (gain) loss on disposition of real estate assets (14.2) 0.2
Impairment charges®) 388.2 —
Adjustment related to non-controlling interests (0.3) (0.3)
FFO attributable to OUTFRONT Media Inc. 130.0 325.2
Non-cash portion of income taxes (2.7) 6.1
Cash paid for direct lease acquisition costs @ (58.2) (57.3)
Maintenance capital expenditures (30.2) (25.5)
Other depreciation 19.1 21.3
Other amortization 10.1 10.5
Impairment charges on non-real estate assets ®)© 146.5 —
Stock-based compensation 28.4 33.8
Non-cash effect of straight-line rent 9.7 (12.1)
Accretion expense 3.1 2.8
Amortization of deferred financing costs 6.7 6.5
Loss on extinguishment of debt 8.1 —
AFFO attributable to OUTFRONT Media Inc. 270.6 $ 311.3

(a) Variable commissions directly associated with billboard revenues.

(b) Impairment charges related to a decline in the long-term outlook of our U.S. Transit and Other reporting unit (see Note 4.Long-Lived Assets to the Consolidated Financial

Statements).
(c) Impairment charge related to an other-than-temporary decline in fair value of a cost-method investment.

FFO attributable to OUTFRONT Media Inc. in 2023 of $130.0 million decreased $195.2 million, or 60%, compared to 2022, due primarily to impairment
charges on non-real estate assets, higher interest expense and lower Adjusted OIBDA. AFFO attributable to OUTFRONT Media Inc. in 2023 of $270.6
million decreased $40.7 million, or 13%, compared to 2022, due primarily to higher interest expense, lower Adjusted OIBDA and higher maintenance

capital expenditures, partially offset by the impact of non-cash effect of straight-line rent.
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Segment Results of Operations

We present Adjusted OIBDA as the primary measure of profit and loss for our reportable segments. (See the “Key Performance Indicators” section of this
MD&A and Item 8., Note 18. Segment Information to the Consolidated Financial Statements.)

We currently manage our operations through two operating segments—U.S. Billboard and Transit, which is included in our U.S. Media reportable
segment, and International. International does not meet the criteria to be a reportable segment and accordingly, is included in Other. Our segment

reporting therefore includes U.S. Media and Other.

The following table presents our Revenues, Adjusted OIBDA and Operating income (loss) by segment in 2023 and 2022.

Year Ended December 31,

(in millions) 2023 2022
Revenues:
U.S. Media $ 1,7223 % 1,673.9
Other 98.3 98.2
Total revenues $ 1,820.6 $ 1,772.1
Operating income (loss) $ (258.4) $ 287.7
Net (gain) loss on dispositions (14.2) 0.2
Impairment charges 534.7 —
Depreciation 79.3 77.4
Amortization 81.2 73.3
Stock-based compensation® 28.4 33.8
Total Adjusted OIBDA $ 4510 $ 472.4

Adjusted OIBDA:

U.S. Media $ 4794 $ 501.2
Other 23.1 20.6
Corporate (51.5) (49.4)
Total Adjusted OIBDA $ 4510 $ 472.4

Operating income (loss):

U.S. Media $ (189.9) $ 363.0
Other 11.4 7.9
Corporate (79.9) (83.2)
Total operating income (loss) $ (258.4) $ 287.7

(a) Stock-based compensation is classified as Corporate expense.
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U.S. Media

Year Ended December 31,

(in millions, except percentages) 2023 2022 % Change
Revenues:
Billboard $ 1,369.7 $ 1,308.8 5%
Transit and other 352.6 365.1 ?3)
Total revenues $ 1,722.3 $ 1,673.9 3

Organic revenues®:

Billboard $ 1,354.5 $ 1,297.8 4
Transit and other 352.6 365.1 3)
Total organic revenues® 1,707.1 1,662.9 3

Non-organic revenues:

Billboard 15.2 11.0 38
Transit and other — — *
Total non-organic revenues 15.2 11.0 38
Total revenues 1,722.3 1,673.9 3

Operating expenses (915.4) (856.4)

SG&A expenses (327.5) (316.3) 4
Adjusted OIBDA $ 4794  $ 501.2 (4)
Adjusted OIBDA margin 28 % 30 %

Operating income (loss) $ (189.9) $ 363.0 (152)
Net (gain) loss on dispositions (14.2) 0.2 *
Impairment charges 534.7 — *
Depreciation and amortization 148.8 138.0 8
Adjusted OIBDA $ 479.4 $ 501.2 4)
New York metropolitan area revenues as a percentage of U.S. Media segment revenues 20 % 20 %

Los Angeles metropolitan area revenues as a percentage of U.S. Media segment revenues 15 15

*  Calculation is not meaningful.

(@) Organic revenues exclude revenues associated with a significant acquisition (“non-organic revenues”).

Total U.S. Media segment revenues increased $48.4 million, or 3%, in 2023 compared to 2022, due primarily to higher billboard revenues. We generated
approximately 42% in 2023 and 44% in 2022 of our U.S. Media segment revenues from national advertising campaigns.

In 2023 and 2022, non-organic revenues reflect the impact of a significant acquisition.

Billboard revenues in the U.S. Media segment increased $60.9 million, or 5%, in 2023 compared to 2022, reflecting an increase in average revenue per
display (yield), driven by the impact of programmatic and direct sale advertising platforms on digital billboard revenues, the impact of new and lost
billboards in the period, including acquisitions, and higher proceeds from condemnations.

Organic billboard revenues in the U.S. Media segment increased $56.7 million, or 4%, in 2023 compared to 2022, primarily due to an increase in average
revenue per display (yield), driven by the impact of programmatic and direct sale advertising platforms on digital billboard revenues, the impact of new
and lost billboards in the period, including insignificant acquisitions, and higher proceeds from condemnations.

Transit and other revenues in the U.S. Media segment decreased $12.5 million, or 3%, in 2023 compared to 2022, driven by a decrease in average

revenue per display (yield), driven by weaker market conditions in national advertising, which primarily
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impacted advertising sales on certain above-ground advertising displays, partially offset by the impact of a new transit franchise contract.

Organic transit and other revenues in the U.S. Media segment decreased $12.5 million, or 3%, in 2023, compared to 2022, primarily driven by a decrease
in average revenue per display (yield), driven by weaker market conditions in national advertising, which primarily impacted advertising sales on certain
above-ground advertising displays, partially offset by the impact of a new transit franchise contract.

Transit ridership remains materially below pre-COVID-19 pandemic levels in our largest transit markets and while we expect ridership to gradually grow
over time, we do not expect ridership to reach pre-COVID-19 pandemic levels during the remaining terms of our current transit agreements. While
ridership has increased during 2023 as compared to 2022, the increase in ridership has not led to an increase in overall demand for transit displays.

Billboard property lease expenses in the U.S. Media segment represented 35% of billboard revenues in 2023 and 33% in 2022, and transit franchise
expenses represented 73% of transit display revenues in 2023 and 68% in 2022. We expect transit franchise expenses, as a percentage of transit
display revenues, to decline in 2024 compared to 2023, but remain above pre-COVID-19 pandemic levels, as a result of our expectation that revenues
generated under the MTA Agreement (as defined below) in 2024 will grow at a compound annual growth rate above the inflation-adjusted guaranteed
minimum annual payments to the MTA. Operating expenses in the U.S. Media segment increased $59.0 million, or 7%, in 2023 compared to 2022,
primarily driven by higher variable billboard property lease expenses, including an out-of-period adjustment of $5.2 million recorded in 2023 (see Item 8.,
Note 1. Description of Business and Basis of Presentation to the Consolidated Financial Statements), higher guaranteed minimum annual payments to
the MTA, higher compensation-related expenses and higher maintenance and utilities cost, driven by inflationary cost increases in 2023, partially offset
by lower posting and rotation costs.

SG&A expenses in the U.S. Media segment increased $11.2 million, or 4%, in 2023 compared to 2022, primarily driven by higher professional fees,
higher insurance costs, higher rent related to new offices, a higher provision for doubtful accounts and higher compensation-related expenses.

In 2023, we recorded impairment charges of $534.7 million in the U.S. Media segment, primarily related to impairment charges related to our MTA asset
group and our U.S. Transit and Other reporting unit (see the “Critical Accounting Policies” section of this MD&A and Item 8., Note 4. Long-Lived Assets to
the Consolidated Financial Statements).

U.S. Media segment Adjusted OIBDA decreased $21.8 million, or 4%, in 2023 compared to 2022. Adjusted OIBDA margin was 28% in 2023 and 30% in
2022. The decrease in Adjusted OIBDA margins was due primarily to a higher increase in operating expenses, due to an increase in billboard property
lease expenses, including an out-of-period adjustment of $5.2 million recorded in 2023 related to variable billboard property lease expenses (see Item 8.,
Note 1. Description of Business and Basis of Presentation to the Consolidated Financial Statements), increases in the MTA guaranteed minimum annual
payments in 2023 and an increase in SG&A expenses, compared to a lower increase in revenues.
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Year Ended December 31,

(in millions, except percentages) 2023 2022 % Change
Revenues:
Billboard $ 75.2 $ 75.9 1) %
Transit and other 23.1 22.3 4
Total revenues $ 98.3 $ 98.2 —

Organic revenues®:

Billboard $ 75.2 $ 73.2
Transit and other 23.1 21.8
Total organic revenues® 98.3 95.0 3

Non-organic revenues:

Billboard — 2.7 *
Transit and other — 0.5 *
Total non-organic revenues — 3.2 *
Total revenues 98.3 98.2 —
Operating expenses (52.9) (55.0) 4)
SG&A expenses (22.3) (22.6) 1)
Adjusted OIBDA $ 23.1 $ 20.6 12
Adjusted OIBDA margin 23 % 21%
Operating income $ 11.4 $ 7.9 44
Depreciation and amortization 11.7 12.7 (8)
Adjusted OIBDA $ 231 $ 20.6 12

*  Calculation is not meaningful.

(@) Organic revenues exclude the impact of foreign currency exchange rates (“non-organic revenues”).

Total Other revenues increased $0.1 million in 2023 compared to 2022, primarily driven by an increase in average revenue per display (yield), partially
offset by the impact of foreign currency exchange rates.

In 2022, non-organic revenues reflect the impact of foreign currency exchange rates.

Organic Other revenues increased $3.3 million, or 3%, in 2023, compared to 2022, primarily driven by the impact of new billboards in the period, including
acquisitions, and an increase in average revenue per display (yield).

Other operating expenses decreased $2.1 million, or 4%, in 2023 compared to 2022, primarily driven by lower expenses in Canada, partially offset by the
impact of foreign currency exchange rates. Other SG&A expenses decreased $0.3 million, or 1%, in 2023 compared to 2022, primarily driven by lower
expenses in Canada, partially offset by the impact of foreign currency exchange rates.

Other Adjusted OIBDA increased $2.5 million, or 12%, in 2023 compared to 2022, due primarily to an increase in average revenue per display (yield) and
lower expenses in Canada, partially offset by the impact of foreign currency exchange rates.

Corporate

Corporate expenses primarily include expenses associated with employees who provide centralized services. Corporate expenses, excluding stock-
based compensation, were $51.5 million in 2023 and $49.4 million in 2022. Corporate expenses increased $2.1 million in 2023 compared to 2022,
primarily due to the impact of market fluctuations on an unfunded equity-linked retirement plan offered by the Company to certain employees and higher
professional fees, partially offset by lower compensation-related expenses.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of December 31, %
(in millions, except percentages) 2023 2022 Change
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 36.0 $ 40.4 (11)%
Receivables, less allowances of $17.2 in 2023 and $20.2 in 2022 287.6 315.5 9)
Prepaid lease and transit franchise costs 4.5 9.1 (51)
Other prepaid expenses 19.2 19.8 ?3)
Assets held for sale 34.6 — *
Other current assets 15.7 5.6 180
Total current assets 397.6 390.4 2
Liabilities:
Accounts payable 55.5 65.4 (15)
Accrued compensation 41.4 68.0 (39)
Accrued interest 34.2 31.1 10
Accrued lease and franchise costs 80.0 64.9 23
Other accrued expenses 56.2 47.6 18
Deferred revenues 37.7 35.3 7
Short-term debt 65.0 30.0 117
Short-term operating lease liabilities 180.9 188.1 4)
Liabilities held for sale 241 — *
Other current liabilities 18.0 21.2 (15)
Total current liabilities 593.0 551.6 8
Working capital $ (195.4) $ (161.2) 21

*  Calculation is not meaningful.

We continually project anticipated cash requirements for our operating, investing and financing needs as well as cash flows generated from operating
activities available to meet these needs. Due to seasonal advertising patterns and influences on advertising markets, our revenues and operating income
are typically highest in the fourth quarter, during the holiday shopping season, and lowest in the first quarter, as advertisers adjust their spending
following the holiday shopping season. Further, certain of our municipal transit contracts require guaranteed minimum annual payments to be paid on a
monthly or quarterly basis, as applicable.

Our short-term cash requirements primarily include payments for operating leases, guaranteed minimum annual payments, interest, capital expenditures,
equipment deployment costs and dividends. Funding for short-term cash needs will come primarily from our cash on hand, operating cash flows, our
ability to issue debt and equity securities, and borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facility (as defined below), the AR Facility (as defined below) or
other credit facilities that we may establish, to the extent available.

In addition, as part of our growth strategy, we frequently evaluate strategic opportunities to acquire new businesses, assets or digital technology.
Consistent with this strategy, we regularly evaluate potential acquisitions, ranging from small transactions to larger acquisitions, which transactions could
be funded through cash on hand, additional borrowings, equity or other securities, or some combination thereof.

Our long-term cash needs include principal payments on outstanding indebtedness and commitments related to operating leases and franchise and other
agreements, including any related guaranteed minimum annual payments, and equipment deployment costs. Funding for long-term cash needs will come
from our cash on hand, operating cash flows, our ability to issue debt and equity securities, and borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facility or other
credit facilities that we may establish, to the extent available.

Although we have taken several actions to date to preserve our financial flexibility and increase our liquidity, our short-term and long-term cash needs and

related funding capability may be adversely affected by the current heightened levels of inflation and related economic environment if cash on hand and
operating cash flows decrease in 2024, and our ability to issue debt and
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equity securities and/or borrow under our existing or new credit facilities on reasonable pricing terms, or at all, may become uncertain. (See the
“Overview” section of this MD&A.)

Working capital was a deficit of $195.4 million as of December 31, 2023, compared to a working capital deficit of $161.2 million as of December 31, 2022,
primarily driven by increased borrowings under the AR Facility and higher accrued lease and franchise costs, partially offset by lower bonus accruals.

Under the current MTA agreement, which was amended in June 2020 and July 2021 and is subject to modification as agreed-upon by us and the MTA
(as amended, the “MTA Agreement”):

«  Deployments. We must deploy, over a number of years, (i) 5,433 digital advertising screens on subway and train platforms and entrances, (ii)
15,896 smaller-format digital advertising screens on rolling stock, and (iii) 9,283 MTA communications displays. We are also obligated to deploy
certain additional digital advertising screens and MTA communications displays in subway and train stations and rolling stock that the MTA may
build or acquire in the future (collectively, the “New Inventory”).

*  Recoupment of Equipment Deployment Costs. We may retain incremental revenues that exceed an annual base revenue amount for the cost of
deploying advertising and communications displays throughout the transit system. As presented in the table below, recoupable MTA equipment
deployment costs are recorded as Prepaid MTA equipment deployment costs and Intangible assets on our Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position, and as these costs are recouped from incremental revenues that the MTA would otherwise be entitled to receive, Prepaid MTA
equipment deployment costs will be reduced. If incremental revenues generated over the term of the agreement are not sufficient to cover all or
a portion of the equipment deployment costs, the costs will not be recouped, which could have an adverse effect on our business, financial
condition and results of operations, including impairment charges (see ltem 8., Note 4. Long-Lived Assets to the Consolidated Financial
Statements). If we do not recoup all costs of deploying advertising and communications screens with respect to the New Inventory by the end of
the term of the MTA Agreement, the MTA will be obligated to reimburse us for these costs. Deployment costs in an amount not to exceed
$50.7 million, which are deemed authorized before December 31, 2020, will be paid directly by the MTA. For any deployment costs deemed
authorized after December 31, 2020, the MTA and the Company will no longer be obligated to directly pay 70% and 30% of the costs,
respectively, and these costs will be subject to recoupment in accordance with the MTA Agreement. We did not recoup any equipment
deployment costs in 2023. In addition, we currently do not expect to recoup any equipment deployment costs throughout the remainder of the
Amended Term (as defined below) of the MTA Agreement. We expect our MTA equipment deployment costs to be approximately $50.0 million in
2024. After 2024, we expect MTA equipment deployment costs to be approximately $30.0 million to $40.0 million annually throughout the
remainder of the Amended Term (as defined below) of the MTA Agreement and encompass replacement costs. Accordingly, we expect annual
MTA equipment deployment costs after 2024 to be significantly below prior year levels as we expect to substantially complete our initial
deployment during 2024.

* Payments. We must pay to the MTA the greater of a percentage of revenues or a guaranteed minimum annual payment. Our payment
obligations with respect to guaranteed minimum annual payment amounts owed to the MTA resumed on January 1, 2021, in accordance with the
terms of the MTA Agreement, and any guaranteed minimum annual payment amounts that would have been paid for the period from April 1,
2020 through December 31, 2020 (less any revenue share amounts actually paid during this period using an increased revenue share
percentage of 65%) will instead be added in equal increments to the guaranteed minimum annual payment amounts owed for the period from
January 1, 2022, through December 31, 2026. The MTA Agreement also provides that if prior to April 1, 2028 the balance of unrecovered costs
of deploying advertising and communications screens throughout the transit system is equal to or less than zero, then in any year following the
year in which such recoupment occurs (the “Recoupment Year”), the MTA is entitled to receive an additional payment equal to 2.5% of the
annual base revenue amount for such year calculated in accordance with the MTA Agreement, provided that gross revenues in such year (i)
were at least equal to the gross revenues generated in the Recoupment Year, and (ii) did not decline by more than 5% from the prior year.

e« Term. In July 2021, we extended the initial 10-year term of the MTA Agreement to a 13-year base term (the “Amended Term”). We have the
option to extend the Amended Term for an additional five-year period at the end of the Amended Term, subject to satisfying certain quantitative
and qualitative conditions.

We may utilize cash on hand and/or incremental third-party financing to fund equipment deployment costs over the next couple of years. However, given

the current heightened levels of inflation and related economic environment, we cannot reasonably estimate the aggregate financing amount, if any, at
this time. As of December 31, 2023, we have issued surety bonds in favor of
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the MTA totaling approximately $136.0 million, which amount is subject to change as equipment installations are completed and revenues are generated.
We expect transit franchise expenses, as a percentage of transit display revenues, to decline in 2024 compared to 2023, but remain above pre-COVID-19
pandemic levels, as a result of our expectation that revenues generated under the MTA Agreement in 2024 will grow at a compound annual growth rate
above the inflation-adjusted guaranteed minimum annual payments to the MTA. As indicated in the table below, we incurred $43.7 million related to MTA
equipment deployment costs in 2023 (which includes equipment deployment costs related to future deployments), for a total of $579.6 million to date, of
which $33.9 million had been recouped from incremental revenues to date. As of December 31, 2023, 19,697 digital displays had been installed,
composed of 5,121 digital advertising screens on subway and train platforms and entrances, 9,674 smaller-format digital advertising screens on rolling
stock and 4,902 MTA communications displays. In the fourth quarter of 2023, 911 installations occurred, for a total of 5,544 installations occurring in
2023.

During the second quarter of 2023, we performed an analysis of the carrying value of our long-lived asset groups within our U.S. Transit and Other
reporting unit as a result of the triggering event noted above utilizing undiscounted cash flows compared to the carrying value of the asset groups and
determined that they were not fully recoverable. We then compared the fair value of the assets (calculated using a cash flow model) to the carrying value
and we recorded an impairment charge of $463.5 million in the second quarter of 2023, primarily representing a $443.1 million impairment charge related
to our MTA asset group.

As a result of our continued expectation of negative aggregate cash flows related to our MTA asset group, we recorded additional impairment charges of
$12.1 million in the third quarter of 2023 and $11.0 million in the fourth quarter of 2023, representing additional MTA equipment deployment cost
spending during the quarters. (See the “Critical Accounting Policies” section of this MD&A and ltem 8., Note 4. Long-Lived Assets to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.)

Beginning Deployment Recoupment/MTA

(in millions) Balance Costs Incurred Funding Amortization/Impairment  Reclassification  Ending Balance
Year Ended December 31, 2023:
Prepaid MTA equipment deployment

costs $ 3632 $ 218 $ — % — % (385.0) $ —
Other current assets 1.6 (0.4) (0.2) — — 1.1
Intangible assets (franchise

agreements) 62.0 22.3 — (469.3) 385.0 —
Total $ 4268 $ 437 $ 01) $ (469.3) $ — $ 1.1
Year Ended December 31, 2022:
Prepaid MTA equipment deployment

costs $ 2798 $ 834 $ — % — 3 — $ 363.2
Other current assets 5.2 0.1 (3.7) — — 1.6
Intangible assets (franchise

agreements) 63.0 5.4 — (6.4) — 62.0
Total $ 3480 $ 889 $ 37 $ 6.4) $ — $ 426.8

On February 21, 2024, we announced that our board of directors approved a quarterly cash dividend of $0.30 per share on our common stock, payable
on March 28, 2024, to stockholders of record at the close of business on March 1, 2024.
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Debt

Debt, net, consists of the following:

As of December 31,

(in millions, except percentages) 2023 2022
Short-term debt:
AR Facility $ 65.0 $ 30.0
Total short-term debt 65.0 30.0
Long-term debt:
Term loan, due 2026 $ 598.9 $ 598.6
Senior secured notes:
7.375% senior secured notes, due 2031 450.0 —
Senior unsecured notes:
6.250% senior unsecured notes, due 2025 — 400.0
5.000% senior unsecured notes, due 2027 650.0 650.0
4.250% senior unsecured notes, due 2029 500.0 500.0
4.625% senior unsecured notes, due 2030 500.0 500.0
Total senior unsecured notes 1,650.0 2,050.0
Debt issuance costs (22.4) (22.6)
Total long-term debt, net 2,676.5 2,626.0
Total debt, net $ 2,741.5 $ 2,656.0
Weighted average cost of debt 5.7 % 52 %
Payments Due by Period
(in millions) Total 2024 2025-2026 2027-2028 2029 and thereafter
Long-term debt 2,700.0 $ — 3 600.0 $ 650.0 $ 1,450.0
Interest 723.2 157.4 258.2 1876 $ 120.0
Total 34232 $ 1574 $ 858.2 $ 8376 $ 1,570.0
Term Loan

The interest rate on the term loan due in 2026 (the “Term Loan”) was 7.1% per annum as of December 31, 2023. As of December 31, 2023, a discount of
$1.1 million on the Term Loan remains unamortized. The discount is being amortized through Interest expense, net, on the Consolidated Statement of

Operations.



Revolving Credit Facility

We also have a $500.0 million revolving credit facility, which matures in 2028 (the “Revolving Credit Facility,” together with the Term Loan, the “Senior
Credit Facilities”).

During the second quarter of 2023, the Company, along with its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Outfront Media Capital LLC (“Finance LLC”") and Outfront
Media Capital Corporation (together with Finance LLC, the “Borrowers”), and the other guarantors party thereto, entered into two amendments (the
“Amendments”) to the Credit Agreement (as defined below). The Amendments provide for (i) the replacement of the London Interbank Offered Rate with
the Secured Overnight Financing Rate as the interest rate benchmark, (ii) the extension of the maturity date of the Revolving Credit Facility from its
previous maturity date of November 18, 2024 to June 15, 2028, and (iii) an increase in the interest rate margins applicable to the Borrowers under the
Revolving Credit Facility from a range of 1.25% to 1.75% to a range of 1.75% to 2.25%, in the case of Secured Overnight Financing Rate borrowings,
based on the Borrowers’ leverage ratio. The Amendments also include springing maturity refinancing provisions with respect to the Borrowers’
outstanding term loan indebtedness and certain series of senior notes issued by the Borrowers, in each case, which have maturity dates prior to June 15,
2028, as well as other clarifying, conforming and ministerial changes to the Credit Agreement.

As of December 31, 2023, there were no outstanding borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facility.

The commitment fee based on the amount of unused commitments under the Revolving Credit Facility was $1.7 million in 2023, $1.6 million in 2022 and
$1.8 million in 2021. As of December 31, 2023, we had issued letters of credit totaling approximately $6.5 million against the letter of credit facility sublimit
under the Revolving Credit Facility.

Standalone Letter of Credit Facilities

As of December 31, 2023, we had issued letters of credit totaling approximately $75.6 million under our aggregate $81.0 million standalone letter of credit
facilities. The total fees under the letter of credit facilities in 2023, 2022 and 2021 were immaterial.

Accounts Receivable Securitization Facilities

As of December 31, 2023, we have a $150.0 million revolving accounts receivable securitization facility (the “AR Facility”), which terminates in May 2025,
unless further extended.

In connection with the AR Facility, Outfront Media LLC and Outfront Media Outernet Inc., each a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and certain of
the Company’s TRSs (the “Originators”), will sell and/or contribute their respective existing and future accounts receivable and certain related assets to
either Outfront Media Receivables LLC, a special purpose vehicle and wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company relating to the Company’s qualified REIT
subsidiary accounts receivable assets (the “QRS SPV”) or Outfront Media Receivables TRS, LLC a special purpose vehicle and wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company relating to the Company’s TRS accounts receivable assets (the “TRS SPV” and together with the QRS SPV, the “SPVs"). The SPVs
may transfer undivided interests in their respective accounts receivable assets to certain purchasers from time to time (the “Purchasers”). The SPVs are
separate legal entities with their own separate creditors who will be entitled to access the SPVs’ assets before the assets become available to the
Company. Accordingly, the SPVs’ assets are not available to pay creditors of the Company or any of its subsidiaries, although collections from the
receivables in excess of amounts required to repay the Purchasers and other creditors of the SPVs may be remitted to the Company. Outfront Media LLC
will service the accounts receivables on behalf of the SPVs for a fee. The Company has agreed to guarantee the performance of the Originators and
Outfront Media LLC, in its capacity as servicer, of their respective obligations under the agreements governing the AR Facility. Neither the Company, the
Originators nor the SPVs guarantee the collectability of the receivables under the AR Facility. Further, the TRS SPV and the QRS SPV are jointly and
severally liable for their respective obligations under the agreements governing the AR Facility.

As of December 31, 2023, there were $65.0 million of outstanding borrowings under the AR Facility, at a borrowing rate of 6.5%. As of December 31,
2023, borrowing capacity remaining under the AR Facility was $85.0 million based on approximately $316.0 million of accounts receivable that could be
used as collateral for the AR Facility in accordance with the agreements governing the AR Facility. The commitment fee based on the amount of unused
commitments under the AR Facility was $0.2 million in 2023, $0.3 million in 2022 and immaterial in 2021. In January 2024, we made a repayment of
$10.0 million under the AR Facility.
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Senior Secured Notes

On November 20, 2023, the Borrowers issued $450.0 million aggregate principal amount of 7.375% Senior Secured Notes due 2031 (the “2031 Notes”)
in a private placement. The 2031 Notes are senior secured obligations of the Borrowers and are guaranteed on a senior secured basis by the Company
and each of its direct and indirect domestic subsidiaries that guarantee the Senior Credit Facilities (the “Guarantors”). The Notes and the related
guarantees are secured by liens on substantially all of the assets of the Borrowers and the Guarantors, on a pari passu basis with the Senior Credit
Facilities (subject to the terms of an intercreditor agreement), subject to certain exceptions and permitted liens, including the exclusion of equity in
Canadian subsidiaries that are pending sale. Interest on the 2031 Notes is payable on May 15 and November 15 of each year, beginning on May 15,
2024. On or after November 15, 2026, the Borrowers may redeem at any time, or from time to time, some or all of the 2031 Notes. Prior to such date the
Borrowers may redeem up to 40% of the aggregate principal amount with the net proceeds of certain equity offerings, provided that at least 50% of the
aggregate principal amount of the 2031 Notes will remain outstanding after the redemption. In addition the Borrowers may redeem some or all of the
2031 Notes at any time, or from time to time, prior to November 15, 2026, at a price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the 2031 Notes to be
redeemed, plus the applicable “make whole” premium, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the date of redemption.

On November 21, 2023, we used the net proceeds from the issuance of the 2031 Notes to redeem all of our outstanding 2025 Notes and to pay accrued
and unpaid interest on the 2025 Notes, if any, to, but excluding, the redemption date, and to pay fees and expenses in connection with the 2031 Notes
offering and the 2025 Notes redemption. In the fourth quarter of 2023, we recorded a Loss on extinguishment of debt of $8.1 million relating to the 2025
Notes on the Consolidated Statement of Operations.

Debt Covenants

Our credit agreement, dated as of January 31, 2014 (as amended, restated, amended and restated, supplemented or otherwise modified, the “Credit
Agreement”), governing the Senior Credit Facilities, the agreements governing the AR Facility, and the indentures governing our senior notes contain
customary affirmative and negative covenants, subject to certain exceptions, including but not limited to those that restrict the Company’s and its
subsidiaries’ abilities to (i) pay dividends on, repurchase or make distributions in respect to the Company’s or its wholly-owned subsidiary, Outfront Media
Capital LLC’s capital stock or make other restricted payments other than dividends or distributions necessary for us to maintain our REIT status, subject
to certain conditions and exceptions, (ii) enter into agreements restricting certain subsidiaries’ ability to pay dividends or make other intercompany or
third-party transfers, and (iii) incur additional indebtedness. One of the exceptions to the restriction on our ability to incur additional indebtedness is
satisfaction of a Consolidated Total Leverage Ratio, which is the ratio of our consolidated total debt to our Consolidated EBITDA (as defined in the Credit
Agreement) for the trailing four consecutive quarters, of no greater than 6.0 to 1.0. As of December 31, 2023, our Consolidated Total Leverage Ratio was
5.3 to 1.0 in accordance with the Credit Agreement.

The terms of the Credit Agreement (and under certain circumstances, the agreements governing the AR Facility) require that we maintain a Consolidated
Net Secured Leverage Ratio, which is the ratio of (i) our consolidated secured debt (less up to $150.0 million of unrestricted cash) to (ii) our Consolidated
EBITDA (as defined in the Credit Agreement) for the trailing four consecutive quarters, of no greater than 4.5 to 1.0. As of December 31, 2023, our
Consolidated Net Secured Leverage Ratio was 2.0 to 1.0 in accordance with the Credit Agreement. As of December 31, 2023, we are in compliance with
our debt covenants.

Deferred Financing Costs

As of December 31, 2023, we had deferred $27.4 million in fees and expenses associated with the Term Loan, the Revolving Credit Facility, the AR
Facility and our senior notes. We are amortizing the deferred fees through Interest expense, net, on our Consolidated Statement of Operations over the
respective terms of the Term Loan, Revolving Credit Facility, AR Facility and our senior notes.

Equity

At-the-Market Equity Offering Program

We have a sales agreement in connection with an “at-the-market” equity offering program (the “ATM Program”), under which we may, from time to time,
issue and sell shares of our common stock up to an aggregate offering price of $300.0 million. We have no obligation to sell any of our common stock

under the sales agreement and may at any time suspend solicitations and offers under the sales agreement. In 2023, no shares of our common stock
were sold under the ATM Program. As of December 31, 2023, we had approximately $232.5 million of capacity remaining under the ATM Program.
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Series A Preferred Stock Issuance

On April 20, 2020, we issued 400,000 shares of our Series A Convertible Perpetual Preferred Stock (the “Series A Preferred Stock”), par value $0.01 per
share. The Series A Preferred Stock ranks senior to the shares of the Company’s common stock with respect to dividend and distribution rights. Holders
of the Series A Preferred Stock are entitled to a cumulative dividend accruing at the initial rate of 7.0% per year, payable quarterly in arrears, subject to
increases as set forth in the Articles Supplementary, effective as of April 20, 2020 (the “Articles”). Dividends may, at the option of the Company, be paid
in cash, in-kind, through the issuance of additional shares of Series A Preferred Stock or a combination of cash and in-kind, until April 20, 2028, after
which time dividends will be payable solely in cash. So long as any shares of Series A Preferred Stock remain outstanding, the Company may not,
without the consent of a specified percentage of holders of shares of Series A Preferred Stock, declare a dividend on, or make any distributions relating
to, capital stock that ranks junior to, or on a parity basis with, the Series A Preferred Stock, subject to certain exceptions, including but not limited to (i)
any dividend or distribution in cash or capital stock of the Company on or in respect of the capital stock of the Company to the extent that such dividend
or distribution is necessary to maintain the Company’s status as a REIT; and (ii) any dividend or distribution in cash in respect of our common stock that,
together with the dividends or distributions during the 12-month period immediately preceding such dividend or distribution, is not in excess of 5% of the
aggregate dividends or distributions paid by the Company necessary to maintain its REIT status during such 12-month period. If any dividends or
distributions in respect of the shares of our common stock are paid in cash, the shares of Series A Preferred Stock will participate in the dividends or
distributions on an as-converted basis up to the amount of their accrued dividend for such quarter, which amounts will reduce the dividends payable on
the shares of Series A Preferred Stock dollar-for-dollar for such quarter. The Series A Preferred Stock is convertible at the option of any holder at any
time into shares of our common stock at an initial conversion price of $16.00 per share and an initial conversion rate of 62.50 shares of our common stock
per share of Series A Preferred Stock, subject to certain anti-dilution adjustments and a share cap as set forth in the Articles. Subject to certain
conditions set forth in the Articles (including a change of control), each of the Company and the holders of the Series A Preferred Stock may convert or
redeem the Series A Preferred Stock at the prices set forth in the Articles, plus any accrued and unpaid dividends.

Cash Flows

The following table sets forth our cash flows in 2023 and 2022.

Year Ended December 31, %
(in millions, except percentages) 2023 2022 Change
Net cash flow provided by operating activities $ 2542 $ 254.1 — %
Net cash flow used for investing activities (107.5) (449.5) (76)
Net cash flow used for financing activities (151.5) (188.0) (29)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 0.4 (2.0) *
Net decrease to cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash $ 4.4) $ (384.4) (99)

*  Calculation is not meaningful.

Cash provided by operating activities increased $0.1 million in 2023 compared to 2022, due primarily to a decrease in prepaid MTA equipment
deployment costs, partially offset by lower net income in 2023 compared to 2022, due to increased operating and SG&A expenses, and higher interest
expense. In 2023, we paid net cash of $44.4 million related to MTA equipment deployment costs and installed 5,544 digital displays. In 2022, we paid
$79.8 million related to MTA equipment deployment costs and installed 3,061 digital displays.

Cash used for investing activities decreased $342.0 million, or 76%, in 2023 compared to 2022, due primarily to lower cash paid for acquisitions and
higher cash received from dispositions.

The following table presents our capital expenditures in 2023 and 2022.

Year Ended December 31, %
(in millions, except percentages) 2023 2022 Change
Growth $ 56.6 $ 64.3 (12)%
Maintenance 30.2 25.5 18
Total capital expenditures $ 86.8 $ 89.8 3)
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Capital expenditures decreased $3.0 million, or 3%, in 2023 compared to 2022, primarily due to the timing of payments related to growth in digital
displays and lower spending on safety-related projects, partially offset by higher spending related to the renovation of certain office facilities.

For the full year of 2024, we expect our capital expenditures to be approximately $75.0 million, which will be used primarily for growth in digital displays,
software and technology, maintenance, safety-related projects and the renovation of certain office facilities. This estimate does not include equipment
deployment costs that will be incurred in connection with the MTA Agreement (as described above).

Cash used for financing activities decreased $36.5 million, or 19%, in 2023 compared to 2022. In 2023, drew $35.0 million of net borrowings under the
AR Facility, received net proceeds of $50.0 million related to the offering of the 2031 Notes and the redemption of the 2025 Notes, and paid total cash
dividends of $207.0 million on our common stock, the Series A Preferred Stock and vested restricted share units granted to employees, as well as
deferred financing costs related to the offering of the 2031 Notes and payment of debt extinguishment charges related to the redemption of the 2025
Notes. In 2022, we drew $30.0 million of borrowings on the AR Facility and paid total cash dividends of $205.8 million on our common stock, the Series A
Preferred Stock, and vested restricted share units granted to employees.

Cash paid for income taxes was $6.7 million in 2023 and $3.3 million in 2022. The increase was due primarily to the timing of Canadian estimated income
tax payments.

Contractual Obligations

We have agreements with municipalities and transit operators which entitle us to operate advertising displays within their transit systems, including on the
interior and exterior of rail and subway cars and buses, as well as on benches, transit shelters, street kiosks, and transit platforms. Under most of these
franchise agreements, the franchisor is entitled to receive the greater of a percentage of the relevant revenues, net of agency fees, or a specified
guaranteed minimum annual payment. Guaranteed minimum annual payments are generally paid monthly. (See ltem 8., Note 17. Commitments and
Contingencies to the Consolidated Financial Statements.)

Total future minimum payments for rental payments under operating leases for billboard sites, office space and equipment of $2,323.0 million include
$2,192.1 million for our billboard sites. (See Item 8., Note 5. Leases to the Consolidated Financial Statements.)

As of December 31, 2023, we had long-term debt of approximately $2.7 billion. Interest on the Term Loan is variable. For illustrative purposes, we are
assuming an interest rate of 7.1% for all years, which reflects the interest rate as of December 31, 2023. An increase or decrease of 1/4% in the interest
rate will change the annual interest expense by $1.5 million. (See Item 8., Note 8. Debt to the Consolidated Financial Statements.)

In 2024, we do not expect to contribute to our defined benefit pension plans. (See Item 8., Note 14. Retirement Benefits to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.)

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Our off-balance sheet commitments primarily consist of guaranteed minimum annual payments. (See Item 8., Note 17. Commitments and Contingencies
to the Consolidated Financial Statements for information about our off-balance sheet commitments.)

Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of our financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. On an ongoing basis, we evaluate these estimates, which are based on historical experience and on
various assumptions that we believe are reasonable under the circumstances. The result of these evaluations forms the basis for making judgments
about the carrying values of assets and liabilities and the reported amount of revenues and expenses that are not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions.

We consider the following accounting policies to be the most critical as they are significant to our financial condition and results of operations, and require
significant judgment and estimates on the part of management in their application. For a
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summary of our significant accounting policies, see Item 8., Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

MTA Agreement

Under the current MTA Agreement, which is subject to modification as agreed-upon by us and the MTA, we are obligated to deploy, over a number of
years, (i) 5,433 digital advertising screens on subway and train platforms and entrances, (ii) 15,896 smaller-format digital advertising screens on rolling
stock, and (i) 9,283 MTA communications displays. In addition, we are entitled to generate revenue through the sale of advertising on transit advertising
displays and incur transit franchise expenses, which are calculated based on contractually stipulated percentages of revenue generated under the
contract, subject to a minimum guarantee.

Title of the various digital displays transfers to the MTA on installation, therefore the cost of deploying these screens throughout the transit system does
not represent our property and equipment. The portion of recoupable MTA equipment deployment costs expected to be reimbursed from transit franchise
fees that would otherwise be payable to the MTA are recorded as Prepaid MTA equipment deployment costs on the Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position and charged to operating expenses as advertising revenue is generated. The short-term portion of Prepaid MTA equipment deployment costs
represents the costs that we expect to recover from the MTA in the next twelve months. The portion of deployment costs expected to be reimbursed from
advertising revenues that would otherwise be retained by us under the contract are recorded as Intangible assets on the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position and charged to amortization expense on a straight-line basis over the contract period. We assess the recoverability of the MTA
contract on an as-needed basis and apply significant judgment in assessing factors to determine if there is an indication that the revenues expected to be
generated over the term of the agreement will be sufficient to cover all or a portion of the equipment deployment costs, including evaluating
macroeconomic conditions, product demand, industry trends, and events specific to the Company, including monitoring the Company’s actual installation
of digital displays against the deployment schedule. Additionally, we assess these factors by comparing revenue projections of the deployed digital
displays to actual financial results.

If we do not generate sufficient advertising revenues from the MTA contract, there is a risk that the related Prepaid MTA equipment deployment costs
and Intangible assets may not be recoverable. Management assesses the prepaid MTA equipment deployment costs for recoverability on a quarterly
basis. This assessment requires evaluating qualitative and quantitative factors to determine if there is an indication that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. Management applies significant judgment in assessing these factors, including evaluating macroeconomic conditions, product demand,
industry trends, and events specific to the Company, including monitoring the Company’s actual installation of digital displays against the initial
deployment schedule.

Additionally, management assesses quantitative factors by comparing revenue projections of the deployed digital displays to actual financial results. In
2022, we updated our projections and did not identify a triggering event for an impairment review of our Prepaid MTA equipment deployment costs. The
projections utilized for 2022 assumed the continued recovery of transit ridership and revenues towards pre-COVID-19 levels and expected growth in
revenue generation from our significant digital deployment throughout the MTA transit system as required by the MTA Agreement. By the end of the first
half of 2023, it was determined that our MTA transit revenue recovery had stalled since our MTA transit revenue did not meet our revenue expectations,
and as of June 30, 2023, our revenue pacing and outlook for the remainder of 2023 reflected a continued decline in MTA transit revenues as compared to
our 2023 forecast due to the underperformance across the MTA transit system. Accordingly, in the second quarter of 2023, we updated our revenue
projections to reflect no growth in 2023 followed by 5% to 10% growth throughout the remainder of the Amended Term of the MTA Agreement. As a
result of the reduced revenue forecast and reduced time remaining on the Amended Term of the MTA Agreement, we currently do not expect to recoup
any Prepaid MTA equipment deployment costs throughout the remainder of the Amended Term of the MTA Agreement. As a result, in the second
quarter of 2023, we reclassified $385.0 million of Prepaid MTA equipment deployment costs to Intangible Assets. We then reviewed our MTA long-lived
asset group to determine if there was a triggering event for impairment, noting that we were projecting negative aggregate cash flows of approximately
$50.0 million through the remainder of the Amended Term of the MTA Agreement. Consequently, in the second quarter of 2023, we recorded an
impairment charge of $443.1 million, representing all of our MTA long-lived asset group.

All future deployment costs spending will be recorded as Intangible assets rather than as Prepaid MTA equipment deployment costs until such time as
we project to recoup spending from transit franchise fees that would otherwise be payable to the MTA, which we currently do not expect throughout the
remainder of the Amended Term of the MTA Agreement. Even if we do not recoup our spending from transit franchise fees that would otherwise be
payable to the MTA, our current projections are that the MTA Agreement will be cash flow neutral (i.e., Adjusted OIBDA related to the MTA Agreement
will equal MTA equipment deployment costs) over the remaining Amended Term of the MTA Agreement at some point in 2024. We will assess
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these equipment deployment costs for impairment each period. Currently, future impairment charges may be required during 2024 with respect to all or a
portion of the up to approximately $50.0 million of MTA equipment deployment costs we expect to spend in 2024, and may be required beyond 2024 with
respect to all or a portion of the additional MTA equipment deployment costs we will be required to incur under the MTA Agreement, in each case, to the
extent we continue to project cash flow losses throughout the remainder of the Amended Term of the MTA Agreement based on the assumptions and
estimates described in this section and/or other factors that may arise.

Our performance during the second half of 2023 was in line with our expectations as of the end of the second quarter of 2023. We evaluated our long-
term MTA revenue projections as of year-end 2023, and we continue to believe that MTA transit revenue will grow by 5% to 10% throughout the
remainder of the Amended Term of the MTA Agreement. As a result, as of December 31, 2023, we continue to project negative aggregate cash flows of
approximately $25.0 million through the remainder of the Amended Term of the MTA Agreement. We expect to be cash flow neutral at some point in
2024. As a result of our continued expectation of negative aggregate cash flows related to the MTA, we recorded additional impairment charges of
$12.1 million in the third quarter of 2023 and $11.0 million in the fourth quarter of 2023, representing additional MTA equipment deployment cost
spending during the quarters.

We performed a sensitivity analysis on our MTA transit revenue assumptions, noting that a change in our annual revenue growth rate of 1% between
2024 and 2030, holding all other assumptions constant except for variable sales compensation, would result in an approximately $70.0 million aggregate
change in estimated cash flows. The assumptions and estimates included in our analysis require significant judgment about future events, market
conditions and financial performance. Actual results may differ from our assumptions. There can be no assurance that these estimates and assumptions
will prove to be an accurate prediction of the future, and a downward revision of these estimates and/or assumptions would decrease our cash flows,
which could result in additional impairment charges in the future.

Gooawill

We test goodwill qualitatively and/or quantitatively at the reporting-unit level annually for impairment as of October 31 of each year and between annual
tests if events occur or circumstances change that would more likely than not reduce the fair value below its carrying amount. A qualitative test assesses
macroeconomic conditions, industry and market conditions, cost factors, overall financial performance and other relevant entity specific events, as well as
events affecting a reporting unit. If after the qualitative assessment, we determined that it is more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is
less than its carrying value, we perform a quantitative assessment. We may also choose to only perform a quantitative assessment. We compute the
estimated fair value of each reporting unit for which we perform a quantitative assessment by using an income approach. Under the income approach,
the fair value is determined using a discounted cash flow model. Our discounted cash flow value is calculated by adding the present value of the
estimated annual cash flows over a discrete projection period to the terminal value, which represents the value of the projected cash flows beyond the
discrete projection period. Our discounted cash flow model requires us to use significant estimates and assumptions such as projected revenue growth
rates, terminal growth rates, billboard lease and transit franchise expenses, other operating and selling, general and administrative expenses, capital
expenditures, contract renewals and extensions, and discount rates. The estimated growth rates, operating margins and capital expenditures for the
projection period are based on our internal forecasts of future performance as well as historical trends. The terminal value is estimated based on a
perpetual nominal growth rate, which is based on projected long-range inflation and long-term industry projections. The discount rates represent the
weighted average cost of capital derived using known and estimated market metrics.

By the end of the first half of 2023, it was determined that our transit revenue recovery had stalled since our U.S. Transit and Other reporting unit did not
meet revenue expectations, and as of June 30, 2023, our pacing and outlook for the remainder of 2023 reflected a continued decline in transit revenues
as compared to our 2023 forecast due to the underperformance across our transit business, including the MTA transit system. As a result, we determined
that there was a triggering event requiring an interim goodwill impairment analysis of our U.S. Transit and Other reporting unit.

Our current discounted cash flow model assumptions and estimates with respect to revenues in our U.S. Transit and Other reporting unit is currently
projected to grow in the mid-single digits in 2024, high single digits in 2025-2026 and then trending back to a mid-single digit growth rate thereafter. We
believe this growth will be driven by expected revenue generation from increased demand for transit digital displays due to additional rolling stock digital
deployment in the MTA transit system and additional digital deployment in other transit systems, product enhancements to our transit digital displays and
related assets, and a gradual increase in transit ridership over the remaining terms of our transit franchise agreements. Additionally, we are currently no
longer assuming that we will exercise the five-year extension to the Amended Term of the MTA Agreement due to our lowered revenue growth
assumptions and currently contractually required increase to the minimum annual guarantee
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payments to the MTA during the extension period. Other than with respect to the MTA Agreement, we are assuming that we will be able to renew our
significant transit franchise agreements.

As a result of the impairment analysis performed during the second quarter of 2023, we determined that the carrying value of our U.S. Transit and Other
reporting unit exceeded its fair value and we recorded an impairment charge of $47.6 million in the Consolidated Statements of Operations, representing
the entire goodwill balance associated with the reporting unit.

In the fourth quarter of 2023, we performed a qualitative assessment on our U.S. Billboard and Canadian reporting units as the estimated fair value of
those reporting units substantially exceeded carrying value and there were no factors indicating that it was more likely than not that those reporting units
were impaired. As of December 31, 2023, the goodwill balances associated with the U.S. billboard reporting unit was $2,006.4 million and $22.9 million
related to the Canada reporting unit was included in Assets Held for Sale on the Consolidated Statements of Financial Position.

The assumptions and estimates included in our analysis require significant judgment about future events, market conditions and financial performance.
Actual results may differ from our assumptions. There can be no assurance that these estimates and assumptions will prove to be an accurate prediction
of the future, and a downward revision of these estimates and/or assumptions would decrease the fair values of our reporting units, which could result in
additional impairment charges in the future.

Long-Lived Assets

We report long-lived assets, including billboard advertising structures, other property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and amortization. We depreciate or amortize these assets over their estimated useful lives, which generally range from three to
40 years. For billboard advertising structures, we estimate the useful lives based on the estimated economic life of the asset. Transit fixed assets are
depreciated over the shorter of their estimated useful lives or the related contractual term. Our long-lived identifiable intangible assets primarily consist of
acquired permits and leasehold agreements and franchise agreements, which grant us the right to operate out-of-home advertising structures in specified
locations and the right to provide advertising displays on railroad and municipal transit properties. Our long-lived identifiable intangible assets are
amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, which is the respective life of the agreement and in some cases includes an
estimation for renewals, which is based on historical experience. The significant assumptions we use to determine the useful lives and fair values of long-
lived assets include contractual commitments, regulatory requirements, future expected cash flows and industry growth rates, as well as future salvage
values.

We test for long-lived asset impairment whenever there is an indication that the carrying amount of the asset group may not be recoverable.
Recoverability of these assets is determined by comparing the forecasted undiscounted cash flows generated by those assets to the respective asset's
carrying value, excluding any impacts from foreign currency translation adjustments reflected in Accumulated other comprehensive loss on the
Consolidated Statement Financial Position in conformity with GAAP. The amount of impairment loss, if any, will be measured by the difference between
the net carrying value and the estimated fair value of the asset and recognized as a non-cash charge. Long-lived assets held for sale are required to be
measured at the lower of their carrying value (including unrecognized foreign currency translation adjustment losses) or fair value less cost to sell.

We compute the estimated fair value of each asset group for which we perform a quantitative assessment using an income approach. Under the income
approach, the fair value is determined using a discounted cash flow model. Our cash flow models requires us to use significant estimates and
assumptions such as projected revenue growth rates, billboard lease and transit franchise expenses, other operating and selling, general and
administrative expenses, capital expenditures, and discount rates. The projected revenue growth rates, billboard lease and transit franchise expenses,
other operating and selling, general and administrative expenses and capital expenditures are based on our internal forecasts of future performance, as
well as historical trends. The discount rates represent the weighted average cost of capital derived using known and estimated market metrics. There can
be no assurance that these estimates and assumptions will prove to be an accurate prediction of the future, and a downward revision of these estimates
and/or assumptions would decrease the fair values of our asset groups, which could result in additional impairment charges in the future.

By the end of the first half of 2023, it was determined that our transit revenue recovery had stalled since our U.S. Transit and Other reporting unit did not
meet revenue expectations, and as of June 30, 2023, our pacing and outlook for the remainder of 2023 reflected a continued decline in transit revenues
as compared to our 2023 forecast due to the underperformance across our transit business, including the MTA transit system. As a result, we determined
that there was a triggering event requiring an impairment analysis of the assets groups within our U.S. Transit and Other reporting unit. We performed an
analysis of the carrying value of our long-lived asset groups, utilizing undiscounted cash flows, and determined that they were not fully
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recoverable. We then compared the fair value of the assets (calculated using a cash flow model) to the carrying value and we recorded an impairment
charge of $463.5 million in the second quarter of 2023, primarily representing a $443.1 million impairment charge related to our MTA asset group. As a
result of our continued expectation of negative aggregate cash flows related to the MTA asset group, we recorded additional impairment charges of $12.1
million in the third quarter of 2023 and $11.0 million in the fourth quarter of 2023, representing additional MTA equipment deployment cost spending
during the quarters. (See the “Critical Accounting Policies: MTA Agreement” section of this MD&A.”

Accounting Standards

See Item 8., Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies to the Consolidated Financial Statements, for information about adoption of new
accounting standards and recent accounting pronouncements.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.
We are exposed to market risk related to commodity prices and foreign currency exchange rates, and to a limited extent, interest rates and credit risks.
Commodity Price Risk

We incur various operating costs that are subject to price risk caused by volatility in underlying commodity values. Commodity price risk is present in
electricity costs associated with powering our digital billboard displays and lighting our traditional static billboard displays at night.

We do not currently use derivatives or other financial instruments to mitigate our exposure to commodity price risk. However, we do enter into contracts
with commodity providers to limit our exposure to commodity price fluctuations. For the year ended December 31, 2023, such contracts accounted for
6.2% of our total utility costs. As of December 31, 2023, we had active electricity purchase agreements with fixed contract rates for locations in lllinois,
New York and Texas, which expire at various dates through May 2025.

Foreign Exchange Risk

Foreign currency translation risk is the risk that exchange rate gains or losses arise from translating our Canadian business’s statements of earnings and
statements of financial position from functional currency to our reporting currency (the U.S. Dollar) for consolidation purposes. Any gain or loss on
translation is included within comprehensive income and Accumulated other comprehensive income on our Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.
The functional currency of our international subsidiaries is their respective local currency. As of December 31, 2023, we have $6.1 million of unrecognized
foreign currency translation losses included within Accumulated other comprehensive loss on our Consolidated Statement of Financial Position. All
unrecognized foreign currency losses will be included within the gain or loss recorded upon consummation of the Transaction. (See Item 8., Note 12.
Acquisitions and Dispositions: Disposition: Canadian Business to the Consolidated Financial Statements.)

Substantially all of our transactions at our Canadian subsidiary are denominated in their local functional currency, thereby reducing our risk of foreign
currency transaction gains or losses.

We do not currently use derivatives or other financial instruments to mitigate foreign currency risk, although we may do so in the future.
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Interest Rate Risk
We are subject to interest rate risk to the extent we have variable-rate debt outstanding, including under our Senior Credit Facilities and the AR Facility.

As of December 31, 2023, we had a $600.0 million variable-rate Term Loan due 2026 outstanding, which has an interest rate of 7.1% per year. An
increase or decrease of 1/4% in our interest rate on the Term Loan will change our annualized interest expense by approximately $1.5 million.

As of December 31, 2023, there were $65.0 million of outstanding borrowings under the AR Facility, at a borrowing rate of 6.5%. An increase or decrease
of 1/4% in our interest rate on the AR Facility will change our annualized interest expense by approximately $0.2 million. In January 2024, we made a
repayment of $10.0 million under the AR Facility.

We are not currently using derivatives or other financial instruments to mitigate interest rate risk, although we may do so in the future.

Credit Risk

In the opinion of our management, credit risk is limited due to the large number of customers and advertising agencies utilized. We perform credit

evaluations on our customers and agencies and believe that the allowances for credit losses are adequate. We do not currently use derivatives or other
financial instruments to mitigate credit risk.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of OUTFRONT Media Inc.

Opinions on the Financial Statements and Internal Control over Financial Reporting

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position of OUTFRONT Media Inc. and its subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of
December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the related consolidated statements of operations, of comprehensive income (loss), of equity and of cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2023, including the related notes and financial statement schedules listed in the index
appearing under Item 15(a)(2) (collectively referred to as the “consolidated financial statements”). We also have audited the Company's internal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2023, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of
December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2023 in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material
respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2023, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated
Framework (2013) issued by the COSO.

Basis for Opinions

The Company's management is responsible for these consolidated financial statements, for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting,
and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial
Reporting appearing under Item 9A. Our responsibility is to express opinions on the Company’s consolidated financial statements and on the Company's
internal control over financial reporting based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States) (PCAOB) and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and
the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud, and whether
effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects.

Our audits of the consolidated financial statements included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a
test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.
Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that
a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audits
also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis
for our opinions.

Definition and Limitations of Internal Control over Financial Reporting

A company'’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures
of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
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company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company'’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Critical Audit Matters

The critical audit matters communicated below are matters arising from the current period audit of the consolidated financial statements that were
communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that (i) relate to accounts or disclosures that are material to the consolidated
financial statements and (i) involved our especially challenging, subjective, or complex judgments. The communication of critical audit matters does not
alter in any way our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, taken as a whole, and we are not, by communicating the critical audit matters
below, providing separate opinions on the critical audit matters or on the accounts or disclosures to which they relate.

Recoverability of Prepaid MTA Equipment Deployment Costs

As described in Notes 2 and 17 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company has an agreement with the New York Metropolitan Transportation
Authority (“MTA”"). As disclosed by management, under the current MTA agreement, which was amended in June 2020 and July 2021 and is subject to
modification as agreed upon by the Company and the MTA, the Company is obligated to deploy, over a number of years, certain digital advertising
screens and MTA communications displays. The Company is entitled to generate revenue through the sale of advertising on transit advertising displays
and incurs transit franchise fees payable to the MTA, which are calculated based on a percentage of the advertising revenues generated under the
contract, subject to a minimum guarantee. As title of the various digital displays the Company is obligated to deploy transfers to the MTA on installation,
the cost of deploying these screens throughout the transit system does not represent the Company’s property and equipment. The portion of deployment
costs expected to be reimbursed from transit franchise fees that would otherwise be payable to the MTA are recorded as prepaid MTA equipment
deployment costs on the consolidated statement of financial position and charged to operating expenses as advertising revenue is generated.
Management assesses the recoverability of the MTA contract on an as-needed basis and applies significant judgment in assessing factors to determine if
there is an indication that the revenues expected to be generated over the term of the agreement will be sufficient to cover all or a portion of the
equipment deployment costs, including evaluating macroeconomic conditions, industry trends, and events specific to the Company, including monitoring
the Company'’s actual installation of digital displays against the deployment schedule. Additionally, management assesses these factors by comparing
revenue projections of the deployed digital displays to actual financial results. As disclosed by management, as a result of the reduced revenue forecast
and reduced time remaining on the amended term of the MTA agreement, the Company currently does not expect to recoup any prepaid MTA equipment
deployment costs throughout the remainder of the amended term of the MTA agreement. As a result, in the second quarter of 2023, the Company
reclassified $385.0 million of prepaid MTA equipment deployment costs to intangible assets. Consequently, as of December 31, 2023, prepaid MTA
equipment deployment costs were $0. The principal considerations for our determination that performing procedures relating to the recoverability of the
prepaid MTA equipment deployment costs is a critical audit matter are (i) the significant judgment by management in evaluating the recoverability of the
prepaid equipment deployment costs; and (ii) a high degree of auditor judgment, subjectivity, and effort in performing procedures and evaluating
management’s significant assumption related to revenues expected to be generated over the term of the agreement. Addressing the matter involved
performing procedures and evaluating audit evidence in connection with forming our overall opinion on the consolidated financial statements. These
procedures included testing the effectiveness of controls relating to management’s accounting for performance under the MTA agreement, including
controls over the assessment of the recoverability of the prepaid MTA equipment deployment costs. These procedures also included, among others, (i)
determining whether there have been amendments to the MTA agreement in the current year and evaluating the impact of any such amendments, (ii)
testing management's process for assessing the recoverability of the prepaid MTA equipment deployment costs, (iii) testing the completeness and
accuracy of underlying data used in management's recoverability assessment, (iv) evaluating the actual revenue generated from the deployed digital
displays in comparison to management’s revenue projections from the prior year, (v) evaluating the Company’s installation of digital displays against the
deployment schedule, and (vi) evaluating the reasonableness of the significant assumption used by management related to revenues expected to be
generated over the term of the agreement. Evaluating management’s assumption related to revenues expected to be generated over the term of the
agreement involved evaluating whether the assumption used by management was reasonable considering (i) the comparison of revenue projections of
the deployed digital displays to actual financial results; (ii) the consistency with external market and industry data; and (iii) whether the assumption was
consistent with evidence obtained in other areas of the audit.
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Long-Lived Asset Interim Impairment Assessment - MTA Asset Group

As described in Notes 2 and 4 to the consolidated financial statements, long-lived assets are assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication
that the carrying amount of the assets may not be recoverable. Recoverability of these assets is determined by comparing the forecasted undiscounted
cash flows generated by those assets to the respective asset's carrying value. The amount of the impairment loss, if any, will be measured by the
difference between the net carrying value and the estimated fair value of the asset. Management computes the estimated fair value of each asset group
for which a quantitative assessment is performed using an income approach. Under the income approach, the fair value is determined using a
discounted cash flow model. Management determined that the decline in the long-term outlook of the U.S. Transit and Other reporting unit and the
related impact to future revenues and cash flows constituted a triggering event in the second quarter of 2023, requiring management to perform a
recoverability test of the Company’s long-lived asset groups as of June 30, 2023. As a result of that test, management recorded a long-lived asset
impairment charge of $463.5 million, primarily representing a $443.1 million impairment charge related to the MTA asset group, of which substantially all
of the impairment related to intangible assets. Management'’s cash flow models include significant estimates and assumptions such as projected revenue
growth rates, billboard lease and transit franchise expenses, other operating and selling, general and administrative expenses, capital expenditures, and
discount rates. The principal considerations for our determination that performing procedures relating to the long-lived asset interim impairment
assessment for the MTA asset group is a critical audit matter are (i) the significant judgment by management when developing the fair value estimate of
the MTA asset group; and (ii) a high degree of auditor judgment, subjectivity, and effort in performing procedures and evaluating management’s
significant assumption related to the projected revenue growth; and (iii) the audit effort involved in the use of professionals with specialized skill and
knowledge. Addressing the matter involved performing procedures and evaluating audit evidence in connection with forming our overall opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. These procedures included testing the effectiveness of controls relating to management’s long-lived asset interim
impairment assessment, including controls over management’s identification of events or changes in circumstances that indicate an impairment of an
asset group has occurred and controls over the valuation of the MTA asset group. These procedures also included, among others (i) testing
management’s process for developing the fair value estimate of the MTA asset group; (ii) evaluating the appropriateness of the cash flow models used
by management; (iii) testing the completeness and accuracy of underlying data used in the cash flow models; and (iv) evaluating the reasonableness of
the significant assumption used by management related to the projected revenue growth. Evaluating management's assumption related to the projected
revenue growth involved evaluating whether the assumption used by management was reasonable considering (i) the current and past performance of
the asset grouping; (ii) the consistency with external market and industry data; and (iii) whether the assumption was consistent with evidence obtained in
other areas of the audit. Professionals with specialized skill and knowledge were used to assist in evaluating the appropriateness of the cash flow
models.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
New York, New York
February 22, 2024

We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2008.
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As of December 31,

(in millions) 2023 2022
Assets:
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 36.0 40.4
Receivables, less allowances of $ 17.2 in 2023 and $ 20.2 in 2022 287.6 3155
Prepaid lease and transit franchise costs 4.5 9.1
Other prepaid expenses 19.2 19.8
Assets held for sale (Note 12) 34.6 —
Other current assets 15.7 5.6
Total current assets 397.6 390.4
Property and equipment, net (Note 3) 657.8 699.8
Goodwill (Note 4) 2,006.4 2,076.4
Intangible assets (Note 4) 695.4 858.5
Operating lease assets (Note 5) 1,591.9 1,562.6
Prepaid MTA equipment deployment costs (Note 17) — 363.2
Assets held for sale (Note 12) 214.3 —
Other assets 19.5 39.1
Total assets 5,582.9 5,990.0
Liabilities:
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 55.5 65.4
Accrued compensation 41.4 68.0
Accrued interest 34.2 31.1
Accrued lease and franchise costs 80.0 64.9
Other accrued expenses 56.2 47.6
Deferred revenues 37.7 35.3
Short-term debt (Note 8) 65.0 30.0
Short-term operating lease liabilities (Note 5) 180.9 188.1
Liabilities held for sale (Note 12) 241 —
Other current liabilities 18.0 21.2
Total current liabilities 593.0 551.6
Long-term debt, net (Note 8) 2,676.5 2,626.0
Deferred income tax liabilities, net (Note 15) — 15.2
Asset retirement obligation (Note 6) 33.0 37.8
Operating lease liabilities (Note 5) 1,417.4 1,369.0
Liabilities held for sale (Note 12) 90.9 —
Other liabilities 42.0 41.2
Total liabilities 4,852.8 4,640.8
Commitments and contingencies (Note 17)
Preferred stock (2023 - 50.0 shares authorized, and 0.1 shares of Series A Preferred Stock issued and outstanding; 2022
- 50.0 shares authorized, and 0.1 shares of Series A Preferred Stock issued and outstanding) (Note 10) 119.8 119.8
Stockholders’ equity (Note 10):
Common stock 2023 - 450.0 shares authorized, and 165.1 shares issued and outstanding; 2022 - 450.0 shares
authorized, and 164.2 shares issued or outstanding) 1.7 1.6
Additional paid-in capital 2,432.2 2,416.3
Distribution in excess of earnings (1,821.1) (1,183.4)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (Note 9) (5.8) (9.1)
Total stockholders’ equity 607.0 1,225.4
Non-controlling interests 3.3 4.0
Total equity 730.1 1,349.2
Total liabilities and equity 5,582.9 5,990.0

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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OUTFRONT Media Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Operations

Year Ended December 31,

(in millions, except per share amounts) 2023 2022 2021
Revenues:
Billboard $ 14449 $ 1,384.7 % 1,182.3
Transit and other 375.7 387.4 281.6
Total revenues 1,820.6 1,772.1 1,463.9
Expenses:
Operating 968.3 911.4 784.0
Selling, general and administrative 429.7 422.1 368.2
Net (gain) loss on dispositions (14.2) 0.2 (4.5)
Impairment charges 534.7 — 25
Depreciation 79.3 77.4 79.4
Amortization 81.2 73.3 66.0
Total expenses 2,079.0 1,484.4 1,295.6
Operating income (loss) (258.4) 287.7 168.3
Interest expense, net (158.4) (131.8) (130.4)
Loss on extinguishment of debt (8.1) — (6.3)
Other income (loss), net 0.3 (0.2) —
Income (loss) before benefit (provision) for income taxes and equity in earnings of investee
companies (424.6) 155.7 31.6
Benefit (provision) for income taxes (4.0) (94) 3.4
Equity in earnings of investee companies, net of tax (1.1) 2.8 1.4
Net income (loss) before allocation to non-controlling interests (429.7) 149.1 36.4
Net income attributable to non-controlling interests 0.7 1.2 0.8
Net income (loss) attributable to OUTFRONT Media Inc. $ (4304) $ 1479 % 35.6
Net income (loss) per common share:
Basic $ (2.66) $ 084 $ 0.05
Diluted $ (266) $ 084 $ 0.05
Weighted average shares outstanding:
Basic 164.9 161.1 145.4
Diluted 164.9 161.8 146.1

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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OUTFRONT Media Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Year Ended December 31,

(in millions) 2023 2022 2021
Net income (loss) before allocation to non-controlling interests $ (429.7) $ 1491 $ 36.4
Net income attributable to non-controlling interests 0.7 1.2 0.8
Net income (loss) attributable to OUTFRONT Media Inc. (430.4) 147.9 35.6
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Cumulative translation adjustments 3.1 (7.9) —
Net actuarial gain 0.2 2.8 8.4
Change in fair value of interest rate swap agreements — 0.4 5.2
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax 3.3 (4.7) 13.6
Total comprehensive income (loss) $ (427.1) $ 1432 % 49.2

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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OUTFRONT Media Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Equity

Stockholders’ Equity

Series A
Preferred Common
Shares of  Stock ($ Stock $ Accumulated
Series A 0.01 per  Shares of 0.01per  Additional Distribution Other Total Non-
(in millions, except per  Preferred share par Common  share par Paid-In in Excess of Comprehensive Stockholders’ Controlling Total
share amounts) Stock value) Stock value) Capital Earnings Income (Loss) Equity Interests Equity
Balance as of December
31, 2020 04 $ 3834 1445 $ 14 $ 2,090.8 $ (1,1004) $ (18.0) $ 9738 $ 265 $ 1,383.7
Net income — — — — — 35.6 — 35.6 0.8 36.4
Other comprehensive
income — — — — — 13.6 13.6 — 13.6
Stock-based
payments:
Vested — — 11 0.1 — — — 0.1 — 0.1
Amortization —_ —_ —_ —_ 28.6 —_ —_ 28.6 — 28.6
Shares paid for tax
withholding for
stock-based
payments — — (0.5) — (8.9) — — (8.9) — (8.9)
Class A equity interest
redemptions — — 0.5 — 11.8 — — 11.8 (11.8) —
Series A Preferred
Stock dividends 7
%) — — — — — (28.0) — (28.0) — (28.0)
Dividends ($ 0.20 per
share) — — — — — (29.2) — (29.2) — (29.2)
Other — — (3.3) — — (3.3) (25) (5.8)
Balance as of December
31, 2021 0.4 383.4 145.6 15 2,119.0 (1,122.0) (4.4) 994.1 13.0 1,390.5
Net income — — — — — 147.9 — 147.9 1.2 149.1
Other comprehensive
(loss) — — — — — — (47) (47) — (4.7)
Stock-based
payments:
Vested — — 1.2 — — — — — — —
Amortization — — — — 33.8 — — 33.8 — 338
Shares paid for tax
withholding for
stock-based
payments — — (0.4) — (11.8) — — (11.8) — (11.8)
Class A equity interest
redemptions — — 0.4 — 8.6 — — 8.6 (8.6) —
Series A Preferred
Stock Conversions (0.3) (266.8) 17.4 0.1 266.7 — 266.8 — —
Series A Preferred
Stock dividends 7
%) = 3.2 = = = (12.0) = (12.0) — (8.8)
Dividends ($ 1.20 per
share) — — — — — (197.3) — (197.3) — (197.3)
Other — — — — — — — — (1.6) (1.6)
Balance as of December
31, 2022 01 $ 1198 1642 $ 16 $ 24163 $ (1,1834) $ (91) $ 1,2254  $ 40 $1,349.2
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OUTFRONT Media Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Equity (Continued)

Stockholders’ Equity

Series A
Preferred Common
Shares of Stock ($ Stock ($ Accumulated
Series A 0.01 per Shares of 0.01 per Additional Distribution in Other Total Non-

(in millions, except per Preferred share par Common share par Paid-In Excess of Comprehensive Stockholders’ Controlling Total
share amounts) Stock value) Stock value) Capital Earnings Loss Equity Interests Equity
Balance as of

December 31, 2022 0.1 % 119.8 1642 $ 16 $ 24163 $ (1,1834)% (91) % 12254 $ 40 $ 1,349.2
Net income (loss) — — — — — (430.4) — (430.4) 0.7 (429.7)

Other comprehensive

income — — — — — — 33 3.3 3.3
Stock-based

payments:
Vested — — 1.6 0.1 — — — 0.1 — 0.1
Amortization — — — — 28.4 — — 28.4 — 28.4
Shares paid for tax

withholding for

stock-based

payments — — (0.7) — (125) — — (125) — (125)
Series A Preferred

Stock dividends 7

%) — — — — — (8.8) — (8.8) — (8.8)
Dividends ($ 1.20 per

share) = = = = = (198.5) = (1985) —  (1985)
Other — — — — — — — — (14) (14)

Balance as of

December 31, 2023 01 $ 119.8 165.1 $ 1.7 $ 24322% (1,821.1)% (58) % 607.0 $ 33 $§ 7301

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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OUTFRONT Media Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31,

(in millions) 2023 2022 2021

Operating activities:

Net income (loss) attributable to OUTFRONT Media Inc. $ (4304) $ 1479 $ 35.6

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash flow provided by operating activities:
Net income attributable to non-controlling interests 0.7 1.2 0.8
Depreciation and amortization 160.5 150.7 145.4
Deferred tax (benefit) provision (0.1) 4.7 (4.7)
Stock-based compensation 28.4 33.8 28.6
Provision (recovery) for doubtful accounts 5.8 4.9 (4.0)
Accretion expense 3.1 2.8 2.7
Net (gain) loss on dispositions (14.2) 0.2 (4.5)
Impairment charges 511.4 — 25
Loss on extinguishment of debt 8.1 — 6.3
Equity in earnings of investee companies, net of tax 11 (2.8) (1.4)
Distributions from investee companies 1.0 1.9 0.7
Amortization of deferred financing costs and debt discount and premium 6.7 6.5 7.1

Change in assets and liabilities, net of investing and financing activities:

Increase in receivables (4.0) (11.2) (94.6)
Increase in prepaid MTA equipment deployment costs (21.8) (83.4) (75.2)
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses and other current assets (4.9) 6.0 15.0
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued expenses (4.0) (0.3) 38.9
Increase (decrease) in operating lease assets and liabilities 10.6 (15.4) 0.4
Increase in deferred revenues 35 4.5 14
Increase (decrease) in income taxes (2.6) 1.3 (0.4)
Other, net (4.7) 0.8 (1.8)
Net cash flow provided by operating activities 254.2 254.1 98.8

Investing activities:

Capital expenditures (86.8) (89.8) (73.8)
Acquisitions (33.7) (353.9) (136.5)
MTA franchise rights 0.6 (6.8) (16.5)
Proceeds from dispositions 12.4 1.3 2.8
Investment in investee companies — (0.3) —
Net cash flow used for investing activities (107.5) (449.5) (224.0)

Financing activities:

Proceeds from long-term debt borrowings 450.0 — 500.0
Repayments of long-term debt borrowings (400.0) — (500.0)
Proceeds from borrowings under short-term debt facilities 120.0 30.0 —
Repayments of borrowings under short-term debt facilities (85.0) — (80.0)
Payments of deferred financing costs (10.7) (0.4) (7.3)
Payments of debt extinguishment charges (6.3) — (4.7)
Taxes withheld for stock-based compensation (12.5) (11.8) (9.0)
Dividends (207.0) (205.8) (57.5)
Other — — (3.7)
Net cash flow used for financing activities (1515) (188.0) (162.2)
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OUTFRONT Media Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Continued)

Year Ended December 31,

(in millions) 2023 2022 2021
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash 0.4 (1.0) 0.2

Net decrease in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash (4.4) (384.4) (287.2)
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at beginning of year 40.4 424.8 712.0
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at end of year $ 360 $ 404 $ 424.8
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

Cash paid for income taxes (Note 15) $ 6.7 $ 33 % 1.7

Cash paid for interest 150.7 126.3 117.8
Non-cash investing and financing activities:

Accrued purchases of property and equipment $ 77 $ 84 $ 3.2

Accrued MTA franchise rights 3.0 3.1 4.5

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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OUTFRONT Media Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1. Description of Business and Basis of Presentation
Description of Business

OUTFRONT Media Inc. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, “we,” “us” or “our”) is a real estate investment trust (“REIT”), which provides
advertising space (“displays”) on out-of-home advertising structures and sites in the United States (the “U.S.”) and Canada. Our inventory consists of
billboard displays, which are primarily located on the most heavily traveled highways and roadways in top Nielsen Designated Market Areas (“DMAs”),
and transit advertising displays operated under exclusive multi-year contracts with municipalities in large cities across the U.S. and Canada. In total, we
have displays in all of the 25 largest markets in the U.S. and approximately 150 markets across the U.S. and Canada. We currently manage our
operations through two operating segments—U.S. Billboard and Transit, which is included in our U.S. Media reportable segment, and International.

On October 22, 2023, the Company, Outfront Canada HoldCo 2 LLC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and Outfront Canada Sub LLC, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (together, the “Selling Subsidiaries”), entered into a Share Purchase Agreement (the “Share Purchase
Agreement”) with Bell Media Inc. (the “Buyer”), relating to the sale of the Company’s outdoor advertising business in Canada (the “Canadian Business”).
Pursuant to the Share Purchase Agreement, the Selling Subsidiaries agreed to sell all of its (and its affiliates) equity interests in Outdoor Systems
Americas ULC and its subsidiaries (the “Transaction”), which hold all of the assets of the Canadian Business, to the Buyer, for C$ 410.0 million in cash,
payable on the date of the consummation of the Transaction (the “Closing”). (See Note 12. Acquisitions and Dispositions: Dispositions: Canadian
Business.)

Basis of Presentation and Use of Estimates

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared pursuant to the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC").
In the opinion of our management, the accompanying financial statements reflect all adjustments, consisting of normal and recurring adjustments,
necessary for a fair presentation of our financial position, results of operations and cash flows for the years presented.

The preparation of our financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”) requires
management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. We base our
estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results
may differ materially from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.

Out-of-Period Adjustment

For the three months ended March 31, 2023, the Company recorded an out-of-period adjustment relating to variable billboard property lease expenses
and accrued lease and franchise costs in 2022, resulting in a $ 5.2 million increase in Operating expenses for the three months ended March 31, 2023.
The Company assessed the materiality of the amount reflected in this adjustment on its previously issued financial statements in accordance with the
SEC'’s Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB”) No. 99 and SAB No. 108 and concluded that the amount was not material, individually or in the aggregate, to any
of its previously issued financial statements.

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation— The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of OUTFRONT Media Inc. and all of its subsidiaries in which a
controlling interest is maintained. Controlling interest is determined by majority ownership interest and the absence of substantive third-party participating
rights. Investments over which we have a significant influence or ownership of more than 20 % but less than or equal to 50 %, without a controlling
interest, are accounted for under the equity method. Investments of 20 % or less, over which we have no significant influence, that do not have a readily
determinable fair value, are measured at cost less impairment, if any. Intercompany transactions have been eliminated.

75



OUTFRONT Media Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Cash and Cash Equivalents —Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and short-term (maturities of three months or less at the date of
purchase) highly liquid investments.

Receivables —Receivables consist primarily of trade receivables from customers, net of advertising agency commissions, and are stated net of an
allowance for doubtful accounts. The provision for doubtful accounts is estimated based on historical bad debt experience, the aging of accounts
receivable, industry trends and economic indicators, recent payment history for specific customers and expected future trends.

New York Metropolitan Transportation Authority (the “MTA”") Agreement— Under our agreement with the MTA, as title of the various digital displays we
are obligated to deploy transfers to the MTA on installation, the cost of deploying these screens throughout the transit system does not represent our
property and equipment. The portion of deployment costs expected to be reimbursed from transit franchise fees that would otherwise be payable to the
MTA are recorded as Prepaid MTA equipment deployment costs on the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position and charged to operating
expenses as advertising revenue is generated. The short-term portion of Prepaid MTA equipment deployment costs represents the costs that we expect
to recover from the MTA in the next twelve months. The portion of deployment costs expected to be reimbursed from advertising revenues that would
otherwise be retained by us under the contract are recorded as Intangible assets on the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position and charged to
amortization expense on a straight-line basis over the contract period. We assess the recoverability of the MTA contract on an as-needed basis and
apply significant judgment in assessing factors to determine if there is an indication that the revenues expected to be generated over the term of the
agreement will be sufficient to cover all or a portion of the equipment deployment costs, including evaluating macroeconomic conditions, industry trends,
and events specific to the Company, including monitoring the Company’s actual installation of digital displays against the deployment schedule.
Additionally, we assess these factors by comparing revenue projections of the deployed digital displays to actual financial results.

Property and Equipment—Property and equipment is stated at cost. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful
lives as follows:

Buildings and improvements 15 to 35 years
Advertising structures 3 to 20 years
Furniture, equipment and other 3 to 10 years

For advertising structures associated with a contract, the assets are depreciated over the shorter of the contract term or useful life. Maintenance and
repair costs to maintain property and equipment in their original operating condition are charged to expense as incurred. Improvements or additions that
extend the useful life of the assets are capitalized. When an asset is retired or otherwise disposed of, the associated cost and accumulated depreciation
are removed and the resulting gain or loss is recognized.

Construction in progress includes all costs capitalized related to projects, primarily related to in-process digital conversion and development, which have
yet to be placed in service.

Business Combinations and Asset Acquisitions—We routinely acquire out-of-home advertising assets, including advertising structures, permits and
leasehold agreements. We determine the accounting for these transactions by first evaluating whether the assets acquired and liabilities assumed, if any,
constitute a business using the guidelines in the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) guidance for business combinations. If the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed constitute a business, the purchase price is allocated to the tangible and identifiable intangible net assets acquired
based on their estimated fair values with the excess of the purchase price over those estimated fair values recorded as goodwill. If the acquired assets
do not constitute a business, we allocate the purchase price to the individual tangible and intangible assets acquired based on their relative fair values.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets—Long-lived assets held for sale are required to be measured at the lower of their carrying value (including
unrecognized foreign currency translation adjustment losses) or fair value less cost to sell. Long-lived assets are assessed for impairment whenever
there is an indication that the carrying amount of the asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of these assets is determined by comparing the
forecasted undiscounted cash flows generated by those assets to the respective asset's carrying value. The amount of impairment loss, if any, will be
measured by the difference between the net carrying value and the estimated fair value of the asset. We compute the estimated fair value of each asset
group for which we perform a quantitative assessment using an income approach. Under the income approach, the fair value is determined using a
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discounted cash flow model. Our cash flow models requires us to use significant estimates and assumptions such as projected revenue growth rates,
billboard lease and transit franchise expenses, other operating and selling, general and administrative expenses, capital expenditures, and discount
rates. The projected revenue growth rates, billboard lease and transit franchise expenses, other operating and selling, general and administrative
expenses and capital expenditures are based on our internal forecasts of future performance, as well as historical trends. The discount rates represent
the weighted average cost of capital derived using known and estimated market metrics. There can be no assurance that these estimates and
assumptions will prove to be an accurate prediction of the future, and a downward revision of these estimates and/or assumptions would decrease the
fair values of our asset groups, which could result in additional impairment charges in the future.

Goodwill— Goodwill is allocated to various reporting units. Goodwill is not amortized but is tested qualitatively and/or quantitatively at the reporting-unit
level annually for impairment as of October 31 of each year and between annual tests if events occur or circumstances change that would more likely
than not reduce the fair value below its carrying amount. A qualitative test assesses macroeconomic conditions, industry and market conditions, cost
factors, overall financial performance and other relevant entity specific events, as well as events affecting a reporting unit. If after the qualitative
assessment, we determined that it is more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying value, we perform a quantitative
assessment. We may also choose to only perform a quantitative assessment. We compute the estimated fair value of each reporting unit for which we
perform a quantitative assessment using an income approach. Under the income approach, the fair value is determined using a discounted cash flow
model. Our discounted cash flow value is calculated by adding the present value of the estimated annual cash flows over a discrete projection period to
the terminal value, which represents the value of the projected cash flows beyond the discrete projection period. Our discounted cash flow model
requires us to use significant estimates and assumptions such as projected revenue growth rates, terminal growth rates, billboard lease and transit
franchise expenses, other operating and selling, general and administrative expenses, capital expenditures, contract renewals and extensions, and
discount rates. The projected revenue growth rates, billboard lease and transit franchise expenses, other operating and selling, general and
administrative expenses, capital expenditures and contract renewals and extensions for the projection period are based on our internal forecasts of future
performance, as well as historical trends. The terminal value is estimated based on a perpetual nominal growth rate, which is based on projected long-
range inflation and long-term industry projections. The discount rates represent the weighted average cost of capital derived using known and estimated
market metrics. There can be no assurance that these estimates and assumptions will prove to be an accurate prediction of the future, and a downward
revision of these estimates and/or assumptions would decrease the fair values of our reporting units, which could result in additional impairment charges
in the future. If the carrying value of a reporting unit is greater than its fair value, a goodwill impairment charge will be recorded as a non-cash charge for
the difference up to the carrying value of the goodwill. The loss recognized should not exceed the total amount of goodwill allocated to that reporting unit.

Intangible Assets—Intangible assets, which primarily consist of acquired permits and leasehold agreements and franchise agreements, are amortized by
the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives, which range from five to 40 years.

Leases (Lessees)—We generally lease the underlying sites upon which the physical billboard structures on which we display advertising copy for our
customers are located. We also have leases for office and warehouse spaces. All leases are recorded on the Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position and we recognize lease expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. We do not separate lease and non-lease components from
contracts.

Many of our leases include one or more options to renew, with renewal terms that can extend the lease term for varying lengths of time. These renewal
provisions typically require consent of both parties. Many of our leases also contain termination provisions at our option, based on a variety of factors,

including termination due to changing economic conditions of the related billboard location.

Certain of our lease agreements include rental payments based on a percentage of revenue over contractual levels and others include rental payments
adjusted periodically for inflation. Our lease agreements do not contain any material residual value guarantees or material restrictive covenants.

When available, we use the rate implicit in the lease to discount lease payments to present value; however, most of our leases do not provide a readily
determinable implicit rate. Therefore, we must estimate our incremental borrowing rate to discount the lease payments based on information available at

lease commencement or amendment.

We rent or sublease certain real estate to third parties.
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Leases (Lessors)—Our agreements with customers to advertise on our billboards are considered operating leases. Substantially all of our advertising
structures (see Note 3. Property and Equipment, Net) are utilized to lease advertising space to customers, for which the contracts are accounted for as
rental income. Billboard display revenues are recognized as rental income on a straight-line basis over the customer lease term. We exclude from rental
income all taxes assessed by a governmental authority that we collect from customers. These operating leases are short-term in duration, typically a term
of 4 weeks to one year and do not include any variable lease provisions or options to extend the lease. Certain contracts may include provisions for the
early termination of the lease after an agreed upon notice period. We account for non-lease installation services and the lease associated with providing
advertising space on our billboards as a combined component under the lease standard.

Hedging Activities —We have utilized interest rate cash flow swap agreements in the past to effectively convert a portion of our variable rate debt to a
fixed rate and may do so again in the future. The interest rate swaps were designated and qualified as cash flow hedges and, as a result, changes in the
fair value of the swaps were recorded in Other comprehensive income (loss) before taxes on the Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income.

Revenue Recognition—We derive Revenues from the following sources: (i) billboard displays, (ii) transit displays, and (iii) other.

Billboard display revenues are derived from providing advertising space to customers on our physical billboards or other outdoor structures. We generally
(i) own the physical structures on which we display advertising copy for our customers, (ii) hold the legal permits to display advertising thereon, and (iii)
lease the underlying sites. Billboard display revenues and installation services are recognized on a combined basis under the lease accounting standard
as rental income on a straight-line basis over the customer lease term.

Transit display revenues are derived from agreements with municipalities and transit operators, which entitle us to operate advertising displays within
their transit systems, including on the interior and exterior of rail and subway cars and buses, as well as on benches, transit shelters, street kiosks and
transit platforms. Transit display contracts typically require the installation and delivery of multiple advertising displays, for which locations are not
specifically identified. Installation services are highly interdependent with the provision of advertising space, and therefore the installation and display of
advertising is recognized as a single performance obligation. Transit display revenues are recognized based on the level of units displayed in proportion
to the total units to be displayed over the contract period.

Other revenues are derived primarily from providing print production services for advertisements to be displayed on our billboards or other outdoor sites,
or on displays that we operate within transit systems. Print production services are not interrelated with the provision of advertising space and are
considered a distinct performance obligation. Production revenue is recognized over the production period, which is typically very short in duration.

Our billboard display and transit display contracts with customers range from four weeks to one year and billing commences at the beginning of the
contract term, with payment generally due within 30 days of billing. For the majority of our contracts, transaction prices are explicitly stated. Any contracts
with transaction prices that contain multiple performance obligations are allocated primarily based on a relative standalone selling price basis.

Deferred revenues primarily consist of revenues collected in advance of being earned.

For all revenue sources, we evaluate whether we should be considered the principal (i.e., report revenues on a gross basis) or an agent (i.e., report
revenues on a net basis). We are considered the principal in our arrangements and report revenues on a gross basis, wherein the amounts billed to
customers are recorded as revenues, and amounts paid to municipalities, transit operators and suppliers are recorded as expenses. We are considered
the principal because we control the advertising space before and after the contract term, are primarily responsible to our customers, have discretion in
pricing and typically have inventory risk.

For space provided to advertisers through the use of an advertising agency whose commission is calculated based on a stated percentage of gross
advertising spending, our Revenues are reported net of agency commissions.

Concentration of Credit Risk—In the opinion of management, credit risk is limited due to the large number of customers and advertising agencies utilized.
We perform credit evaluations on our customers and agencies and believe that the allowances for doubtful accounts are adequate.
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Billboard Property Lease and Transit Franchise Expenses—Our billboards are primarily located on leased real property. Lease agreements are
negotiated for varying terms ranging from one month to multiple years, most of which provide renewal options. Lease costs consist of a fixed monthly
amount and certain lease agreements also include contingent rent based on the revenues we generate from the leased site. Property leases are
generally paid in advance for periods ranging from one to twelve months .

The fixed component of lease costs is expensed evenly over the non-cancellable contract term, and contingent rent is expensed as incurred when the
related revenues are recognized.

Our transit franchise agreements have fixed terms, are typically terminable for convenience at the option of the governmental entity (other than with
respect to the MTA), and generally provide for payments to the governmental entity based on a percentage of revenues generated under the contract
and/or a guaranteed minimum annual payment. The costs which are determined based on a percentage of revenues are expensed as incurred when the
related revenues are recognized, and the guaranteed minimum annual payment is expensed over the contract term.

Direct Lease Acquisition Costs— Variable commissions directly associated with billboard revenues are amortized on a straight-line basis over the related
customer lease term, which generally ranges from four weeks to one year . Amortization of direct lease acquisition costs are presented within Selling
General and Administrative expenses (* SG&A ") in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Foreign Currency Translation and Transactions— The assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries are translated at exchange rates in effect at the balance
sheet date, while results of operations are translated at average exchange rates for the respective periods. Any gain or loss on translation is included
within other comprehensive income (loss) and Accumulated other comprehensive loss on our Consolidated Statement of Financial Position. Foreign
currency transaction gains and losses are included in Other income (loss), net, on the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Income Taxes—As a REIT, We generally will not be subject to U.S. federal income tax on our REIT taxable income that we distribute to our stockholders.
We have elected to treat our subsidiaries that participate in certain non-REIT qualifying activities, and certain of our foreign subsidiaries, as taxable REIT
subsidiaries (“TRSs"). As such, the taxable income of our TRSs will be subject to federal, state and foreign income taxation at regular corporate rates.

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method of accounting. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the
estimated future tax effects of temporary differences between the financial statement carrying amounts and their respective tax basis. Deferred tax
assets are reduced by a valuation allowance if it is more likely than not that some or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized.

We have applied the FASB’s guidance relating to uncertainty in income taxes recognized. Under this guidance we may recognize the tax benefit from an
uncertain tax position only if it is more likely than not that the tax position will be sustained on examination by taxing authorities, based on the technical
merits of the position. The tax benefits recognized from such a position are measured based on the largest benefit that has a greater than fifty percent
likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement. The guidance on accounting for uncertainty in income taxes also provides guidance on de-
recognition, classification, interest and penalties on income taxes, and accounting in interim periods.

Asset Retirement Obligation—An asset retirement obligation is established for the estimated future obligation, upon termination or non-renewal of a
lease, associated with removing structures from the leased property and, when required by the contract, the cost to return the leased property to its
original condition. These obligations are recorded at their present value in the period in which the liability is incurred and are capitalized as part of the
related assets’ carrying value. Accretion of the liability is recognized in selling, general and administrative expenses and the capitalized cost is
depreciated over the expected useful life of the related asset.

Stock-based Compensation—We measure the cost of employee services received in exchange for an award of equity instruments based on the grant-

date fair value of the award. The cost is recognized over the vesting period during which an employee is required to provide service in exchange for the
award.

Adoption of New Accounting Standards

In the first quarter of 2023, we adopted the FASB’s guidance on the recognition and measurement of contract assets and
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contract liabilities acquired in a business combination. At the acquisition date, the acquirer should account for the related revenue contracts as if it had
originated the contracts. The guidance also provides certain practical expedients for acquirers when recognizing and measuring acquired contract assets
and contract liabilities from revenue contracts in a business combination. We will implement this guidance when accounting for business combinations in
the future.

In March 2020 and December 2022, the FASB issued guidance providing optional expedients and exceptions for accounting for contracts, hedging
relationships and other transactions that reference to the London Interbank Offered Rate or another reference rate expected to be discontinued because
of reference rate reform, if certain criteria are met. The guidance is effective for all entities as of March 12, 2020, through December 31, 2024. This
guidance did not have a significant impact on our accounting for our existing debt.

Recent Pronouncements

In November 2023, the FASB issued guidance to improve reportable segment disclosure requirements, primarily through enhanced disclosures about
significant segment expenses. The guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2023 and interim periods within fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2024. Early adoption is permitted. We are currently evaluating the impact of this guidance on our consolidated financial
statements.

In December 2023, the FASB issued guidance to enhance the transparency and decision usefulness of income tax disclosures primarily related to rate
reconciliation and income taxes paid information. The guidance is effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2024. Early adoption is
permitted. Retrospective application is permitted. We are currently evaluating the impact of this guidance on our consolidated financial statements.

Note 3. Property and Equipment, Net

The table below presents the balances of major classes of assets and accumulated depreciation.

As of December 31,

(in millions) 2023@ 2022
Land $ 1101 % 112.2
Buildings and improvements 42.7 56.5
Advertising structures 1,716.2 2,006.8
Furniture, equipment and other 173.9 183.4
Construction in progress 39.5 38.5
2,082.4 2,397.4
Less accumulated depreciation 1,424.6 1,697.6
Property and equipment, net $ 6578 $ 699.8

(a) In 2023, in connection with the Transaction, Property and equipment were reclassified as Assets held for sale on the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position. (See Note
12. Acquisitions and Dispositions: Dispositions: Canadian Business.)

Depreciation expense was $ 79.3 million in 2023, $ 77.4 million in 2022 and $ 79.4 million in 2021.

Note 4. Long-Lived Assets

By the end of the first half of 2023, our U.S. Transit and Other reporting unit did not meet revenue expectations and as of June 30, 2023, our revenue
pacing and outlook for the remainder of 2023 reflected a continued decline in transit revenues as compared to our 2023 forecast due to
underperformance across our transit business, including the MTA transit system. As a result, in the second quarter of 2023, we determined that there

was a decline in the long-term outlook for our U.S. Transit and Other reporting unit constituting a triggering event, which required an interim impairment
analysis of goodwill and long-lived assets.
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Gooawill

For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the changes in the book value of goodwill by segment were as follows:

(in millions) U.S. Media Other Total

As of December 31, 2021 $ 2,0540 $ 238 $ 2,077.8
Currency translation adjustments — (1.4) (1.4)

As of December 31, 2022 2,054.0 22.4 2,076.4
Dispositions® — (22.9) (22.9)
Currency translation adjustments — 0.5 0.5
Impairment (47.6) — (47.6)

As of December 31, 2023 2,006.4 — 2,006.4

(@) In 2023, in connection with the Transaction, Goodwill in Other was reclassified as Assets held for sale on the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position. (See Note 12.
Acquisitions and Dispositions : Dispositions : Canadian Business .)

The estimated fair value of our U.S. Transit and Other reporting unit exceeded its carrying value by 28 % as of December 31, 2022, based on our
goodwill impairment assessment in the prior year. As a result of the impairment analysis performed during the second quarter of 2023, we determined
that the carrying value of our U.S. Transit and Other reporting unit exceeded its fair value and we recorded an impairment charge of $ 47.6 million in the
Consolidated Statements of Operations.

In the fourth quarter of 2023, we performed a qualitative assessment of two of our reporting units for possible goodwill impairment and no additional
goodwill impairment was identified. As of December 31, 2023, all outstanding goodwill balances were associated with the U.S. billboard reporting unit.

Intangible Assets

Our identifiable intangible assets primarily consist of acquired permits and leasehold agreements, and franchise agreements, which grant us the right to
operate out-of-home structures in specified locations and the right to provide advertising space on railroad and municipal transit properties. ldentifiable
intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful life, which is the respective life of the agreement that in some cases

includes historical experience of renewals.

Our identifiable intangible assets consist of the following:

Accumulated
(in millions) Gross Amortization Impairment Net

As of December 31, 2023:

Permits and leasehold agreements $ 15355 $ (8938) $ — 641.7
Franchise agreements@ 934.8 (426.4) (467.9) 40.5
Other intangible assets 19.5 (6.3) — 13.2

Total intangible assets ®) $ 2,489.8 $ (1,3265) $ (4679) $ 695.4

As of December 31, 2022:

Permits and leasehold agreements $ 15976 $ (868.7) $ — 728.9
Franchise agreements 533.2 (418.6) — 114.6
Other intangible assets 18.9 (3.9) — 15.0

Total intangible assets $ 2,149.7 $ (1,291.2) $ — 3 858.5

(@) We reclassified all Prepaid MTA equipment deployment costs (see Note 17. Commitments and Contingencies ) and recorded impairments in the second, third and fourth
quarters of 2023 due to a decline in the long-term outlook of our U.S. Transit and Other reporting unit.

(b) In 2023, in connection with the Transaction, /ntangible assets, net, of $53.0 million was reclassified as Assets held for sale on the Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position. (See Note 12. Acquisitions and Dispositions: Dispositions: Canadian Business.)

In 2023, we acquired 453 displays, resulting in amortizable intangible assets for permits and leasehold agreements, and other intangible assets of $ 30.4
million, which are amortized using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives, an
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average period of 17.5 years, including five displays related to the Transaction, resulting in amortizable intangible assets for permits and leasehold
agreements, and other intangible assets of $ 2.7 million, that has been reclassified as Assets held for sale on the Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position.

All of our intangible assets, except goodwill, are subject to amortization. Amortization expense was $ 81.2 million in 2023, $ 73.3 million in 2022 and $
66.0 million in 2021.

During the second quarter of 2023, we performed an analysis of the carrying value of our long-lived asset groups within our U.S. Transit and Other
reporting unit as a result of the triggering event noted above utilizing undiscounted cash flows compared to the carrying value of the asset groups and
determined that they were not fully recoverable. We then compared the fair value of the assets (calculated using a cash flow model) to the carrying value
and we recorded impairment charges of $ 463.5 million, primarily representing a $ 443.1 million impairment charge related to our MTA asset group.

As a result of our continued expectation of negative aggregate cash flows related to our MTA asset group, we recorded additional impairment charges of
$ 12.1 million in the third quarter of 2023 and $ 11.0 million in the fourth quarter of 2023, representing additional MTA equipment deployment cost

spending during the quarters.

We expect our aggregate annual amortization expense for intangible assets for each of the years 2024 through 2028, to be as follows:

(in millions) 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028
Amortization expense $ 689 $ 659 $ 611 $ 553 $ 51.2

Note 5. Leases

Lessee

As of
(in millions, except years and percentages) December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Operating lease assets® $ 1,591.9 $ 1,562.6
Short-term operating lease liabilities@ 180.9 188.1
Non-current operating lease liabilities® 1,417.4 1,369.0
Weighted-average remaining lease term 10.9 years 11.0 years
Weighted-average discount rate 6.2 % 5.8 %

(@) In 2023, in connection with the Transaction, Operating lease assets of $ 85.9 million was reclassified as Assets held for sale and Short-term operating lease liabilities of $
15.1 million and Non-current Operating lease liabilities of $ 70.4 million were reclassified as Liabilities held for sale on the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position. (See
Note 12. Acquisitions and Dispositions: Dispositions: Canadian Business.)

Year Ended December 31,

(in millions) 2023 2022 2021

Operating expenses $ 5029 $ 4515 $ 401.7
Selling, general and administrative expenses 13.0 10.5 9.3
Variable costs 143.7 113.8 80.6
Cash paid for operating leases 486.6 458.2 394.3
Leased assets obtained in exchange for new operating lease liabilities 397.2 285.1 279.4

(a) Includes an out-of-period adjustment of $ 5.2 million recorded in the first quarter of 2023 related to variable billboard property lease expenses (see Note 1. Description of

Business and Basis of Presentation).

In 2023, 2022 and 2021, sublease income related to office properties was immaterial.
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As of December 31, 2023, minimum rental payments under operating leases are as follows:

Operating
(in millions) Leases
2024 $ 275.2
2025 264.2
2026 239.9
2027 218.3
2028 178.5
2029 and thereafter 1,146.9
Total operating lease payments 2,323.0
Less: Interest 724.7
Present value of lease liabilities @ $ 1,598.3

(a) Excludes minimum rental payments to be made in connection with $ 85.4 million of lease liabilities reclassified to Liabilities held for sale on the Consolidated Statement of

Financial Position in connection with the Transaction. (See Note 12. Acquisitions and Dispositions: Dispositions: Canadian Business.)

Lessor

We recorded rental income of $ 1,349.3 million in 2023, $ 1,321.1 million in 2022 and $ 1,141.1 million in 2021 in Revenues on our Consolidated
Statement of Operations.

As of December 31, 2023, rental payments to be received under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

(in millions) Rental Income

2024 $ 521.8
2025 28.8
2026 6.5
2027 2.3
2028 2.0
2029 and thereafter 10.0
Total minimum payments (@ $ 571.4

(@) Excludes an immaterial amount of rental payments to be received under non-cancellable operating leases related to amounts reclassified to Assets held for sale on the
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position in connection with the Transaction. (See Note 12. Acquisitions and Dispositions: Dispositions: Canadian Business.)
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Note 6. Asset Retirement Obligation
The following table sets forth the change in the asset retirement obligations associated with our advertising structures located on leased properties. The

obligation is calculated based on the assumption that all of our advertising structures will be removed within the next 50 years. The estimated annual
costs to dismantle and remove the structures upon the termination or non-renewal of our leases are consistent with our historical experience.

Year Ended December 31,

(in millions) 2023 2022
Balance, at beginning of period $ 378 % 36.4
Accretion expense 3.1 2.8
Additions 0.2 0.8
Liabilities settled® (8.2) (1.9)
Foreign currency translation adjustments 0.1 (0.3)
Balance, at end of period $ 330 $ 37.8

(@) In 2023, includes $ 5.0 million of liabilities reclassified to Liabilities held for sale on the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position in connection with the Transaction. (See

Note 12. Acquisitions and Dispositions : Dispositions : Canadian Business .)
Note 7. Related Party Transactions

On January 18, 2023, we entered into a transaction with an affiliate of Providence Equity Partners L.L.C. (the “Providence Affiliate”) in connection with
the Providence Affiliate’s purchase of a lease for certain outdoor advertising assets (the “Assets”) from a third-party seller. Pursuant to an agreement
between us and the Providence Affiliate (the “Billboard Agreement”), we agreed to exclusively market, license and make advertising space available on
the Assets to third-party advertisers for a term of up to ten years (the “Billboard Transaction”). In return, we will retain all revenues from the sale of
advertising with respect to the Assets less the following payments to the Providence Affiliate or its payment designee, as applicable: (i) a minimum
annual guarantee payment paid to the Providence Affiliate’s payment designee that increases from approximately $ 1.8 million to $ 3.5 million during the
term of the Billboard Agreement; (ii) a minimum annual guarantee payment paid to the Providence Affiliate that increases from $ 8.5 million to $ 12.0
million by year six and adjusted for inflation thereafter through year ten; (iii) a percentage revenue share payment on gross revenues generated above $
22.0 million paid to the Providence Affiliate during the term of the Billboard Agreement; (iv) a percentage revenue share payment on net revenues until $
100.0 million is paid to the Providence Affiliate or its payment designee, as applicable; and (v) a one-time payment of $ 10.0 million paid to the
Providence Affiliate on the fifth anniversary of the closing of the Billboard Transaction (the “Billboard Transaction Closing”) if we have not yet acquired the
Assets as described below. The Billboard Agreement also provides that (i) we have the option to acquire the Assets from the Providence Affiliate
between the third and seventh anniversaries of the Billboard Transaction Closing at pre-agreed prices depending on the time at which we exercise the
option; (i) prior to the seventh anniversary of the Billboard Transaction Closing, we have a right of first offer prior to any sale of the Assets by the
Providence Affiliate to a third-party; and (iii) in the event of a termination of the Billboard Agreement by the Providence Affiliate after a sale to a third-party,
we may in certain circumstances be entitled to receive a termination payment. As of December 31, 2023, operating lease assets related to the Billboard
Agreement were $ 91.5 million, current operating lease liabilities related to the Billboard Agreement were $ 3.6 million and non-current operating lease
liabilities related to the Billboard Agreement were $ 92.1 million, and are included in Operating lease assets, current Operating lease liabilities and non-
current Operating lease liabilities, respectively, on the Consolidated Statements of Financial Position. Billboard revenues related to the Billboard
Agreement were $ 11.4 million in 2023 and recorded in Revenues on the Consolidated Statement of Operations. Operating lease expenses related to the
Billboard Agreement were $ 11.5 million in 2023 and recorded in Operating expenses on the Consolidated Statement of
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Operations.
Joint Ventures

We have a 50 % ownership interest in two active joint ventures that operate transit shelters in the greater Los Angeles area and Vancouver, and two
active joint ventures which operate a total of seven billboard displays in New York and Boston. All of these ventures are accounted for as equity
investments. These investments totaled $ 8.2 million as of December 31, 2023, and $ 12.2 million as of December 31, 2022, and are included in Other
assets on the Consolidated Statements of Financial Position. In 2023, in connection with the Transaction, an equity investment was reclassified as

Assets held for sale on the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position. (See Note 12. Acquisitions and Dispositions: Dispositions: Canadian Business.)
We provided sales and management services to these joint ventures and recorded management fees in Revenues on the Consolidated Statement of
Operations of $ 4.9 million in 2023, $ 8.6 million in 2022 and $ 6.3 million in 2021.

Note 8. Debt

Debt, net, consists of the following:

As of December 31,

(in millions, except percentages) 2023 2022

Short-term debt:
AR Facility $ 65.0 $ 30.0
Total short-term debt 65.0 30.0

Long-term debt:
Term loan, due 2026 $ 598.9 $ 598.6

Senior secured notes:
7.375 % senior secured notes, due 2031 450.0 —

Senior unsecured notes:

6.250 % senior unsecured notes, due 2025 — 400.0

5.000 % senior unsecured notes, due 2027 650.0 650.0

4.250 % senior unsecured notes, due 2029 500.0 500.0

4.625 % senior unsecured notes, due 2030 500.0 500.0

Total senior unsecured notes 1,650.0 2,050.0
Debt issuance costs (224) (22.6)
Total long-term debt, net 2,676.5 2,626.0
Total debt, net $ 2,741.5 $ 2,656.0
Weighted average cost of debt 57 % 52 %
Term Loan

The interest rate on the term loan due in 2026 (the “Term Loan”) was 7.1 % per annum as of December 31, 2023. As of December 31, 2023, a discount
of $ 1.1 million on the Term Loan remains unamortized. The discount is being amortized through Interest expense, net, on the Consolidated Statement of
Operations.
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Revolving Credit Facility

We also have a $ 500.0 million revolving credit facility, which matures in 2028 (the “Revolving Credit Facility,” together with the Term Loan, the “Senior
Credit Facilities”).

During the second quarter of 2023, the Company, along with its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Outfront Media Capital LLC (“Finance LLC") and Outfront
Media Capital Corporation (together with Finance LLC, the “Borrowers”), and the other guarantors party thereto, entered into two amendments (the
“Amendments”) to the Credit Agreement (as defined below). The Amendments provide for (i) the replacement of the London Interbank Offered Rate with
the Secured Overnight Financing Rate as the interest rate benchmark, (ii) the extension of the maturity date of the Revolving Credit Facility from its
previous maturity date of November 18, 2024 to June 15, 2028, and (iii) an increase in the interest rate margins applicable to the Borrowers under the
Revolving Credit Facility from a range of 1.25 % to 1.75 % to a range of 1.75 % to 2.25 %, in the case of Secured Overnight Financing Rate borrowings,
based on the Borrowers’ leverage ratio. The Amendments also include springing maturity refinancing provisions with respect to the Borrowers’
outstanding term loan indebtedness and certain series of senior notes issued by the Borrowers, in each case, which have maturity dates prior to June 15,
2028, as well as other clarifying, conforming and ministerial changes to the Credit Agreement.

As of December 31, 2023, there were no outstanding borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facility.

The commitment fee based on the amount of unused commitments under the Revolving Credit Facility was $ 1.7 million in 2023, $ 1.6 million in 2022
and $ 1.8 million in 2021. As of December 31, 2023, we had issued letters of credit totaling approximately $ 6.5 million against the letter of credit facility
sublimit under the Revolving Credit Facility.

Standalone Letter of Credit Facilities

As of December 31, 2023, we had issued letters of credit totaling approximately $ 75.6 million under our aggregate $ 81.0 million standalone letter of
credit facilities. The total fees under the letter of credit facilities in 2023, 2022 and 2021 were immaterial.

Accounts Receivable Securitization Facilities

As of December 31, 2023, we have a $ 150.0 million revolving accounts receivable securitization facility (the “AR Facility”), which terminates in May
2025, unless further extended.

In connection with the AR Facility, Outfront Media LLC and Outfront Media Outernet Inc., each a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and certain of
the Company'’s taxable REIT subsidiaries (“TRSs") (the “Originators”), will sell and/or contribute their respective existing and future accounts receivable
and certain related assets to either Outfront Media Receivables LLC, a special purpose vehicle and wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company relating to
the Company’s qualified REIT subsidiary accounts receivable assets (the “QRS SPV”) or Outfront Media Receivables TRS, LLC a special purpose
vehicle and wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company relating to the Company’s TRS accounts receivable assets (the “TRS SPV” and together with the
QRS SPV, the “SPVs"). The SPVs may transfer undivided interests in their respective accounts receivable assets to certain purchasers from time to time
(the “Purchasers”). The SPVs are separate legal entities with their own separate creditors who will be entitled to access the SPVs’ assets before the
assets become available to the Company. Accordingly, the SPVs’ assets are not available to pay creditors of the Company or any of its subsidiaries,
although collections from the receivables in excess of amounts required to repay the Purchasers and other creditors of the SPVs may be remitted to the
Company. Outfront Media LLC will service the accounts receivables on behalf of the SPVs for a fee. The Company has agreed to guarantee the
performance of the Originators and Outfront Media LLC, in its capacity as servicer, of their respective obligations under the agreements governing the
AR Facility. Neither the Company, the Originators nor the SPVs guarantee the collectability of the receivables under the AR Facility. Further, the TRS
SPV and the QRS SPV are jointly and severally liable for their respective obligations under the agreements governing the AR Facility.

As of December 31, 2023, there were $ 65.0 million of outstanding borrowings under the AR Facility, at a borrowing rate of 6.5 %. As of December 31,
2023, borrowing capacity remaining under the AR Facility was $ 85.0 million based on approximately $ 316.0 million of accounts receivable that could be
used as collateral for the AR Facility in accordance with the agreements governing the AR Facility. The commitment fee based on the amount of unused
commitments under the AR
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Facility was $ 0.2 million in 2023, $ 0.3 million in 2022 and immaterial in 2021. In January 2024, we made a repayment of $ 10.0 million under the AR
Facility.

Senior Secured Notes

On November 20, 2023, the Borrowers issued $ 450.0 million aggregate principal amount of 7.375 % Senior Secured Notes due 2031 (the “2031 Notes”)
in a private placement. The 2031 Notes are senior secured obligations of the Borrowers and are guaranteed on a senior secured basis by the Company
and each of its direct and indirect domestic subsidiaries that guarantee the Senior Credit Facilities (the “Guarantors”). The Notes and the related
guarantees are secured by liens on substantially all of the assets of the Borrowers and the Guarantors, on a pari passu basis with the Senior Credit
Facilities (subject to the terms of an intercreditor agreement), subject to certain exceptions and permitted liens, including the exclusion of equity in
Canadian subsidiaries that are pending sale. Interest on the 2031 Notes is payable on May 15 and November 15 of each year, beginning on May 15,
2024 . On or after November 15, 2026, the Borrowers may redeem at any time, or from time to time, some or all of the 2031 Notes. Prior to such date the
Borrowers may redeem up to 40 % of the aggregate principal amount with the net proceeds of certain equity offerings, provided that at least 50 % of the
aggregate principal amount of the 2031 Notes will remain outstanding after the redemption. In addition the Borrowers may redeem some or all of the
2031 Notes at any time, or from time to time, prior to November 15, 2026, at a price equal to 100 % of the principal amount of the 2031 Notes to be
redeemed, plus the applicable “make whole” premium, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the date of redemption.

On November 21, 2023, we used the net proceeds from the issuance of the 2031 Notes to redeem all of our outstanding 6.250 % Senior Unsecured
Notes due 2025 (the “2025 Notes”) and to pay accrued and unpaid interest on the 2025 Notes, if any, to, but excluding, the redemption date, and to pay
fees and expenses in connection with the 2031 Notes offering and the 2025 Notes redemption. In the fourth quarter of 2023, we recorded a Loss on
extinguishment of debt of $ 8.1 million relating to the 2025 Notes on the Consolidated Statement of Operations.

Debt Covenants

Our credit agreement, dated as of January 31, 2014 (as amended, restated, amended and restated, supplemented or otherwise modified, the “Credit
Agreement”), governing the Senior Credit Facilities, the agreements governing the AR Facility, and the indentures governing our senior notes contain
customary affirmative and negative covenants, subject to certain exceptions, including but not limited to those that restrict the Company’s and its
subsidiaries’ abilities to (i) pay dividends on, repurchase or make distributions in respect to the Company’s or its wholly-owned subsidiary, Outfront Media
Capital LLC's capital stock or make other restricted payments other than dividends or distributions necessary for us to maintain our REIT status, subject
to certain conditions and exceptions, (ii) enter into agreements restricting certain subsidiaries’ ability to pay dividends or make other intercompany or
third-party transfers, and (iii) incur additional indebtedness. One of the exceptions to the restriction on our ability to incur additional indebtedness is
satisfaction of a Consolidated Total Leverage Ratio, which is the ratio of our consolidated total debt to our Consolidated EBITDA (as defined in the Credit
Agreement) for the trailing four consecutive quarters, of no greater than 6.0 to 1.0. As of December 31, 2023, our Consolidated Total Leverage Ratio was
5.3 to 1.0 in accordance with the Credit Agreement.

The terms of the Credit Agreement (and under certain circumstances, the agreements governing the AR Facility) require that we maintain a Consolidated
Net Secured Leverage Ratio, which is the ratio of (i) our consolidated secured debt (less up to $ 150.0 million of unrestricted cash) to (ii) our
Consolidated EBITDA (as defined in the Credit Agreement) for the trailing four consecutive quarters, of no greater than 4.5 to 1.0. As of December 31,
2023, our Consolidated Net Secured Leverage Ratio was 2.0 to 1.0 in accordance with the Credit Agreement. As of December 31, 2023, we are in
compliance with our debt covenants.

Deferred Financing Costs
As of December 31, 2023, we had deferred $ 27.4 million in fees and expenses associated with the Term Loan, the Revolving Credit Facility, the AR

Facility and our senior notes. We are amortizing the deferred fees through Interest expense, net, on our Consolidated Statement of Operations over the
respective terms of the Term Loan, Revolving Credit Facility, AR Facility and our senior notes.
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Fair Value

Under the fair value hierarchy, observable inputs such as unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities are defined as Level
1; observable inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are either directly or indirectly observable for the asset or liability are defined as
Level 2; and unobservable inputs for the asset or liability are defined as Level 3. The aggregate fair value of our debt, which is estimated based on
quoted market prices of similar liabilities, was approximately $ 2.7 billion as of December 31, 2023 and $ 2.5 billion as of December 31, 2022. The fair
value of our debt as of both December 31, 2023 and 2022 is classified as Level 2.

Note 9. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss

The following table presents the changes in the components of accumulated other comprehensive loss.

Net
Cumulative Actuarial Loss on Interest Accumulated
Translation Gain Rate Cash Flow Other
(in millions) Adjustments (Loss) Swaps Comprehensive Loss
As of December 31, 2020 $ (13) $ (111) $ (56) $ (18.0)
Other comprehensive income before reclassifications — 7.9 5.2 131
Amortization of actuarial losses reclassified to net income @ — 0.5 — 0.5
Total other comprehensive income, net of tax — 8.4 5.2 13.6
As of December 31, 2021 (1.3) (2.7) (0.4) (4.4)
Other comprehensive income (loss) before reclassifications (7.9) 2.8 0.4 (4.7)
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax (7.9) 2.8 0.4 (4.7)
As of December 31, 2022 (9.2) 0.1 — (9.1)
Other comprehensive income before reclassifications 3.1 0.2 — 3.3
Total other comprehensive income, net of tax 31 0.2 — 3.3
As of December 31, 2023 $ (61) $ 03 $ — 8 (5.8)

(@) See Note 14. Retirement Benefits to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional details of items reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive loss to net

income.

Net actuarial gain (loss) included in other comprehensive income (loss) is net of a tax provision of $ 1.0 million in 2022 and $ 2.9 million in 2021. There
was no tax provision or benefit related to net actuarial gain (loss) included in other comprehensive income in 2023.

Note 10. Equity

As of December 31, 2023, 450,000,000 shares of our common stock, par value $ 0.01 per share, were authorized; 165,052,191 shares were issued and
outstanding; and 50,000,000 shares of our preferred stock, par value $ 0.01 per share, were authorized with 125,000 shares of our Series A Convertible
Perpetual Preferred Stock (the “Series A Preferred Stock”), par value $ 0.01 per share, issued and outstanding.

The Series A Preferred Stock ranks senior to the shares of the Company’s common stock with respect to dividend and distribution rights. Holders of the
Series A Preferred Stock are entitled to a cumulative dividend accruing at the initial rate of 7.0 % per year, payable quarterly in arrears, subject to
increases as set forth in the Articles Supplementary, effective as of April 20, 2020 (the “Articles”). Dividends may, at the option of the Company, be paid
in cash, in-kind, through the issuance of additional shares of Series A Preferred Stock or a combination of cash and in-kind, until April 20, 2028, after
which time dividends will be payable solely in cash. So long as any shares of Series A Preferred Stock remain outstanding, the Company may not,
without the consent of a specified percentage of holders of shares of Series A Preferred Stock, declare a dividend on, or make any distributions relating
to, capital stock that ranks junior to, or on a parity basis with, the Series A Preferred Stock, subject to certain exceptions, including but not limited to (i)
any dividend or distribution in cash or capital stock of the Company on or in respect of the capital stock of the Company to the extent that such dividend
or distribution is necessary to maintain the Company’s status as a REIT; and (ii) any dividend or distribution in cash in respect of our common stock that,
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together with the dividends or distributions during the 12 -month period immediately preceding such dividend or distribution, is not in excess of 5 % of the
aggregate dividends or distributions paid by the Company necessary to maintain its REIT status during such 12 -month period. If any dividends or
distributions in respect of the shares of our common stock are paid in cash, the shares of Series A Preferred Stock will participate in the dividends or
distributions on an as-converted basis up to the amount of their accrued dividend for such quarter, which amounts will reduce the dividends payable on
the shares of Series A Preferred Stock dollar-for-dollar for such quarter. The Series A Preferred Stock is convertible at the option of any holder at any
time into shares of our common stock at an initial conversion price of $ 16.00 per share and an initial conversion rate of 62.50 shares of our common
stock per share of Series A Preferred Stock, subject to certain anti-dilution adjustments and a share cap as set forth in the Articles. Subject to certain
conditions set forth in the Articles (including a change of control), each of the Company and the holders of the Series A Preferred Stock may convert or
redeem the Series A Preferred Stock at the prices set forth in the Articles, plus any accrued and unpaid dividends.

During 2023, we paid cash dividends of $ 8.8 million on the Series A Preferred Stock. As of December 31, 2023, the maximum number of shares of
common stock that could be required to be issued on conversion of the outstanding shares of Series A Preferred Stock was approximately 7.8 million
shares.

We have a sales agreement in connection with an “at-the-market” equity offering program (the “ATM Program”), under which we may, from time to time,
issue and sell shares of our common stock up to an aggregate offering price of $ 300.0 million. We have no obligation to sell any of our common stock
under the sales agreement and may at any time suspend solicitations and offers under the sales agreement. In 2023, no shares of our common stock

were sold under the ATM Program. As of December 31, 2023, we had approximately $ 232.5 million of capacity remaining under the ATM Program.

On February 21, 2024 , we announced that our board of directors approved a quarterly cash dividend of $ 0.30 per share on our common stock, payable
on March 28, 2024 , to stockholders of record at the close of business on March 1, 2024 .

Note 11. Revenues

We do not disclose the value of unsatisfied performance obligations for contracts with an original expected term of one year or less, which primarily
represent the transaction price allocated to the remaining display period for unsatisfied transit franchise contracts.

The following table summarizes revenues by source:

Years Ended December 31,

(in millions) 2023 2022 2021
Billboard:
Static displays $ 9480 $ 9369 $ 829.8
Digital displays 441.7 400.8 308.1
Other 55.2 47.0 44.4
Billboard revenues 1,444.9 1,384.7 1,182.3
Transit:
Static displays 191.8 212.6 170.5
Digital displays 146.6 139.1 81.3
Other 31.1 29.4 26.2
Total transit revenues 369.5 381.1 278.0
Other 6.2 6.3 3.6
Transit and other revenues 375.7 387.4 281.6
Total revenues $ 1,8206 $ 17721  $ 1,463.9

Rental income was $ 1,349.3 million in 2023, $ 1,321.1 million in 2022 and $ 1,141.1 million in 2021, and is recorded in Billboard revenues on the
Consolidated Statement of Operations.
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The following table summarizes revenues by geography:

Years Ended December 31,

(in millions) 2023 2022 2021

United States:

Billboard $ 1,369.7 $ 1,3088 $ 1,116.1
Transit and other 352.6 365.1 265.9
Other 6.2 6.3 3.6
Total United States revenues 1,728.5 1,680.2 1,385.6
Canada 92.1 91.9 78.3
Total revenues $ 1,8206 $ 1,772.1  $ 1,463.9

Our revenues are sensitive to fluctuations in advertising expenditures, general economic conditions and other external events beyond our control.
Contract Costs and Balances

Variable sales commission costs directly associated with billboard display revenues are considered direct lease acquisition costs in accordance with the
lease accounting standard and are capitalized and amortized on a straight-line basis over the related customer lease term (see Note 5. Leases: Lessee
to the Consolidated Financial Statements). Amortization of direct lease acquisition costs is presented within SG&A in the accompanying Consolidated
Statements of Operations.

Variable sales commission costs which are directly associated with transit display and other revenues are included in SG&A on the Consolidated
Statement of Operations, and are expensed as incurred since the amortization period of the asset would have been less than one year.

Amounts to be collected from customers for revenues recognized in previous periods are included in Receivables, less allowance, on the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position. Amounts collected from customers for revenues to be recognized in future periods are included in Deferred revenues on
the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position. We recognized substantially all of the Deferred revenues on the Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position as of December 31, 2022, during the three months ended March 31, 2023.

Note 12. Acquisitions and Dispositions
Acquisitions

We completed several asset acquisitions for a total purchase price of approximately $ 33.7 million in 2023, $ 353.9 million in 2022 and $ 136.5 million in
2021.

In the second quarter of 2022, we completed the acquisition of approximately 950 billboard displays, including 21 digital displays, as well as certain
business assets, in Portland, Oregon, and Clark County, Washington, from Pacific Outdoor Advertising, L.L.C., for $ 185.0 million, subject to closing and
post-closing adjustments, using cash on hand.

Dispositions
Canadian Business

On October 22, 2023, the Selling Subsidiaries entered into a Share Purchase Agreement with the Buyer, relating to the sale of the Canadian Business.
Pursuant to the Share Purchase Agreement, the Selling Subsidiaries agreed to sell all of its (and its affiliates) equity interests in Outdoor Systems
Americas ULC and its subsidiaries, which hold all of the assets of the Canadian Business, to the Buyer, for C$ 410.0 million in cash, payable on the date
of the consummation of the Transaction. The purchase price is subject to (i) adjustments at and following the Closing for working capital, cash,
indebtedness, capital expenditures and transaction expenses, and (ii) a holdback to be released at or following the Closing, in whole or in part, if certain
third-party contracts are renewed or extended on certain terms.
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The consummation of the Transaction is expected to occur in the first half of 2024, subject to certain closing conditions, including, among others, (i) the
absence of any enacted or pending law, order, judgment or litigation by a governmental authority prohibiting the consummation of the Transaction, and
(ii) receipt of antitrust approval in Canada (the “Antitrust Approval”). The obligation of the Buyer to consummate the Transaction is also conditioned on the
absence of a material adverse effect on the Canadian Business following the date of the Share Purchase Agreement and the Selling Subsidiaries’
obligation to spend a target percentage of forecasted capital expenditures through the Closing. The obligation of each party to consummate the
Transaction is conditioned on each party’s representations and warranties being true and correct and each party having performed in all material
respects its obligations under the Share Purchase Agreement. In addition, the Share Purchase Agreement may be terminated under certain
circumstances, including (i) by mutual written agreement of the Buyer and the Selling Subsidiaries; (ii) by either the Buyer or the Selling Subsidiaries if
the Closing does not occur by July 22, 2024, with extensions by the Buyer or the Selling Subsidiaries under certain conditions until no later than October
22, 2024 (the “Outside Date™); or (iii) by either the Buyer or the Selling Subsidiaries if a failure by either the Buyer or the Seller Subsidiaries is the
principal cause of any closing condition not being satisfied. If the Antitrust Approval is not received by the Outside Date and the principal cause of such
failure is not a failure of the Selling Subsidiaries or its subsidiaries to perform any of their obligations under the Share Purchase Agreement, the Buyer
will pay a termination fee to the Selling Subsidiaries in the amount of C$ 20.0 million.

In connection with the Transaction, the assets of our outdoor advertising business in Canada has been classified as Assets held for sale on the
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position. It is required that we measure assets held for sale at the lower of their carrying value (including
unrecognized foreign currency translation adjustment losses) or fair value less cost to sell. The components of Assets held for sale and Liabilities held for
sale were as follows:

As of

(in millions) December 31, 2023
Current assets:

Receivables, less allowances $ 26.7

Other current assets 7.9
Current assets held for sale 34.6
Property and equipment, net 39.9
Goodwill 22.9
Intangible assets 53.0
Operating lease assets 85.9
Other assets 12.6
Total assets held for sale $ 248.9
Current liabilities held for sale 24.1
Deferred income tax liabilities, net 15.5
Asset retirement obligation 5.0
Operating lease liabilities 70.4
Total liabilities held for sale $ 115.0

Los Angeles Office and Operations Center

In the fourth quarter of 2023, we sold three parcels of land and the related structures in Los Angeles, California, for a total sales price of $ 15.5 million.
This facility previously housed our Los Angeles sales office and operations center. Our Los Angeles sales office has relocated to a new location, and we
entered into a leaseback of the operational portion of the facility for a term of five years . We have accounted for the transaction as a sale-leaseback,
resulting in a gain of $ 12.4 million. We have also recorded Operating lease assets and Operating lease liabilities of $ 2.5 million in connection with the
lease on our Statements of Financial Position.
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Note 13. Stock-Based Compensation

Effective as of June 6, 2023, we amended the OUTFRONT Media Inc. Amended and Restated Omnibus Stock Incentive Plan (the “Stock Plan”) to,
among other things, increase the number of shares of our common stock reserved for issuance under our prior plan by 6,475,000 shares, so that the
aggregate number of shares reserved for issuance under the Stock Plan is 19,575,000 shares of our common stock. Under the Stock Plan, the board of
directors is authorized to grant awards of options to purchase shares of our common stock, stock appreciation rights, restricted and unrestricted stock,
restricted share units (“RSUs”"), dividend equivalents, performance awards, including performance-based restricted share units (“PRSUs"), and other
equity-related awards and cash payments to all of our employees and non-employee directors and employees of our subsidiaries. In addition, consultants
and advisors who perform services for us and our subsidiaries may, under certain conditions, receive grants under the Stock Plan.

RSUs and PRSUs accrue dividend equivalents in amounts equal to the regular cash dividends paid on our common stock and will be paid in either cash
or stock. Accrued dividend equivalents payable in stock shall convert to shares of our common stock on the date of vesting.

Compensation expense for RSUs is determined based upon the market price of the shares underlying the awards on the date of grant and expensed
over the vesting period, which is generally a three-year service period. For PRSU awards, the number of shares an employee earns may range from 0 %
to 120 % based on the outcome of a one-year performance condition. Compensation expense is recorded based on the probable outcome of the
performance condition. On an annual basis, our board of directors will review actual performance and certify the degree to which performance goals
applicable to the award have been met. Forfeitures of RSUs are recorded as incurred. Adjustments are made to compensation expense based on actual
forfeitures.

In the first quarter of 2021, the Company granted one-time equity award grants to our executive officers. The grant values of the one-time RSU awards
were equal to 100 % of each executive officer’s current base salary, and comprised of 60 % PRSUs, which contain a market and service condition, and
40 % time-based RSUs, which only contain a service condition. The PRSU market condition will be based on the Company’s total shareholder return
(“TSR”) relative to the TSRs of the companies in the iShares Evolved U.S. Media and Entertainment Index as of January 1, 2021, measured over a 2 -
year performance period, with the number of PRSUs eligible to vest ranging from 0 % to 200 % of target based on a percentile ranking of the Company’s
relative TSR. Subject to the market condition, these one-time equity grants will cliff vest in full on the second anniversary of the award grant date. A
Monte Carlo method simulation has been used to estimate the grant date fair value of the PRSUs that have a market condition.

The following table summarizes our stock-based compensation expense for 2023, 2022 and 2021.

Year Ended December 31,

(in millions) 2023 2022 2021
Stock-based compensation expense (RSUs and PRSUs), before income taxes $ 284 % 338 % 28.6
Tax benefit (1.0) (1.6) (1.4)
Stock-based compensation expense, net of tax $ 274 % 322 % 27.2

As of December 31, 2023, total unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested RSUs and PRSUs was $ 26.6 million, which is expected to be
recognized over a weighted average period of 1.6 years.
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RSUs and PRSUs

The following table summarizes the 2023 activity of the RSUs and PRSUs issued to our employees.

Weighted Average
Per Share Grant
Date Fair Market

Activity Value

Non-vested as of December 31, 2022 2,644,039 $ 24.28
Granted:

RSUs 1,109,485 19.03

PRSUs 619,687 20.64
Vested:

RSUs (941,942) 24.56

PRSUs (516,609 ) 25.36
Forfeitures:

RSUs (97,480) 21.25

PRSUs (35,344) 21.50
Non-vested as of December 31, 2023 2,781,836 21.10

The total fair value of RSUs and PRSUs that vested was $ 36.2 million during 2023, $ 25.9 million during 2022 and $ 22.6 million during 2021.
Note 14. Retirement Benefits
We sponsor two defined benefit pension plans covering specific groups of employees in Canada and the U.S.

The Outfront Media Canada LP pension plan (the “Plan”) is closed to new employees and as of December 31, 2021, we completed freezing the Plan to
any future benefit accruals. Employees under the Plan are now entitled to enhanced defined contribution plan benefits. The benefits for the pension plan
in Canada were based primarily on an employee’s years of service and an average of the employee’s highest five years of earnings. Participating
employees in the pension plan in Canada were vested after two years of service or immediately, depending on the province of their employment. We
funded the pension plan in Canada in accordance with the rules and regulations of the Pension Benefits Act of the Province of Ontario, Canada. Canada
pension plan assets consist principally of insurance contracts, equity securities and corporate and government-related fixed income securities, and global
infrastructure.

The pension plan in the U.S. covers a small number of hourly employees. The investments of the pension plan in the U.S. consist entirely of the plan’s
interest in a trust, which invests the assets of this plan. The pension plan in the U.S. is funded in accordance with requirements of the Employee

Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended.

We use a December 31 measurement date for all pension plans.
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The following table sets forth the change in benefit obligation for our pension plans.

As of December 31,

(in millions) 2023 2022 2021

Benefit obligation, beginning of year 470 $ 653 $ 71.3
Service cost — — 0.1
Interest cost 2.1 1.9 1.8
Actuarial gain (0.3) (14.8) (5.2)
Settlements paid (20.2) — —
Benefits paid (2.0) (2.2) (2.9)
Cumulative translation adjustments 0.6 (3.2) 0.2

Benefit obligation, end of year 272 % 470 $ 65.3

The following table sets forth the change in plan assets for our pension plans.

As of December 31,

(in millions) 2023 2022

Fair value of plan assets, beginning of year $ 555 $ 69.5
Actual return on plan assets 2.9 (8.2)
Settlements paid (20.2) —
Benefits paid (2.0) (2.2)
Cumulative translation adjustments 0.9 (3.6)

Fair value of plan assets, end of year $ 371 % 55.5

The unfunded status of pension benefit obligations and the related amounts recognized on the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position were as

follows:
As of December 31,
(in millions) 2023 2022
Funded status, end of year $ 99 $ 8.5
Amounts recognized on the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position:
Assets held for sale $ 10.4 —
Other assets — 8.5
Other liabilities (0.5) —
Net amounts recognized 9.9 7.9
The following amounts were recognized in accumulated other comprehensive loss on the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.
As of December 31,
(in millions) 2023 2022
Net actuarial gain $ 04 $ 0.2
Deferred income taxes (0.1) (0.1)
Net amount recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income $ 03 % 0.1

The accumulated benefit obligation for the defined benefit pension plans was $ 25.1 million as of December 31, 2023, and $ 45.2 million as of

December 31, 2022.
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The following table presents our benefit obligations and fair value of plan assets.

As of December 31,

(in millions) 2023 2022

Projected benefit obligation $ 272 % 47.0
Accumulated benefit obligation 25.1 45.2
Fair value of plan assets 37.1 5515

The following tables present the components of net periodic pension cost and amounts recognized in other comprehensive income (loss).

As of December 31,

(in millions) 2023 2022 2021
Service cost $ — 3 — 3 0.1
Interest cost 21 1.9 1.8
Expected return on plan assets (2.6) (2.8) (2.6)
Amortization of actuarial losses® — — 0.6
Settlement gain (0.5) — —
Net periodic pension cost $ (10) $ (09) $ (0.1)
Year Ended

(in millions) December 31, 2023
Actuarial gain $ 0.7
Settlement cost (0.5)
Recognized in other comprehensive income, net of tax $ 0.2

(@) Reflects amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) to net income.

Estimated net actuarial losses related to the defined benefit pension plan that will be amortized from accumulated other comprehensive loss into net
periodic pension costs in 2024 is immaterial.

As of and for the Year Ended December 31,

2023 2022

Weighted average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations:

Discount rate 48 % 50 %

Rate of compensation increase 3.3 33
Weighted average assumptions used to determine net periodic cost:

Discount rate 5.0 3.0

Expected long-term return on plan assets 4.2 5.2

Rate of compensation increase 3.3 3E3

For the pension plan, the discount rate is determined based on the yield on portfolios of high quality bonds, constructed to provide cash flows necessary
to meet the expected future benefit payments, as determined for the projected benefit obligation. The expected return on plan assets assumption was
derived using the current and expected asset allocation of the pension plan assets and considering historical as well as expected returns on various
classes of plan assets.

Plan Assets
Our plan assets are included in a trust in Canada and a trust in the U.S. The asset allocations of these trusts are based upon an analysis of the timing
and amount of projected benefit payments, projected company contributions, the expected returns and risk of the asset classes and the correlation of

those returns. As of December 31, 2023, we invested approximately 82 % in fixed income instruments and global infrastructure, 17 % in equity
instruments, and the remainder in cash, cash equivalents.
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The following tables set forth our pension plan assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of December 31, 2023 and 2022. These assets have
been categorized according to the three-level fair value hierarchy established by the FASB which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair value.

Level 1 is based on quoted prices for the asset in active markets. Level 2 is based on inputs that are observable other than quoted market prices in active
markets, such as quoted prices for the asset in inactive markets or quoted prices for similar assets. Level 3 is based on unobservable inputs that market
participants would use in pricing the asset.

As of December 31, 2023

(in millions) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Cash and cash equivalents $ 01 $ — 3 — 3 0.1
Fixed income securities:

Corporate bonds® 0.6 — — 0.6
Equity securities:

U.S. equity 0.8 — — 0.8

International equity 0.3 — — 0.3
Total assets in fair value hierarchy $ 18 $ — 8 — 8 1.8
Common collective funds measured at net asset value 35.3
Total assets $ 37.1

As of December 31, 2022

(in millions) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Fixed income securities:

Corporate bonds® $ 05 $ — 3 — 8 0.5
Equity securities:

U.S. equity 0.7 — — 0.7

International equity 0.3 — — 0.3
Insurance contracts — — 22.0 22.0
Total assets in fair value hierarchy $ 15 $ — % 220 $ 235
Common collective funds measured at net asset value 32.0
Total assets $ 55.5

(a) Securities of diverse industries, substantially all investment grade.

Significant changes in Level 3 plan assets are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

(in millions) 2023 2022

Insurance contracts:

Beginning of year $ 220 $ 29.4
Settlement(® (22.0) —
Payments — (1.9)
Actuarial loss — (4.6)
Interest income — 0.8
Cumulative translation adjustments — (1.7)

End of year $ — % 22.0

(@) Inthe fourth quarter of 2023, insurance contracts that were part of the assets of the Plan were converted into buy-out annuities with third-party insurance companies. Former

employees now collect their benefit from the third-party insurance companies and the Plan no longer has liability associated with those former employees.
Our insurance contracts classified as Level 3 are valued based on a discount rate determined by reference to the market interest rates prevailing on high

quality debt instruments with cash flows that match the timing and amount of expected benefit payments under the pension plan in Canada, as well as a
mortality assumption based upon the current mortality table, CPM2014
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generational projected using mortality improvement scale CPM-B. As a result, the fair value of the insurance contract is equal to the defined benefit
obligation in respect of the members covered under the insurance contract.

Money market investments are carried at amortized cost which approximates fair value due to the short-term maturity of these investments. Investments
in equity securities are reported at fair value based on quoted market prices on national security exchanges. The fair value of investments in common
collective funds are determined using the Net Asset Value (“NAV”) provided by the administrator of the fund. The NAV is determined by each fund’s
trustee based upon the fair value of the underlying assets owned by the fund, less liabilities, divided by the number of outstanding units. The fair value of
government related securities and corporate bonds is determined based on quoted market prices on national security exchanges, when available, or
using valuation models which incorporate certain other observable inputs including recent trading activity for comparable securities and broker-quoted
prices.

Future Benefit Payments

(in millions) 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029-2033

Estimated future benefit payments for pension plans 0.9 0.8 1.0 11 14 8.1

We do not expect to contribute to our defined benefit pension plans in 2024.

Multi-Employer Pension and Postretirement Benefit Plans

We contribute to multi-employer plans that provide pension and other postretirement benefits to certain employees under collective bargaining
agreements. Contributions to these plans were $ 3.3 million in 2023, $ 3.5 million in 2022 and $ 3.0 million in 2021. Based on our contributions to each
individual multi-employer plan relative to the total contributions of all participating employers in such plan, no multi-employer plan was deemed to be
individually significant to us.

Defined Contribution Plans

Employer contributions for defined contribution plans sponsored by us were $ 8.6 million in 2023, $ 8.3 million in 2022 and $ 6.4 million in 2021.

Note 15. Income Taxes

We are organized in conformity with the requirements for qualification and taxation as a REIT under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended
(the “Code”) and, accordingly, we have not provided for U.S. federal income tax on our REIT taxable income that we distribute to our stockholders. We
have elected to treat our subsidiaries that participate in certain non-REIT qualifying activities as taxable REIT subsidiaries (“TRSs"). As such, we have
provided for their federal, state and foreign income taxes.

Cash paid for income taxes was $ 6.7 million in 2023, $ 3.3 million in 2022 and $ 1.7 million in 2021.

The U.S. and foreign components of Income (loss) before benefit (provision) for income taxes and equity in earnings of investee companies were as
follows:

Year Ended December 31,

(in millions) 2023 2022 2021
United States $ (436.4) $ 1480 $ 32.6
Foreign 11.8 7.7 (1.0)
Income (loss) before benefit (provision) for income taxes and equity in earnings of
investee companies $ (4246) $ 155.7 $ 31.6
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The following table reconciles Income (loss) before benefit (provision) for income taxes and equity in earnings of investee companies to REIT taxable
income.

Year Ended December 31,

(in millions) 2023 2022 2021

Income (loss) before benefit (provision) for income taxes and equity in earnings of investee

companies $ (4246) $ 155.7 $ 31.6
Net loss of TRSs 151.4 15.2 21.9
Income (loss) from REIT operations (273.2) 170.9 53.5
Book/tax differences

Depreciation 27.9 33.7 (2.0)

Amortization (13.6) (13.3) (6.1)

Dividend from foreign subsidiary 2.1 21 1.4

Stock-based compensation (0.9) 3.8 5.0

Deferred gain for tax (6.8) (1.0) (3.0)

Investments in joint ventures 5.5 9.9 5.0

Executive compensation 11.2 9.4 6.3

Lease expense 8.4 4.3 5.7

Provision for doubtful accounts 15 3.3 (7.5)

Interest — (11.2) 13.8

Impairment charges®@ 388.2 — —

Other 13.6 15 4.3
REIT taxable income (estimated) $ 1639 $ 2134 % 76.4

(a) Impairment charges related to our U.S. transit business (see Note 4. Long-Lived Assets) .

The components of the Benefit (provision) for income taxes are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

(in millions) 2023 2022 2021
Current:
Federal $ — 3 (01) $ 0.5
State and local (1.0) (1.0) (0.7)
Foreign (3.1) (3.6) (1.1)
(4.1) (4.7) (1.3)
Deferred:
Federal — (5.0) 3.2
State and local — (1.7) 11
Foreign 0.1 2.0 0.4
0.1 (4.7) 47
Benefit (provision) for income taxes $ (40) $ (94) % 34

The effective income tax rate was 0.9 % in 2023, 6.0 % in 2022 and 10.8 % in 2021.
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The difference between income taxes expected at the U.S. federal statutory income tax rate of 21 % and the Benefit (provision) for income taxes is
summarized as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

(in millions) 2023 2022 2021
Benefit (provision) for income taxes on income at U.S. statutory rate $ 89.2 $ (32.7) $ (6.6)
REIT dividends paid deduction 24.2 35.9 11.3
State and local taxes, net of federal tax benefit (1.0) (2.9) 0.1
Effect of foreign operations (1.0) (0.5) (0.9)
Impairment charges® (110.6) — —
Other, net (4.8) (9.2) (0.5)
Benefit (provision) for income taxes $ (40) $ (94) $ 34

(@) Primarily a permanent book/tax difference for impairment charges related to our U.S. transit business ( see Note 4. Long-Lived Assets) .

The following table is a summary of the components of deferred income tax assets and liabilities.

As of December 31,

(in millions) 2023 2022

Deferred income tax assets:

Provision for expenses and losses $ 66 $ 35
Postretirement and other employee benefits 2.2 25
Tax credit and loss carryforwards 5.8 5.9
Property, equipment and intangible assets 2.0 0.2
Total deferred income tax assets 16.6 12.1
Valuation allowance (16.6) (11.9)
Deferred income tax assets, net — 0.2

Deferred income tax liabilities:

Property, equipment and intangible assets (12.8) (13.0)
Postretirement and other employee benefits (25) (2.2)
Other (0.2) (0.2)
Total deferred income tax liabilities (155) (15.4)
Deferred income tax liabilities, net $ (155) $ (15.2)

As of December 31, 2023, we had federal, state and local net operating loss carryforwards of $ 22.6 million. These losses can be carried forward
indefinitely for federal tax purposes but are subject to certain state and local utilization limitations.

Our undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries not includable in our federal income tax returns that could be subject to additional income taxes if
remitted was approximately $ 4.4 million as of December 31, 2023, and $ 2.3 million as of December 31, 2022. No provision was recorded for taxes that
could result from the remittance of such undistributed earnings since we intend to declare dividends to our shareholders in an amount sufficient to offset
such distributions and intend to reinvest the remainder outside of the U.S. indefinitely. The determination of the unrecognized U.S. federal deferred
income tax liability for undistributed earnings is not practicable.

The reserve for uncertain tax positions of $ 0.3 million as of December 31, 2023, includes $ 0.2 million which would affect our effective income tax rate if
recognized in future years.

We recognize interest and penalty charges related to the reserve for uncertain tax positions as part of income tax expense. These charges were not
material for any of the periods presented.
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We are subject to taxation in the U.S. and various state, local and foreign jurisdictions. Tax years 2020 to present are open for examination by the tax
authorities. We are currently under examination by New York State for the 2019 through 2021 tax years.

Note 16. Earnings Per Share (“EPS”)

Year Ended December 31,

(in millions) 2023 2022 2021

Net income (loss) available for common stockholders $ (4304) $ 1479 $ 35.6
Less: Distributions to holders of Series A Preferred Stock 8.8 12.0 28.0
Less: Distributions to holders of Class A equity interests of a subsidiary — 0.1 0.1
Net income (loss) available for common stockholders, basic and diluted $ (439.2) $ 1358 $ 7.5
Weighted average shares for basic EPS 164.9 161.1 145.4
Dilutive potential shares from grants of RSUs, PRSUs and stock options (@ — 0.7 0.7
Weighted average shares for diluted EPS @®)C) 164.9 161.8 146.1

(@) The potential impact of an aggregate 1.8 million granted RSUs, PRSUs and stock options for 2023, 0.7 million granted RSUs, PRSUs and stock options for 2022 and 0.1 million
granted RSUs, PRSUs and stock options for 2021 was antidilutive.

(b) The potential impact of 7.8 million shares of our common stock issuable upon conversion of our Series A Preferred Stock in 2023, 10.6 million shares of our common stock
issuable upon conversion of our Series A Preferred Stock in 2022 and 25.0 million shares of our common stock issuable upon conversion of our Series A Preferred Stock in
2021 was antidilutive.

(c)  The potential impact of 0.1 million shares of Class A equity interests of Outfront Canada in 2022 and 0.5 million shares of Class A equity interests of Outfront Canada in 2021

was antidilutive.

Note 17. Commitments and Contingencies

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Our off-balance sheet commitments primarily consist of guaranteed minimum annual payments. These arrangements result from our normal course of
business and represent obligations that are payable over several years.

Contractual Obligations

We have agreements with municipalities and transit operators which entitle us to operate advertising displays within their transit systems, including on the
interior and exterior of rail and subway cars and buses, as well as on benches, transit shelters, street kiosks, and transit platforms. Under most of these
franchise agreements, the franchisor is entitled to receive the greater of a percentage of the relevant revenues, net of agency fees, or a specified

guaranteed minimum annual payment.

As of December 31, 2023, guaranteed minimum annual payments are as follows:

Guaranteed

Minimum

Annual
(in millions) Payments
2024 $ 199.3
2025 205.9
2026 205.8
2027 193.6
2028 196.3
2029 and thereafter 367.9
Total minimum payments @ $ 1,368.8

(a) Excludes guaranteed minimum annual payments of $ 11.9 million in connection with the Transaction. (See Note 12. Acquisitions and Dispositions : Dispositions : Canadian
Business .)

Under the current MTA agreement, which was amended in June 2020 and July 2021 and is subject to modification as agreed upon by us and the MTA
(as amended, the “MTA Agreement”):
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«  Deployments. We must deploy, over a number of years, (i) 5,433 digital advertising screens on subway and train platforms and entrances, (ii)
15,896 smaller-format digital advertising screens on rolling stock, and (iii) 9,283 MTA communications displays. We are also obligated to deploy
certain additional digital advertising screens and MTA communications displays in subway and train stations and rolling stock that the MTA may
build or acquire in the future (collectively, the “New Inventory”).

*  Recoupment of Equipment Deployment Costs. We may retain incremental revenues that exceed an annual base revenue amount for the cost of
deploying advertising and communications displays throughout the transit system. As presented in the table below, recoupable MTA equipment
deployment costs are recorded as Prepaid MTA equipment deployment costs and Intangible assets on our Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position, and as these costs are recouped from incremental revenues that the MTA would otherwise be entitled to receive, Prepaid MTA
equipment deployment costs will be reduced. If incremental revenues generated over the term of the agreement are not sufficient to cover all or
a portion of the equipment deployment costs, the costs will not be recouped, which could have an adverse effect on our business, financial
condition and results of operations, including impairment charges (see Note 4. Long-Lived Assets). If we do not recoup all costs of deploying
advertising and communications screens with respect to the New Inventory by the end of the term of the MTA Agreement, the MTA will be
obligated to reimburse us for these costs. Deployment costs in an amount not to exceed $ 50.7 million, which are deemed authorized before
December 31, 2020, will be paid directly by the MTA. For any deployment costs deemed authorized after December 31, 2020, the MTA and the
Company will no longer be obligated to directly pay 70 % and 30 % of the costs, respectively, and these costs will be subject to recoupment in
accordance with the MTA Agreement. We did not recoup any equipment deployment costs in 2023 and we do not expect to recoup any
equipment deployment costs in 2024.

e« Payments. We must pay to the MTA the greater of a percentage of revenues or a guaranteed minimum annual payment. Our payment
obligations with respect to guaranteed minimum annual payment amounts owed to the MTA resumed on January 1, 2021, in accordance with the
terms of the MTA Agreement, and any guaranteed minimum annual payment amounts that would have been paid for the period from April 1,
2020 through December 31, 2020 (less any revenue share amounts actually paid during this period using an increased revenue share
percentage of 65 %) will instead be added in equal increments to the guaranteed minimum annual payment amounts owed for the period from
January 1, 2022, through December 31, 2026. The MTA Agreement also provides that if prior to April 1, 2028 the balance of unrecovered costs
of deploying advertising and communications screens throughout the transit system is equal to or less than zero , then in any year following the
year in which such recoupment occurs (the “Recoupment Year”), the MTA is entitled to receive an additional payment equal to 2.5 % of the
annual base revenue amount for such year calculated in accordance with the MTA Agreement, provided that gross revenues in such year (i)
were at least equal to the gross revenues generated in the Recoupment Year, and (ii) did not decline by more than 5 % from the prior year.

e Term. In July 2021, we extended the initial 10 -year term of the MTA Agreement to a 13 -year base term (the “Amended Term”). We have the
option to extend the Amended Term for an additional five-year period at the end of the Amended Term, subject to satisfying certain quantitative
and qualitative conditions.

During 2023, we had no recoupment from incremental revenues. As of December 31, 2023, 19,697 digital displays had been installed, composed of

5,121 digital advertising screens on subway and train platforms and entrances, 9,674 smaller-format digital advertising screens on rolling stock and 4,902
MTA communications displays. In the fourth quarter of 2023, 911 installations occurred, for a total of 5,544 installations occurring in 2023.
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Beginning Deployment Recoupment/MTA

(in millions) Balance Costs Incurred Funding Amortization/Impairment  Reclassification  Ending Balance
Year Ended December 31, 2023:
Prepaid MTA equipment deployment

costs $ 3632 $ 218 $ — 3 — 3 (385.0) $ —
Other current assets 1.6 (0.4) (0.1) — — 1.1
Intangible assets (franchise

agreements) 62.0 22.3 — (469.3) 385.0 —
Total $ 4268 $ 43.7 $ (01) $ (469.3) $ — $ 1.1
Year Ended December 31, 2022:
Prepaid MTA equipment deployment

costs $ 2798 $ 834 $ — 3 — 8 — $ 363.2
Other current assets 5.2 0.1 (3.7) — — 1.6
Intangible assets (franchise

agreements) 63.0 5.4 — (6.4) — 62.0
Total $ 3480 $ 889 $ (3.7) $ (64) $ — $ 426.8

Letters of Credit
We have indemnification obligations with respect to letters of credit and surety bonds primarily used as security against non-performance in the normal

course of business. As of December 31, 2023, the outstanding letters of credit were approximately $ 82.1 million and outstanding surety bonds were
approximately $ 172.8 million, and were not recorded on the Consolidated Statements of Financial Position.

Legal Matters

On an ongoing basis, we are engaged in lawsuits and governmental proceedings and respond to various investigations, inquiries, notices and claims
from national, state and local governmental and other authorities (collectively, “litigation”). Litigation is inherently uncertain and always difficult to predict.
Although it is not possible to predict with certainty the eventual outcome of any litigation, in our opinion, none of our current litigation is expected to have a
material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial position or cash flows.

Note 18. Segment Information

We currently manage our operations through two operating segments—U.S. Billboard and Transit, which is included in our U.S. Media reportable
segment, and International. International does not meet the criteria to be a reportable segment and accordingly, is included in Other.

The following tables set forth our financial performance by segment.

Year Ended December 31,

(in millions) 2023 2022 2021
Revenues:
U.S. Media $ 1,7223 % 16739 $ 1,382.0
Other 98.3 98.2 81.9
Total revenues $ 1,8206 $ 1,7721 $ 1,463.9

We present Operating income (loss) before Depreciation, Amortization, Net (gain) loss on dispositions, Stock-based compensation and Impairment
charges (“Adjusted OIBDA") as the primary measure of profit and loss for our operating segments.
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Year Ended December 31,

(in millions) 2023 2022 2021

Net income (loss) before allocation to non-controlling interests $ (429.7) $ 1491 $ 36.4
(Benefit) provision for income taxes 4.0 9.4 (3.4)
Equity in earnings of investee companies, net of tax 11 (2.8) (1.4)
Interest expense, net 158.4 131.8 130.4
Loss on extinguishment of debt 8.1 — 6.3
Other (income) loss, net (0.3) 0.2 —

Operating income (loss) (258.4) 287.7 168.3
Net (gain) loss on dispositions (14.2) 0.2 (45)
Impairment charges 534.7 — 2.5
Depreciation and amortization 160.5 150.7 1454
Stock-based compensation 28.4 33.8 28.6

Total Adjusted OIBDA $ 4510 % 4724 % 340.3

Adjusted OIBDA:

U.S. Media $ 4794  $ 501.2 $ 382.9

Other 231 20.6 104

Corporate (515) (49.4) (53.0)
Total Adjusted OIBDA $ 4510 $ 4724  $ 340.3
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Year Ended December 31,

(in millions) 2023 2022 2021

Operating income (loss):

U.S. Media $ (189.9) $ 363.0 $ 248.5

Other 11.4 7.9 1.4

Corporate (79.9) (83.2) (81.6)
Total operating income (loss) $ (2584) $ 287.7 $ 168.3

Net (gain) loss on dispositions:

U.S. Media $ (14.2) $ 02 $ (15)
Other — — (3.0)
Total (gain) loss on dispositions $ (142) $ 02 $ (45)

Impairment charges@®);
U.S. Media $ 5347 $ — 3 2.5

Total impairment charges $ 5347 % — 3 25

Depreciation and amortization:

U.S. Media $ 1488 $ 1380 $ 133.4
Other 11.7 12.7 12.0
Total depreciation and amortization $ 1605 $ 150.7 $ 145.4

Capital expenditures:

U.S. Media $ 760 $ 854 % 69.3
Other 10.8 4.4 4.5
Total capital expenditures $ 86.8 $ 898 $ 73.8

(a) In 2023, Impairment charges related to a decline in the long-term outlook of our U.S. Transit and Other reporting unit (see Note 4. Long-Lived Assets) and an other-than-
temporary decline in fair value of a cost-method investment.
(b) In 2021, Impairment charges related to an other-than-temporary decline in fair value of a cost-method investment.

As of December 31,

(in millions) 2023 2022 2021
Assets:
U.S. Media $ 52972 $ 57321 $ 5,280.7
Other@® 259.7 240.4 248.1
Corporate 26.0 17.5 395.9
Total assets $ 55829 $ 59900 $ 5,924.7

(@) In 2023, includes amounts reclassified as Assets held for sale on the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position. (See Note 12. Acquisitions and Dispositions: Dispositions:

Canadian Business.)

Year Ended December 31,

(in millions) 2023 2022 2021
Revenues®:
United States $ 1,7285 $ 16802 $ 1,385.6
Canada 92.1 91.9 78.3
Total revenues $ 1,8206 $ 1,7721 3% 1,463.9

(@) Revenues classifications are based on the geography of the advertising.
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As of December 31,

(in millions) 2023 2022 2021
Long-lived assets(®:
United States $ 49626 $ 5,391.0 4,937.0
Canada®) 214.3 195.8 192.1
Total long-lived assets $ 51769 $ 5586.8 $ 5,129.1

(@) Reflects total assets less current assets, investments and non-current deferred tax assets.
(b) In 2023, includes amounts reclassified as Assets held for sale on the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position. (See Note 12. Acquisitions and Dispositions: Dispositions:

Canadian Business.)
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.
None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As required by Rule 13a-15(b) of the Exchange Act, our management has carried out an evaluation, under the supervision of and with the participation of
our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures, as
defined in Rule 13a-15(e) of the Exchange Act, as of the end of the period covered by this report. Based on the foregoing, our Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report, were effective to
provide reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed by us in reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded,
processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission’s rules and forms and is accumulated
and communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions
regarding required disclosure.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the
Exchange Act. Our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, conducted an assessment of the effectiveness of our
internal control over financial reporting based on the criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on that assessment, our management has concluded that our internal control over
financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2023 to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. The effectiveness of our internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2023 has been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (PCAOB ID 238 ), an independent registered
public accounting firm, as stated in their report which appears in “Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.”

Limitations on Effectiveness of Disclosure Controls and Procedures and Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In designing and evaluating our disclosure controls and procedures and internal control over financial reporting, management recognizes that any
controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control objectives.
In addition, the design of disclosure controls and procedures and internal control over financial reporting must reflect the fact that there are resource
constraints and that management is required to apply its judgment in evaluating the benefits of possible controls and procedures relative to their costs.
Item 9B. Other Information.

None .

Item 9C. Disclosure Regarding Foreign Jurisdictions that Prevent Inspections.

Not applicable.
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PART Il
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance.
The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct that applies to all executive officers, employees and directors of the Company. In addition, the Company
has adopted a Supplemental Code of Ethics applicable to our principal executive officer, principal financial officer, principal accounting officer and
controller or persons performing similar functions. Both the Code of Conduct and the Supplemental Code of Ethics are available in the Investor Relations
section of our website at www.outfront.com. We intend to satisfy the disclosure requirements under Item 5.05 of Form 8-K regarding any amendment to,
or waiver from, a provision of the Code of Conduct or the Supplemental Code of Ethics that applies to our principal executive officer, principal financial
officer, principal accounting officer and controller or persons performing similar functions, and relates to any element of the definition of code of ethics set
forth in Item 406(b) of Regulation S-K, by posting such information on our website at www.outfront.com.
The Company has adopted an insider trading policy governing the purchase, sale and/or other dispositions of the Company’s securities by its directors,
officers and employees, or by the Company itself, that we believe is reasonably designed to promote compliance with insider trading laws, rules and

regulations and the listing rules of the NYSE. A copy of the Company's insider trading policy is filed as Exhibit 19.1 to this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

All additional information required by this item is incorporated by reference to our Proxy Statement for the 2024 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed
with the SEC within 120 days of the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023.

Item 11. Executive Compensation.

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to our Proxy Statement for the 2024 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the
SEC within 120 days of the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters.

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to our Proxy Statement for the 2024 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the
SEC within 120 days of the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence.

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to our Proxy Statement for the 2024 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the
SEC within 120 days of the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services.

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to our Proxy Statement for the 2024 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the
SEC within 120 days of the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023.

PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules.

(2)(1) Financial Statements. The financial statements filed as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K are listed in the index to the financial statements,
which is included in “Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.”

(a)(2) Financial Statement Schedules. The following financial statement schedules should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial
statements included in “Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.” All other schedules for which provision is made in the applicable
accounting regulation of the SEC are not required under the related instructions or are inapplicable, and therefore have been omitted.

Page No.
Schedule Il - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts for the years ended December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021. 108
Schedule Il - Schedule of Real Estate and Accumulated Depreciation as of December 31, 2023. 109
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OUTFRONT Media Inc.

Schedule ll—Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

(in millions)
Col. A Col. B Col.C Col.D Col. E
Balance at Balance Charged to Charged Balance at
Beginning Acquired through Costs and to Other End of
Description of Period Acquisitions Expenses Accounts( Deductions Period
Allowance for doubtful accounts:
Year ended December 31, 2023 20.2 — 58 §$ (01) $ 8.7 17.2
Year ended December 31, 2022 18.5 — 4.9 2.0 5.2 20.2
Year ended December 31, 2021 26.3 — (4.0) 0.5 4.3 18.5
Valuation allowance on deferred tax
assets:
Year ended December 31, 2023 11.9 — 47 % — % — 16.6
Year ended December 31, 2022 0.4 — 11.9 — 0.4 11.9
Year ended December 31, 2021 0.4 — — — — 0.4

(a) Reflects change in allowance related to foreign currency translation adjustments and amounts reclassified to Assets held for sale on the Consolidated Statements of Financial

Position.
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OUTFRONT Media Inc.
SCHEDULE Il - Schedule of Real Estate and
Accumulated Depreciation
as of December 31, 2023

(in millions)

Gross Carrying Amount at December

Cost
Initial Cost Capitalized 31, 2023 @
Structures Subsequent Structures
and to and Accumulated Construction Acquisition Useful
Description @ Encumbrances Land Improvements Acquisition Land Improvements Total Depreciation Date Date Lives
Structures added prior to January 1, 2014
United States - 3 to 20
37,660 displays — ) 2) ) $ 798 $ 15280 $1,607.8 $ (1,2988) Various Various years
Canada - 4,168 3to 20
displays — 2) 2) 2) 1.5 285.5 287.0 (285.2) Various Various years
$ 813 $ 18135 $1,8948 $ (1,584.0)
Structures added subsequent to January 1, 2014
United States - 3 to 20
3,131 displays $303 $ 2435 $ (16.2) $ 303 $ 2273 $ 2576 $ (8.4) Various Various years
Canada - 441 3to 20
displays — 33.8 0.3 — 34.1 34.1 (2.0) Various Various years

$303 $ 2773 $ (159) $ 303 $ 2614 $ 2917 $ (10.4)

Total
United States - 3 to 20
40,791 displays $ 1101 $ 1,7553 $1,8654 $ (1,307.2) Various Various years
Canada - 4,609 3to 20
displays 1.5 319.6 321.1 (287.2) Various Various years

$ 1116 $ 20749 $21865 $ (1,594.4)

(1) No single asset exceeded 5 % of the total gross carrying amount as of December 31, 2023.
(2) This information is omitted as it would be impracticable to compile on a site-by-site basis.

(3) Includes sites under construction.
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The following table summarizes the activity for the Company’s real estate assets, which consist of advertising displays, and the related accumulated

depreciation.

Gross real estate assets:
Balance at the beginning of the year
New Investments
Redevelopments
Recurring capital expenditures
Purchase price accounting adjustments
Land acquisitions
Additions for construction of / improvements to structures
Assets sold or written-off
Foreign exchange

Balance at the end of the year

Accumulated depreciation:
Balance at the beginning of the year
Depreciation
Impairment
Assets sold or written-off
Foreign exchange

Balance at the end of the year

2023 2022 2021
$ 21190 $ 20403 1,993.0
19.6 33.2 28.3
37.2 50.9 15.3
8.8 15.6 12.4
— — 0.7
0.1 9.7 5.0
65.7 109.4 61.7
(6.5) (9.0) (14.6)
8.3 (21.7) 0.2
$ 2185 $ 21190 2,040.3
$ 15195 $  1,4909 1,448.2
60.2 56.1 56.0
125 — _
(5.4) (75) (135)
7.6 (20.0) 0.2
$ 15944 $ 15195 1,490.9
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(2)(3) Exhibits. The exhibits filed as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K are listed on the Exhibit Index immediately following “Item 16. Form 10-K
Summary,” which is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 16. Form 10-K Summary.

None.
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EXHIBIT INDEX
Exhibit
Number Description

2.1 Agreement and Plan of Reorganization, dated as of January 15, 2014, by and among CBS Corporation, CBS Outdoor Americas
Inc. and CBS Radio Media Corporation (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Company’s Registration Statement

on Form S-11 (File No. 333-189643), filed on January 31, 2014).

2.2 Master Separation Agreement, dated as of April 2, 2014, by and between CBS Outdoor Americas Inc. and CBS Corporation
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-36367), filed on April
2,2014).

2.3 Membership Interest Purchase Agreement, dated as of July 20, 2014, by and among CBS Outdoor Americas Inc., CBS Outdoor
LLC, Van Wagner Communications, LLC, Van Wagner Twelve Holdings, LLC and Richard M. Schaps (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-36367), filed on July 21, 2014).

2.4 Share Purchase Agreement, dated October 22, 2023, by and among OUTFRONT Media Inc., Outfront Canada HoldCo 2 LLC

Outfront Canada Sub LLC, and Bell Media Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Company’s Current Report
on Form 8-K (File No. 001-36367), filed on October 23, 2023).

3.1 Articles of Amendment and Restatement of OUTFRONT Media Inc. effective March 28, 2014, as amended by the Articles of
Amendment of OUTFRONT Media Inc. effective November 20, 2014 and June 10, 2019 (incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-36367). filed on June 10, 2019).

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of OUTFRONT Media Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-36367), filed on December 9, 2022).

3.3 Articles Supplementary of OUTFRONT Media Inc. effective April 20, 2020 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the
Company's Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-36367), filed on April 21, 2020).

4.1 Indenture, dated as of June 14, 2019, by and among Outfront Media Capital LLC, Outfront Media Capital Corporation, the
uarantors named therein and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas (including the Form of Senior Notes) (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-36367), filed on June 14, 2019).

4.2 Indenture, dated as of November 18, 2019, by and among Outfront Media Capital LLC, Outfront Media Capital Corporation, the
uarantors named therein and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas (including the Form of Senior Notes) (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-36367), filed on November 18
2019).

4.3 Indenture, dated as of May 15, 2020, by and among Outfront Media Capital LLC, Outfront Media Capital Corporation, the
uarantors named therein and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas (including the Form of Senior Notes) (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-36367), filed on May 15, 2020).

4.4 Indenture, dated as of January 19, 2021, by and among Outfront Media Capital LLC, Outfront Media Capital Corporation, the
guarantors named therein and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas (including the Form of Senior notes) (incorporated herein

by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-36367), filed on January 19, 2021).

4.5 Indenture, dated as of November 20, 2023, by and among Outfront Media Capital LLC, Outfront Media Capital Corporation, the

guarantors named therein and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas (including the Form of Senior Secured Notes)
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-36367), filed on

November 20, 2023).

4.6 Description of OUTFRONT Media Inc. Common Stock (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.5 to the Company's Annual
Report on form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2022, File No. 001-36367).
10.1 Advertising License Agreement, entered into December 8, 2017, to be effective as of November 1, 2017, by and between the

Metropolitan Transportation Authority and Outfront Media Group LLC (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-36367), filed on December 13, 2017).

10.2 Form of Director Indemnification Agreement (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form S-11 (File No. 333-189643), filed on February 18, 2014).
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10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

Credit Agreement, dated as of January 31, 2014, by and among CBS Outdoor Americas Capital LLC, CBS Outdoor Americas
Capital Corporation, the guarantors party thereto, Citibank, N.A. and the other lenders party thereto from time to time

(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the Company’s Redgistration Statement on Form S-4 (File No. 333-201197)
filed on December 22, 2014).

Amendment No. 2 to Credit Agreement and Amendment No. 1 to Security Agreement, dated as of March 16, 2017, by and
among Outfront Media Capital LLC, Outfront Media Capital Corporation, the guarantors party thereto, Morgan Stanley Senior
Funding, Inc. and the other lenders party thereto from time to time, to Credit Agreement and to Security Agreement, each dated
as of January 31, 2014, as amended (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on

Form 8-K (File No. 001-36367), filed on March 20, 2017).

Amendment No. 4 to Credit Agreement, dated as of November 17, 2017, by and among Outfront Media Capital LLC, Outfront
Media Capital Corporation, the guarantors party thereto, Morgan Stanley Senior Funding, Inc. and the other lenders party
thereto from time to time, to Credit Agreement, dated as of January 31, 2014, as amended, (incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-36367). filed on November 20, 2017).

Amendment No. 5 to Credit Agreement and Amendment No. 2 to Security Agreement, dated as of November 18, 2019, by and
among Outfront Media Capital LLC, Outfront Media Capital Corporation, the guarantors party thereto, Morgan Stanley Senior
Funding, Inc. and the other lenders party thereto from time to time, to Credit Agreement and to Security Agreement, each dated

as of January 31, 2014, as amended (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K (File No. 001-36367), filed on November 18, 2019).

Amended and Restated Receivables Purchase Agreement, dated as of July 19, 2019, by and among Outfront Media LLC
Outfront Media Receivables LLC, Outfront Media Receivables TRS, LLC, MUFG Bank, Ltd., the other parties thereto from time
to time as purchasers and group agents, and Gotham Funding Corporation (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to

the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-36367), filed on July 23, 2019).

Amended and Restated QRS Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated as of July 19, 2019, between Outfront Media LLC and
Outfront Media Receivables LLC (including the Form of Subordinated Note) (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to

the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-36367), filed on July 23, 2019).

Amended and Restated Performance Guaranty, dated as of July 19, 2019, between OUTFRONT Media Inc. and MUFG Bank,
Ltd. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-36367), filed

on July 23, 2019).

TRS Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated as of July 19, 2019, by and among Outfront Media LLC, Outfront Media Receivables
TRS, LLC and the originators party thereto (including the Form of Subordinated Note) (incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-36367), filed on July 23, 2019).

Amended and Restated Guaranty, dated as of July 19, 2019, between OUTFRONT Media Inc. and MUFG Bank, Ltd.
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-36367), filed on

July 23, 2019).

OUTFRONT Media Inc. Amended and Restated Omnibus Stock Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1
to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-36367), filed on June 6, 2023).*

OUTFRONT Media Inc. Amended and Restated Executive Bonus Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2015, File No. 001-36367).*

OUTFRONT Media Excess 401(k) Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form S-11 (File No. 333-189643), filed on February 18, 2014).*

Form of Certificate and Terms and Conditions for Performance-Based Restricted Share Units Awards with Time Vesting granted

under the OUTFRONT Media Inc. Amended and Restated Omnibus Stock Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the guarterly period ended March 31, 2021, File No. 001-

36367).*

Form of Certificate and Terms and Conditions for Restricted Share Units Awards with Time Vesting granted under the

OUTFRONT Media Inc. Amended and Restated Omnibus Stock Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2
to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2021, File No. 001-36367).*
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10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24

10.25

10.26

10.27

10.28

10.29

10.30

10.31

Form of Certificate and Terms and Conditions for One-Time Performance-Based Restricted Share Units Awards with Time
Vesting granted under the OUTFRONT Media Inc. Amended and Restated Omnibus Stock Incentive Plan (incorporated herein

by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2021
File No. 001-36367).*

Form of Certificate and Terms and Conditions for One-Time Restricted Share Units Awards with Time Vesting granted under the
OUTFRONT Media Inc. Amended and Restated Omnibus Stock Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.4

to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2021, File No. 001-36367).*

Form of Certificate and Terms and Conditions for Restricted Share Units Awards with Time Vesting for Directors granted under
the OUTFRONT Media Inc. Amended and Restated Omnibus Stock Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
10.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2021, File No. 001-36367).*

Summary of Compensation for Outside Directors, effective June 7, 2022 and July 1, 2022 (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the guarterly period ended June 30, 2022, File No. 001-

36367).*

Employment Agreement with Jodi Senese, dated as of June 6, 2016 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2016, File No. 001-36367).*

OUTFRONT Media Inc. Executive Change in Control Severance Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the

Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-36367), filed on December 14, 2015).*

Form of Participation Agreement under the OUTFRONT Media Inc. Executive Change in Control Severance Plan (incorporated

herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-36367), filed on December 14
2015).*

Employment Agreement with Richard Sauer, dated as of February 24, 2017 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2017, File No. 001-36367).*

Employment Agreement with Nancy Tostanoski, dated as of May 5, 2017 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2017, File No. 001-36367).*

Employment Agreement with Andrew R. Sriubas, dated as of July 28, 2017 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30, 2017, File No. 001-36367).*

Employment Agreement with Jeremy J. Male, dated as of September 18, 2017 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2

to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30, 2017, File No. 001-36367).*

Employment Agreement with Clive Punter, dated as of December 8, 2017 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.32 to
the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2017, File No. 001-36367).*

Employment agreement with Matthew Siegel, dated as of May 24, 2018 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-36367), filed on May 24, 2018).*
Amendment No. 6 to Credit Agreement, dated as of April 15, 2020, by and among Outfront Media Capital LLC, Outfront Media

Capital Corporation, the guarantors party thereto, Morgan Stanley Senior Funding, Inc. and the other lenders party thereto from
time to time, to Credit Agreement, dated as of January 31, 2014, as amended (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1

to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-36367), filed on April 21, 2020).
Investment Agreement, dated April 16, 2020, by and among OUTFRONT Media Inc., Providence Equity Partners VIII-A L.P.,
Providence Equity Partners VIII (Scotland) L.P., PEP VIII Intermediate 5 L.P., PEP VIII Intermediate 6 L.P., ASOF Holdings |

L.P. and Ares Capital Corporation (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-

K (File No. 001-36367). filed on April 21, 2020).
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Registration Rights Agreement, dated April 20, 2020, by and among OUTFRONT Media Inc., Providence Equity Partners VIII-A
L.P., Providence Equity Partners VIII (Scotland) L.P., PEP VIII Intermediate 5 L.P., PEP VIII Intermediate 6 L.P., ASOF Holdings

I, L.P. and Ares Capital Corporation (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Current Report on Form
8-K (File No. 001-36367), filed on April 21, 2020).

Amendment No. 7, dated as of July 29, 2021, by and between the Metropolitan Transportation Authority and Outfront Media
Group LLC, to Advertising License Agreement, entered into December 8, 2017 (effective as of November 1, 2017) (incorporated

herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-36367), filed on August 4, 2021).

Fourth Omnibus Amendment, dated as of June 1, 2022, by and among OUTFRONT Media Inc., Outfront Media LLC, Outfront
Media Receivables LLC, Outfront Media Receivables TRS, LLC, the originators party thereto, MUFG Bank, Ltd., the other
parties thereto from time to time as purchasers and group agents, and Gotham Funding Corporation (incorporated herein by

reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-36367), filed on June 2, 2022).

Amendment No. 7 to Credit Agreement, dated as of May 24, 2023, by and among Outfront Media Capital LLC, Outfront Media

Capital Corporation, the guarantors party thereto, Morgan Stanley Senior Funding, Inc. and the other lenders party thereto from
time to time, to Credit Agreement, dated as of January 31, 2014, as amended (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1
to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-36367), filed on May 25, 2023).

Amendment No. 8 to Credit Agreement, dated as of June 15, 2023, by and among Outfront Media Capital LLC, Outfront Media
Capital Corporation, the guarantors party thereto, Morgan Stanley Senior Funding, Inc. and the other lenders party thereto from
time to time, to Credit Agreement, dated as of January 31, 2014, as amended (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1
to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-36367), filed on June 15, 2023).

OUTFRONT Media Inc. Insider Trading Policy

OUTFRONT Media Inc. Executive Incentive Compensation Recoupment Policy.
List of Subsidiaries of OUTFRONT Media Inc.

Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP.

Power of Attorney (included on the signature page of this Annual Report on Form 10-K and incorporated herein by reference).

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer of OUTFRONT Media Inc. pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a), as adopted
pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
Certification of the Chief Financial Officer of OUTFRONT Media Inc. pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a), as adopted
pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer of OUTFRONT Media Inc. furnished pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted
pursuant to section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley act of 2002.

Certification of the Chief Financial Officer of OUTFRONT Media Inc. furnished pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted
pursuant to section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley act of 2002.

XBRL Instance Document - the instance document does not appear in the Interactive Data File because its XBRL tags are
embedded within the Inline XBRL document.

Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema
Inline XBRL Taxonomy Calculation Linkbase
Inline XBRL Taxonomy Definition Document
Inline XBRL Taxonomy Label Linkbase

Inline XBRL Taxonomy Presentation Linkbase

Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted as Inline XBRL and contained in Exhibit 101).

* Management contracts and compensatory plans and arrangements.
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file:///tmp/T21162/1c3d563f-488c-4b94-8f3f-176b5c7c9af3/out-insidertradingpolicyfi.htm
file:///tmp/T21162/1c3d563f-488c-4b94-8f3f-176b5c7c9af3/clawbackpolicyrevisedfinal.htm
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file:///tmp/T21162/1c3d563f-488c-4b94-8f3f-176b5c7c9af3/a321section906dec312023.htm
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Date: February 22, 2024 OUTFRONT MEDIA INC.

By: /sl Matthew Siegel

Name: Matthew Siegel

Title: Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

POWER OF ATTORNEY

Each person whose signature appears below constitutes and appoints Matthew Siegel, Richard H. Sauer and Louis J. Capocasale, and each of them, as
his or her true and lawful attorney-in-fact and agent, with full power of substitution and resubstitution, for him or her and in his or her name, place and
stead, in any and all capacities, to sign any and all amendments to this Annual Report on Form 10-K, and to file the same, with all exhibits thereto, and
other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, granting unto said attorneys-in-fact and agents, and each of
them, full power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing requisite and necessary to be done in connection therewith, as fully to all
intents and purposes as he or she might or could do in person, hereby ratifying and confirming all that said attorneys-in-fact and agents, or any of them,
or their or his substitutes, may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue thereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the
registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/sl Jeremy J. Male Chairman and Chief Executive Officer February 22, 2024
Jeremy J. Male (Principal Executive Officer)
/sl Matthew Siegel Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer February 22, 2024
Matthew Siegel (Principal Financial Officer)
/sl Patrick Martin Senior Vice President, Controller and Chief Accounting Officer February 22, 2024
Patrick Martin (Principal Accounting Officer)
/s/ Nicolas Brien Director February 22, 2024
Nicolas Brien
/sl Angela Courtin Director February 22, 2024
Angela Courtin
/s/ Manuel A. Diaz Director February 22, 2024
Manuel A. Diaz
/sl Michael J. Dominguez Director February 22, 2024

Michael J. Dominguez

/sl Peter Mathes Director February 22, 2024

Peter Mathes

/sl Susan M. Tolson Director February 22, 2024

Susan M. Tolson

/sl Joseph H. Wender Director February 22, 2024

Joseph H. Wender
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Exhibit 19.1

OUTFRONT/

Effective Date: April 2015, amended December 2017, December 2018 and December 2023

INSIDER TRADING POLICY

GENERAL

The purpose of this Insider Trading Policy (the “Policy”) is to promote compliance with applicable securities laws by
OUTFRONT Media Inc. (the “Company”) and all directors, officers and employees thereof, in order to preserve the reputation and
integrity of the Company as well as that of all persons affiliated with it.

Federal securities laws prohibit so-called “insider trading.” Insider trading occurs when a person uses material, non-public
information obtained through involvement with the Company to make decisions to purchase, sell, give away or otherwise trade the
Company'’s securities or to provide that information to others outside the Company. The prohibitions against insider trading apply to
trades, tips and recommendations by virtually any person, including all persons associated with the Company, if the information
involved is “material” and “non-public.”

APPLICABILITY

This Policy applies to all directors, executive officers, employees, agents, consultants and advisors of the Company and its
subsidiaries, and any “related person” of the foregoing. A “related person” includes a spouse, minor children and anyone else living
in the person’s household; partnerships in which the person is a general partner; trusts of which the person is a trustee; estates of
which the person is an executor; and other equivalent legal entities that the person controls.

This Policy applies to all transactions in the Company’s securities, including common stock, options and any other securities
that the Company may issue, such as preferred stock, notes, bonds and convertible securities, as well as to derivative securities
such as swaps, forwards and futures relating to any of the Company’s securities, whether or not issued by the Company. This Policy
also applies to transactions in the Company’s securities, even after termination of service from the Company, except that, other than
for six months post-termination with respect to directors and executive officers subject to reporting under Section 16 (“Section 16
Persons”) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), the pre-clearance and trading window
procedures will cease to apply to transactions in the Company’s securities upon the expiration of any closed trading window or other
Company-imposed trading restrictions applicable at the time of the termination of service.

Whether or not expressly stated below, where applicable, this Policy also applies to transactions in securities of any other
publicly-traded company, including the Company’s customers or suppliers, if material, non-public information relating to that company
is obtained in the course of employment by or association with the Company, as well as disclosure of such material, non-public
information to others.



POLICY GUIDELINES
Trading While Aware of Material, Non-Public Information; Disclosure of Material, Non-Public Information; Tipping

If a director, executive officer, employee, agent, consultant or advisor of the Company or its subsidiaries, or any related person
of the foregoing, is aware of material, non-public information relating to the Company, such person may not buy, sell, pledge, loan,
donate or gift securities of the Company or engage in any other transactions with respect to the Company’s securities, or engage in
any other action to take advantage of such information.

Material, non-public information relating to the Company must not be disclosed or “tipped” to anyone where such information
may be used by such person to his or her benefit by trading in the Company’s securities, nor shall an employee make any
recommendations or express any opinions as to trading in the Company’s securities to any other person on the basis of material,
non-public information. This prohibition includes unauthorized dissemination of material, non-public information, as well as
confidential information relating to the Company, made through social media or otherwise. See the Company’s Business Conduct
Statement, Regulation FD Policy, and Guidelines on Use of Social Media and Other Communications. Persons other than insiders
can be liable for insider trading, including tippees who trade on material, non-public information tipped to them. Information may be
disclosed to another employee or advisor of the Company only to the extent he or she needs to know such information in order to
fulfill his or her job responsibilities for the Company.

What is “Material” Information?

Generally, information is material if there is a substantial likelihood that a reasonable investor would consider it important in
making a decision to buy, sell, or hold a security or where the fact is likely to have a significant effect on the market price of the
security. Both positive and negative information may be material. There is no bright-line standard for assessing materiality; rather,
materiality is based on an assessment of all of the facts and circumstances, and is often evaluated by enforcement authorities with
the benefit of hindsight. While it is not possible to define all categories of material information, some examples of information that
ordinarily would be regarded as material are:

revenue and earnings information and quarterly results, including earnings guidance;

significant business plans or strategies;

mergers, acquisitions, tender offers, joint ventures, or changes in assets;

changes in control of the Company or changes in senior management;

new products, contracts with suppliers, or developments regarding customers or suppliers (e.g., the acquisition or loss of a
contract);

changes in auditors or auditor notification that the issuer may no longer rely on an audit report;

significant events concerning the Company’s assets;

events regarding the Company’s securities (e.g., defaults on senior securities, calls of securities for redemption, repurchase
plans, stock splits or changes in dividends, changes to the rights of securityholders, public or private sales of additional
securities or information related to any additional funding);

bankruptcies or receiverships;



regulatory investigations or litigation-related developments involving the Company; and
regulatory approvals or changes in regulations and any analysis of how they affect the Company.

Material information is not limited to historical facts but may also include projections and forecasts. With respect to a future
event, such as a merger, acquisition or introduction of a new product, the point at which negotiations or product development are
determined to be material is determined by balancing the probability that the event will occur against the magnitude of the effect the
event would have on a company’s operations or stock price should it occur. Thus, information concerning an event that would have a
large effect on stock price, such as a merger, may be material even if the possibility that the event will occur is relatively small. When
in doubt about whether particular non-public information is material, presume it is material. If you are unsure whether information is
material, you should consult the Company’s General Counsel before making any decision to disclose such information (other than to
persons who need to know it) or to trade in or recommend securities to which that information relates.

What is “Non-public” Information?

Information is “non-public” if it is not available to the general public. In order for information to be considered public, it must be
widely disseminated in a manner making it generally available to investors through such media as Dow Jones, Reuters Economic
Services, The Wall Street Journal, Associated Press, or Business Wire. The circulation of rumors, even if accurate and reported in
the media, does not constitute effective public dissemination.

In addition, even after a public announcement of material information, a reasonable period of time must elapse in order for the
market to react to the information. Generally, one should allow approximately two full trading days following publication as a
reasonable waiting period before such information is deemed to be public. Therefore, if an announcement is made before the
commencement of trading on a Monday, an employee may trade in securities of the Company starting on Wednesday of that week,
because two full trading days would have elapsed by then (all of Monday and Tuesday). If the announcement is made on Monday
after trading begins, employees may not trade in until Thursday. If the announcement is made on Friday after trading begins,
employees may not trade until Wednesday of the following week.

Hedging Prohibitions

Directors, executive officers and employees, and their related persons, may not trade in options, warrants, convertible
securities, puts and calls or similar derivative instruments such as swaps, forwards and futures with respect to the Company’s
securities or sell the Company’s securities “short.” This restriction does not prevent such persons from exercising options granted to
them by the Company in accordance with this Policy and other Company policies. See the Company’s Corporate Governance
Guidelines for additional information regarding restrictions on hedging related to the Company.

Pledging Prohibitions

Directors and executive officers, and their related persons, may not hold the Company’s securities in margin accounts or
pledge the Company’s securities as collateral for a loan.

Trading Windows and Trading Pre-Clearance

Directors, executive officers and any other employees as designated by the Company may only buy or sell the Company’s
securities in the public market during the period beginning on the third full trading day following the public release of the Company’s
quarterly and annual earnings for the immediately preceding fiscal quarter, and ending 15 calendar days prior to the end of the next
fiscal quarter. It should be noted that even during the trading window, any person possessing material, non-public information
concerning the Company should not engage in any transactions in the Company'’s securities until the third full trading day following
the public



disclosure of such information. Each person is individually responsible at all times for compliance with the prohibitions against insider
trading. Trading in the Company’s securities during the trading window should not be considered a “safe harbor” from securities law
violations. “Limit orders” through a broker are prohibited when the trading window is closed, and the brokers with whom any such
limit order is placed must be informed of such prohibition at the time such limit order is placed.

The Company may also implement special trading windows and blackout periods during a time in which a significant, non-
routine event is occurring or will occur. The Company will notify directors, executive officers and employees in the event a special
trading window or blackout period will go into effect.

In addition, certain of the Company'’s directors, executive officers and specifically identified employees must obtain pre-
clearance from the Company’s General Counsel, or his or her designee, before he, she, or a related person, makes any purchases or
sales of the Company’s securities, even if a trading window is open. Those included on this pre-clearance list will be notified by the
Company. Further, when the trading window is closed, any person restricted from buying or selling the Company’s securities may
request pre-clearance from the Company’s General Counsel, or his or her designee, for such person or a related person to make
purchases or sales of the Company’s securities, provided that such person can demonstrate a financial or other personal hardship
and that such person does not possess material, non-public information concerning the Company. A request for pre-clearance
should be submitted to the Company’s General Counsel at least two trading days in advance of the proposed transaction. When a
request for pre-clearance is made, the requestor should carefully consider whether he or she may be aware of any material, non-
public information about the Company, and should describe those circumstances, along with any hardship circumstances if
applicable, to the Company’s General Counsel. Pre-clearance to trade will not constitute legal advice or advice regarding the
investment aspects of any transaction, and the Company’s General Counsel and his or her designee, are in no way obligated to
clear any purchase or sale of the Company’s securities. Clearance of a transaction is valid only for a 48-hour period. If the
transaction order is not placed within that 48-hour period, clearance of the transaction must be re-requested.

Short-Term Trading

No Section 16 Person, or any related person of the foregoing, may purchase the Company’s securities in the open market
and then sell the Company’s securities of the same class within six months of such purchase, or sell the Company’s securities in the
open market and then purchase the Company’s securities of the same class within six months of such sale, without pre-clearance
from the Company’s General Counsel, or his or her designee.

Prearranged Trading Plans

Directors, executive officers and employees may not implement prearranged written trading plans, contracts, instructions, or
arrangements under Rule 10b5-1 of the Exchange Act without pre-clearance from the Company’s General Counsel, or his or her
designee, in consultation with the Human Resources Department and the Chief Financial Officer of the Company. If a Rule 10b5-1
trading plan is approved and established in accordance with Rule 10b5-1 and the requirements described below, the Company’s
securities may be purchased or sold pursuant to the trading plan without regard to the trading windows and pre-clearance
restrictions.

The trading plan must be adopted during a period when the trading window is open, no other trading restrictions have been
imposed and the individual is not in possession of material non-public information. In addition, a trading plan must provide a
minimum of thirty (30) days following its adoption or modification before a trade can occur under the trading plan (the “Cooling-Off
Period”). For Section 16 Persons, the Cooling-Off Period is ninety (90) days following adoption or modification of the trading plan, or
two (2) business days following the disclosure of quarterly financial results for the quarter the trading plan was adopted or modified,
whichever is later. Persons adopting a trading plan must also act in good faith with respect to the



plan. Trading plans adopted or modified by Section 16 Persons must include representations from the individual certifying that they
are not aware of any material non-public information about the issuer or its securities, and that they are acting in good faith and not
as part of any plan or scheme to evade the prohibitions of Rule 10b-5.

Employee Benefit Plan Blackout Periods

The securities laws prohibit directors and executive officers of a public company from directly or indirectly acquiring or
disposing of any equity securities of a public company received in connection with such person’s service or employment as a director
or executive officer during an individual account plan “blackout period.” “Individual account plans” include 401(k) plans, stock bonus
plans and money purchase pension plans. An individual account plan “blackout period” exists whenever the Company or any plan
fiduciary temporarily suspends for more than three consecutive business days the ability of 50% or more of the plan participants or
beneficiaries under all individual account plans maintained by the Company to acquire or dispose of any of the Company'’s equity
securities held in the plans.

VIOLATION OF THIS POLICY

Penalties for trading on or communicating material non-public information can be severe, both for individuals involved in such
unlawful conduct and their employers and supervisors, and may include jail terms, criminal fines, civil penalties and civil enforcement
injunctions. Given the severity of the potential penalties, compliance with this Policy is absolutely mandatory. Any violation of this
Policy shall be brought to the attention of the Company’s General Counsel and may constitute grounds for termination of service.

QUESTIONS
If you have any questions about this Policy, please contact the Company’s General Counsel.



Exhibit 21.1

Subsidiaries of Registrant

DOMESTIC
Subsidiary Name Jurisdiction of Organization

Anastasia Advertising Art, Inc. Florida
Atlantic Prospect, Inc. New York
Bustop Shelters of Nevada, Inc. Nevada
Century Prince Street, Inc. New York
Design-Graphics Inc. Florida
Fuel Outdoor LLC New York
Fuel Outdoor Holdings LLC Delaware
Fuel Outdoor San Francisco LLC Delaware
Metro Fuel LLC Delaware
Millennium Billboards L.L.C. New York
Mizey Realty Co., Inc. New York
Motion Picture Promotions, LLC New York
New York Subways Advertising Co., Inc. Arizona
Outdoor Inc. Maryland
Outdoor Management Network, Inc. California
Outdoor Systems Americas 2 (Delaware), LLC Delaware
Outdoor Systems Americas 3 (Delaware), LLC Delaware
Outdoor Systems Electrical Corp. New York
Outfront Allvision LLC Delaware
Outfront/Branded Cities Chicago — Cook County, LLC Delaware
Outfront Canada Holdco LLC Delaware
Outfront Canada HoldCo 2 LLC Delaware
Outfront Canada Sub LLC Delaware
Outfront Foster Interstate LLC Delaware
Outfront Foster Interstate Oakland LLC Delaware
Outfront Media Boston LLC New York
Outfront Media Bus Advertising LLC New York
Outfront Media Capital Corporation Delaware
Outfront Media Capital LLC Delaware
Outfront Media Chicago LLC New York
Outfront Media Citylites LLC New York
OUTFRONT Media Downtown Advertising LLC New York
Outfront Media Electrical & Maintenance LLC New York
Outfront Media Group LLC Delaware
Outfront Media Kiosk Advertising LLC New York
Outfront Media L.A. Inc. Delaware
Outfront Media LLC Delaware
Outfront Media Miami LLC Delaware
Outfront Media Miami Holdings LLC New York
Outfront Media Minnesota LLC New York

Outfront Media Outernet Inc. Delaware



Outfront Media Receivables LLC Delaware

Outfront Media Receivables TRS, LLC Delaware
Outfront Media San Francisco LLC New York
Outfront Media Sign Erectors LLC New York
Outfront Media Texas Inc. Texas
Outfront Media Transportation Advertising LLC New York
Outfront Media VW Communications LLC New York
Outfront Media Wall to Wall LLC Delaware
Raven Media LLC Delaware
Salm Enterprises, Inc. California
SDI Raven LLC Delaware
TDI Northwest, Inc. Washington
Transportation Displays Inc. Delaware

Wilson-Curtis, Inc. Missouri



FOREIGN

Subsidiary Name Jurisdiction of Organization
3261823 Nova Scotia Company Canada
559733 British Columbia Ltd. Canada
Advertising Systems HoldCo C.V. The Netherlands
Outedge Media Canada LP Canada
Outedge Media Canada GP Co. Canada
Outdoor Systems Americas ULC Canada (Alberta)
Outedge Media Canada Services Ltd. Canada
Outedge Canada HoldCo 3 Inc. Canada (Alberta)

Outdoor Systems Americas Holdco Sub Cod6peratief U.A. The Netherlands



Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on Form S-3 (Nos. 333-272203 and 333-262986) and Form S-8
(Nos. 333-272458, 333-232054, 333-195598, and 333-195596) of OUTFRONT Media Inc. of our report dated February 22, 2024 relating to the financial
statements and financial statement schedules and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, which appears in this Form 10-K.

Is/PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
New York, New York
February 22, 2024



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION

I, Jeremy J. Male, certify that:

1.

| have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of OUTFRONT Media Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this

report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f)) for the registrant and have:

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control

over financial reporting.

Date: February 22, 2024

By:

/sl Jeremy J. Male

Name: Jeremy J. Male

Title: Chairman and Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION

I, Matthew Siegel, certify that:

1.

| have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of OUTFRONT Media Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this

report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f)) for the registrant and have:

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those

entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control

over financial reporting.

Date: February 22, 2024

By:

/sl Matthew Siegel

Name: Matthew Siegel
Title: Executive Vice President and

Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of OUTFRONT Media Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023, as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), |, Jeremy J. Male, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify,

pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to my knowledge:

The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and the information contained in the
Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: February 22, 2024

By: Isl Jeremy J. Male

Name: Jeremy J. Male

Title: Chairman and Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of OUTFRONT Media Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023, as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), |, Matthew Siegel, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the

Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to my knowledge:

The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and the information contained in the
Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: February 22, 2024

By: /sl Matthew Siegel

Name: Matthew Siegel
Title: Executive Vice President and

Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 97.1

OUTFRONT MEDIA INC.

EXECUTIVE INCENTIVE COMPENSATION RECOUPMENT POLICY
Adopted October 24, 2023

Overview

The Board of Directors (“Board”) of OUTFRONT Media Inc. (the ‘Company”) believes that it is in the best interests of
the Company and its shareholders to create and maintain a culture that helps ensure that Incentive Compensation (as
defined below) is paid based on accurate financial and operating data and the correct calculation of the Company’s
performance against incentive targets. The Compensation Committee of the Board (the “Compensation Committee”) and
the Board have therefore adopted this policy (the “Policy”), which provides for the recoupment of certain executive
compensation in the event of certain accounting restatements, in accordance with the rules promulgated by the U.S.
Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) and the rules of any national securities exchange on which the
Company’s securities are listed, including the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE"). This Policy replaces and supersedes the
OUTFRONT Media Inc. Executive Incentive Compensation Recoupment Policy adopted on December 8, 2017, with respect
to Incentive Compensation Received after the Effective Date (as such terms are defined below).

Administration of this Policy

This Policy is intended to comply with the listing requirements of the NYSE and related SEC rules and shall be
interpreted in a manner consistent with those requirements. This Policy shall be administered by the Board or, to the extent
designated by the Board, the Compensation Committee, in which case, as necessary or appropriate, references herein to
the Board shall be deemed references to the Compensation Committee. The Board is authorized, except to the extent
prohibited by this Policy, to make such reasonable determinations and interpretations and to take such reasonable actions in
connection with this Policy as it deems necessary, appropriate or advisable. Any determinations made by the Board shall be
final, binding and conclusive on all affected individuals.

Covered Executives

This Policy applies to the Company’s current and former “officers,” as defined under Rule 16a-1(f) under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), as determined by the Board, including the Company’s
chief executive officer, president, principal financial officer, principal accounting officer (or, if there is no such accounting
officer, the controller), any vice president of the Company in charge of a principal business unit, division or function, any
other officer who performs a policy-making function, or any other person who performs similar policy-making functions for
the Company, and any other person designated by the Board as a “Covered Executive” for the purpose of this Policy
(“Covered Executives”).



Incentive Compensation

For the purposes of this Policy, Incentive Compensation” means any_compensation that is granted, earned, or
vested based wholly or in part upon one or more Financial Reporting Measures (as defined below), including: (i) annual or
other short-term incentive awards (in cash or otherwise); (ii) stock options, stock appreciation rights, performance shares,
performance-based restricted stock or restricted stock units, or other performance-based equity or equity-based awards)
(plus any amounts attributable to such awards) earned, paid or granted under the Company’s long-term incentive and/or
equity compensation programs; and (iii) any other incentive compensation earned, paid or granted in respect of the
Company'’s performance pursuant to an “incentive plan,” as such term is defined for purposes of Regulation S-K under the
Exchange Act, plus any gain actually realized on any such compensation; provided, however, that the above shall not
include (i) salaries (except to the extent any increase in salary is earned wholly or in part based on the attainment of a
Financial Reporting Measure performance goal); (ii) bonuses paid solely at the discretion of the Compensation Committee
that are not paid from a funding pool that is determined by satisfying one or more Financial Reporting Measures; (iii)
bonuses paid solely upon satisfying one or more qualitative standards and/or completion of a specified employment period;
(iv) non-equity incentive plan awards earned solely upon satisfying one or more strategic transaction measures or
operational measures; and (v) equity awards for which the grant is not contingent upon achieving one or more Financial
Reporting Measures and vesting is contingent solely upon completion of a specified employment period and/or attaining one
or more non-financial measures.

For the purposes of this Policy, ‘Financial Reporting Measures” are measures that are determined and presented in
accordance with the accounting principles used in preparing the Company’s financial statements, and any measures derived
in whole or in part from such measures, as well as stock price and total shareholder return (“TSR”).

Recoupment Process and Procedures

Notwithstanding the misconduct, fault or responsibility of any Covered Executive, in the event the Company is
required to prepare an Accounting Restatement (as defined below), the Company shall reasonably promptly recoup (on a
pre-tax basis) from each Covered Executive all Excess Incentive Compensation (as defined below) Received (as defined
below) during the Recoupment Period.

“Accounting Restatement” means (i) correcting an error in previously issued financial statements that is material to
the previously issued financial statements and/or (ii) correcting an error that was not material to previously issued financial
statements, but that would result in a material misstatement in the current period if (1) the error was left uncorrected in the
current report or (2) the error correction was recognized only in the current period, in each case, due to material
noncompliance of the Company with any financial reporting requirement under the securities laws. For the purposes of this
Policy, an Accounting Restatement shall not include (i) retrospective application of a change in accounting principle; (ii)
retrospective revisions to reportable segment information due to a change in the structure of the Company’s internal
organization; (iii) retrospective reclassification due to a discontinued operation; (iv) retrospective application of a change in
reporting entity, such as from a reorganization of entities under



common control; (v) retrospective revisions for stock splits, reverse stock splits, stock dividends or other changes in the

Company’s capital structure; and (vi) any out-of-period adjustment to correct an error that is immaterial to the previously
issued financial statements and the correction of the error is immaterial to the current period and that is otherwise not an
Accounting Restatement.

“Excess Incentive Compensation” means the amount of Incentive Compensation Received by a Covered Executive in
excess, as determined by the Board upon recommendation of the Compensation Committee, of the amount of Incentive
Compensation that would have been Received by the Covered Executive had such Incentive Compensation been
determined based on the restated financial results resulting from the Accounting Restatement (computed on a pre-tax
basis). For any Incentive Compensation based on stock price or TSR metrics, where the amount of Excess Incentive
Compensation may not be subject to mathematical calculation directly from the information in the Accounting Restatement,
Excess Incentive Compensation will be based on the Board’s reasonable and documented estimate (upon recommendation
of the Compensation Committee) of the effects of the Accounting Restatement on the stock price or TSR metric, as
applicable.

“Received” shall mean Incentive Compensation that is received by a Covered Executive (i) on or after the Effective
Date notwithstanding if any Incentive Compensation is received pursuant to any pre-existing contract or arrangement with
the Company, and (i) in the period in which the performance measure related to the Incentive Compensation that must be
achieved is attained or satisfied, even if the grant date or actual payment date occurs after the end of that period. For
example, if the performance target for an award is based on performance metrics for the year ended December 31, 2023,
the award will be deemed to have been received in 2023 even if paid in 2024.

Recoupment Period” means the three completed fiscal years preceding the earlier of (i) the date the Board, a
committee of the Board and/or Covered Employee concludes, or reasonably should have concluded, that the Company is
required to prepare an Accounting Restatement, or (ii) the date a court, regulator, or other legally authorized body directs
the Company to prepare an Accounting Restatement.

This Policy shall apply to Incentive Compensation that is Received by Covered Executives (i) after such Covered
Executive began service as a Covered Executive and (ii) if such Covered Executive served as a Covered Executive at any
time during the Recoupment Period, even if such Covered Executive is no longer a Company employee or a Covered
Executive at the time of recoupment.

The Board will determine, in its sole discretion, the methods for recouping Excess Incentive Compensation
hereunder, which methods may include, without limitation except if any method would not comply with Section 409A of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended: (i) requiring reimbursement of cash Incentive Compensation previously paid;
(ii) seeking recovery of any gain realized on the vesting, exercise, settlement, sale, transfer or other disposition of any equity
or equity-based awards; (iii) offsetting the recouped amount from any compensation otherwise owed by the Company to the
Covered Executive; (iv) cancelling



outstanding vested or unvested equity or equity-based awards; and/or (v) taking any other remedial and recovery action
permitted by law, as determined by the Board.

Impracticability

Recoupment of any Excess Incentive Compensation will be conducted in accordance with this Policy, and shall not
be conducted if the Compensation Committee determines such recoupment would be impracticable and one of the following
conditions are met: (i) after making a reasonable and documented attempt to recoup Excess Incentive Compensation, the
Compensation Committee determines that the direct expenses that would be paid to a third party to assist in enforcing the
Policy would exceed the amount to be recouped; (ii) the Compensation Committee determines that recoupment would likely
cause an otherwise tax-qualified retirement plan, under which benefits are broadly available to employees of the Company,
to fail to meet the requirements of 26 U.S.C. 401(a)(13) or 26 U.S.C. 411(a) and regulations thereunder; or (iii) based on an
opinion of home country counsel acceptable to the NYSE, the Compensation Committee determines that recovery would
violate a home country law adopted prior to November 28, 2022.

No Indemnification

The Company shall not indemnify any Covered Executives against, or pay the premiums for any insurance policy to
cover, losses incurred under this Policy.

Effective Date

This Policy shall be effective as of October 2, 2023 (the ‘Effective Date™) and shall apply to all Incentive
Compensation that is received on or after the Effective Date.

Amendment; Termination

The Board may amend this Policy from time to time in its discretion and shall amend this Policy as it deems necessary
to comply with any rules or standards adopted by the SEC and the national securities exchange on which the Company’s
securities are listed. The Board may terminate this Policy at any time.

Other Laws/Rights of the Company

The Board intends that this Policy will be applied to the fullest extent of the law. To the extent that any provision of
this Policy is found to be unenforceable or invalid under any applicable law, such provision shall be applied to the maximum
extent permitted, and shall automatically be deemed amended in a manner consistent with its objectives to the extent
necessary to conform to applicable law. The invalidity or unenforceability of any provision of this Policy shall not affect the
validity or enforceability of any other provision of this Policy.

The Board may require that any employment agreement, equity award agreement or similar agreement entered into
on or after the Effective Date, or other compensatory agreement or arrangement, shall, as a condition to the grant of any
benefit thereunder, require a Covered Executive to agree to abide by the terms of this Policy. Any right of recoupment under
this



Policy is in addition to, and not in lieu of, any other remedies or rights of recoupment that may be available to the Company
pursuant to the terms of any similar policy or in any employment agreement, equity award agreement or similar agreement,
and any other legal or equitable remedies available to the Company. There shall be no duplication of recovery under this
Policy and any of 15 U.S.C. Section 7243 (Section 304 of The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002) or Section 10D of the Exchange

Act.

Successors

This Policy shall be binding and enforceable against all Covered Executives and their beneficiaries, heirs, executors,
administrators or other legal representatives.



